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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman)

Mr. Xian Zhenyuan (Chief Executive)

Ms. Qin Ling (General Manager)
(resigned on 16 March 2023)

Mr. Liu Min (General Manager)
(appointed on 16 March 2023)

Ms. Li Tao

Non-executive Director

Ms. Chen Hong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jin

Mr. Li Liuging
Ms. Zhao Jun
Ms. Ou Yaqun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Liuging (Chairman)
Ms. Zhao Jun
Ms. Ou Yaqun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Zhao Jun (Chairlady)
Mr. Zhang Yingcen
Ms. Ou Yaqun
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Company Profile (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman)
Ms. Zhao Jun
Mr. Liu Jin

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Mr. Xian Zhenyuan (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Min
Mr. Liu Jin

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Xian Zhenyuan
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

4th Floor, Tian Lun Group Building,
No.6 Huang He East Road, Zheng Dong Xin District, Zhengzhou City, Henan Province,
The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Unit 3905, 39/F, The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE TRANSFER OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Ltd
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor,

Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building,

Central, Hong Kong
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LEGAL ADVISER

Loong & Yeung
Room 1603, 16/F, China Building
29 Queen’s Road Central,

Central, Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation
Bank of China Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

IS STOCK CODE

01600 01600

REEZBRES INVESTOR RELATIONS

FEaE 1 8637163707151 Telephone : 86 371 6370 7151

{£5 : 86 371 6397 9930 Fax : 863716397 9930

EH : ir@tianlungas.com E-mail ir@tianlungas.com

#94E - www.tianlungas.com Website : www.tianlungas.com

ik - B - Address Hong Kong:
FEFIR Unit 3905, 39/F, The Center
SEREF9H 99 Queen’s Road Central
IR 39123905 F Central, Hong Kong
B - Mainland:
R BT R BN T Department of Investor Relations,
BRI 4th Floor, Tian Lun Group Building,
=M BRSNS No.6 Huang He East Road,
KXim&EBEmE Zheng Dong Xin District,
WEEBEFRES Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, the PRC

4R © 450003 Zip Code : 450003
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Business Regions (Continued)
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Transportation Gas Project
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Hebi City, Shilin Industrial Assemble Zone, Heqi Industrial
Assemble Zone, Xuchang City, Xuchange New Area, Shangjie
District in Zhengzhou City, High-tech District in Puyang
City, Minquan County, Song County, Xinye County, Weishi
County, Xinwei Industrial Park, Gangwei New District,
Weibei Technology and Food Industrial Park, Lankao County,
Xichuan County, Baofeng County, Ye County, Wugang City,
Xiping County, Shengiu County, township in Jia County,
township in Xichuan County

et - AW AR AAT BN EEE AR
% RETDHOENRE  FERKEAE BRE I
B

Dunhua City, Panshi City, Da’an City, Jiutai City, Tongyu
County, Zhenlai County, Nong'an County, Changchun Airport
Economic Zone, Yitong Manchu Autonomous County, Qian’an
County, Wangging County

SE%  AED  EE%  RUE Ba% MR%

Huize County, Gejiu City, Guangnan County, Yanshan County,
Ludian County, Hekou County

B% - BEE. SEhaaE - RAS

Cao County, Shan County, Gaoxin District in Heze City,
Dongming County

BeIR%  EBH%

Luzhai County, Guanyang County

HiRT - BEH - TR%
Baiyin City, Jingyuan County, Gulang County

AR - BES
Dongkou County, Fenghuang County

AFRETHER
Yuhua District in Shijiazhuang
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Longhu Town in Chaozhou City, Fuyang Town in Chaozhou
City, Dongfeng Town in Chaozhou City, Chenghai District in
Shantou City, Chaoyang District in Shantou City, Lechang
City

R% - BRE  FMNG  OKBEE% - REH

Qian County, Liquan County, Zizhou County, Mizhi County,
Wubu County

REIHER  KBTEER - BMH

Xindu District in Chengdu City,

Jintang County in Chengdu City, Mianzhu City
=8m

Sanming City

Datong County, Huzhu County
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Hebi City, Xuchang City, Shangjie
District in Zhengzhou City,
Minguan County, Song County,
Xinye County, Weishi County,
Lankao County, Xichuan County,
Ye County, Wugang City

BAT - AEWH - LA« B ReEH
™ BRI - BB -  REMERS  Changling
& County
Panshi City, Da’an City, Jiutai City,

Baicheng City, Tongyu County,

Zhenlai County, Shuangyang

District in Changchun City

BT - TR

Baiyin City, Gulang County
SR 08

Dongkou County

=i
Xingtai City

N% - BRE RER
Qian County, Liquan County, Wubu
County

i
Mianzhu City

Datong County, Huzhu County

Pipeline

FIAWL
Pingdingshan
City

AL
Da’an City

Ean;il
Wujiang City
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OPERATION & FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

TOTAL GAS SALES VOLUME 194,238 191,177

(#13777°K)(0°000 m°)
156,640 | 4.
129,236
106,359
91,752
62,055
25,759
15,471 18,106

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

HRAGRE
GAS SALES STRUCTURE

i R AEBBERETRS  THZRS  TBAS - #t
27.4% BEBENEE D BEIAE B R 27.4% - 55.6% - 4.1% 5
23.0% 12.9% -

During the year, the volume of gas of the Group sold
to residential users, industrial and commercial users,
transportation users, gas source trade accounted for
27.4%, 55.6%, 4.1% and 12.9% of total gas sales volume,
respectively.

TEAP TIrE¥RP ZBAP LR
Residential users  Industrial and commercial users  Transportation users  Gas source trade

8 RHAMEBERERAT 2022FFEHE o
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Operation & Financial Highlights (Continued)

2 EBRAF
AGGREGATE CONNECTIONS USERS
() (users) 5,294,315

4,938,642
4,204,256
3,247,483
2,354,203
1,636,226
1,334,299
1,022,122
596,421 794217
459,401 . '

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

ﬁéﬁuﬂknn%
STRUCTURE OF REVENUE FROM GAS SALES

FA-AEEHENEEHAP IBRERF  XBHEFP - #t
BEBOHERAD BIE B IEE WA 20.9% - 58.0% - 6.7%
K 14.4%

During the year, the revenue from gas sales of the Group
to residential users, industrial and commercial users,
transportation users, gas source trade accounted for 20.9%,
58.0%, 6.7% and 14.4% of total revenue from gas sales,
respectively.

TEAP TIrE¥RP ZBAP LR
Residential users  Industrial and commercial users  Transportation users  Gas source trade

® Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Operation & Financial Highlights (Continued)

BRE
Financial Highlights
2021 2022
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
WA R FIE Revenue and profit
PN Revenue 7,650,345 7,542,859
MR BT 1S5 BT FE Profit before income tax 1,362,804 670,124
Frigfi & s Income tax expense 334,690 200,852
FENH Profit for the year 1,028,114 469,272
: EERAE Assets and liabilities
JEMENEE Non-current assets 9,889,619 9,976,642
TmEEE Current assets 5,215,217 5,982,092
: FEREAE Non-current liabilities 5,021,003 5,051,546
: mEBE Current liabilities 4,555,459 5,084,518
e RIESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,014,978 1,340,135
R Equity
N Share capital 8,466 8,511
: AR A5 Share premium 528,133 341,096
BRENARRIFTEE 2 ER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 5,218,179 5,507,945
FEIESI VR Non-controlling interests 310,195 314,725
s Total equity 5,528,374 5,822,670
. R - EARERWES Earnings per share — basic earnings per share 1.00 0.45
: (AR¥ITT) (RMB)
L e
: Financial Indicators
: 2021 2022
: RMB’000 RMB’000
: ARBEFTT ARMT T
EvE Gross profit margin 23.3% 18.5%
v lpEs Net profit margin 13.4% 6.2%
: MENLL 2 Current ratio 114.5% 117.7%
BEEBEEX Assets gearing ratio 63.4% 63.5%
B [E] R D Return on capital® 18.8% 11.3%
: W ORI FERBRAARIEEZ W Core profit/average equity attributable to owners of the Company
: 12
uﬂlﬁﬁ*ﬁ o HREMA Sale of gas 626092; 72505;
$H K a (e} . (]
REVENUE STRUCTURE o TEZE ——— o 5
2o Revenue from engineering 29.0% 18.7%
18.7% RERFEUL A construction services
o EHfi Others 4.1% 5.4%

10 XGHMREERERAT 2022FFEHE o

FA - AEENRREXRIHEER  TIRLERREESTNECEBRALE
WABILEE D B A#75.9% * 18.7% [ 5.4% ©
During the year, the revenue from transportation and sales of gas business,

engineering construction service business and other operation of the Group
accounted for approximately 75.9%,18.7% and 5.4% of total revenue,

respectively.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

[y Rk
Zhang Yingcen, Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

2022 was the year of deepening the “14th Five-Year Plan”, which was
also a challenging year. China’s macro economy has withstood the pressure
of various unexpected domestic and international factors, realized the
improvements of economic strength, comprehensive national power, and
people’s living standards. China has achieved the annual gross domestic
product (GDP) exceeding RMB121 trillion throughout the year, reaching
a new level of development, and demonstrating the strong resilience of
the China’s economy. At the same time, in terms of energy construction,
the country, under the guidance of the “14th Five-Year Plan on Modern
Energy System Plan” ([ +1 f | 3B e RE8 Z R & )), issued a series
of documents to clarify the principal goals and implementation paths of
China’s construction of a modern energy system during the “14th Five-Year
Plan” period. Regarding the economic development, China has consistently
and efficiently coordinated the pandemic prevention and control works, as
well as economic and social development, creating a miracle of successfully
getting out of the pandemic for a populous country.

# Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ZEZF BEREREFRBEME In 2022, the international energy supply and demand situation was
g FEHHEMSEHE  BimKXRZE  complex and severe. Facing the impacts of the international market and
B UEBAXAREFTEBEREZIEE  extreme weather, and the overall supply and demand situation of natural
BEEMEDAT c HMIBKELZ LB EE  gas which presented a trend of high prices and tight supply, we always bear
FIRABM - BERAERBERAERNMEE  in mind the fundamental attribute of public utility, actively assume the
T Z2NRARBRELGEE N —7  social responsibility of ensuring supply for people’s livelihood, and strive to
M BREASAINEIR  ZHERBRA  enhance the comprehensive strength of gas source guarantee. On the one
RER  RERXARDEE  LEE/ERIR  hand, by integrating internal and external resources, we raised natural gas
HE - ERAMNFRKIEA - IRAMESIE  resources in multiple ways to ensure the supply of natural gas, and arranged
ARIRE : S—7Hm - ME(LEERIEM  peak gas consumption support in advance with a more flexible gas source
RERGRAEE  BEABKEMREL  mix and more precise demands prediction. On the other hand, aiming at
EEIE - B AR ARNE LT optimizing the planning of the gas pipelines in the operating areas, we
B ENRESMAMERELES - Bilk[E]  actively carried out pipeline interconnection between the operating areas
B RMBRERKAREBRTHNRER  of Tian Lun Gas and nearby gas companies, and strived to improve the gas
BHTMA - HEEEREANAIEE#KSIZEZ  supply guarantee capability. Meanwhile, we closely followed the direction of
VHEE - JEEIEEGREEMER - 8 the national efforts to the market reform of natural gas price, promoted the
REFXFTITHEESEENHREE - establishment and improvement of the price-following mechanism within
our operating areas. The price-following mechanism work has made periodic
progress, and the gas industry is developing towards higher quality.

ERAREXZEDEROER - K4S While the natural gas business is booming, we have combined our business
BEEBRED - EANIRERN [ ] B/ strengths to promote the sustainable development of clean energy in villages
MABIZESIET » HPKIEBEBEAR - B in Central China by relying on state-owned capital and insisting on light
BEEEES  S{EHERRENIERE  asset operation under the guidance of two major national policies: rural
IREVAT B R o 78 [RALEAT | Z=TEMURK  revitalization and the “dual carbon” targets. With the results of the “rural
RE -#HEGHEVEMBNAESEIE  gasification” business, we gave full play to our advantages in operating
2 BRFEE - BIERATRE—REER  capabilities in rural Henan and actively developed and operated projects.
LR ElREE LRI o Our goal is to become a top-tier rural green energy operator and service
provider in the PRC.

HEEREELERMBRR - HMAFEZ  While realizing the Group’s economic benefits, we regard the establishment
TZHBHWESGE R ZARIERIIFET  of an effective ESG governance system as the key to actualizing the concept
BRESANEHEERE - - —F & of sustainable development. In 2022, we established the ESG Committee to
L TESGZE 2 ASTTEE AL - B improve the governance structure, clarify the direction of ESG planning, and
HESGREIF M - ASESGIES @ ALER  integrate ESG concepts into our operating strategies, so as to provide clear
B REREEREMSFWIES guidelines for the sound development of the Company.

12 XGMREERERAT 2022FFEHE o




RE

TEC-HEREEEREEEN —_TK
BHORBEZE 8 [+THA] BENER
R A EETER - BEERBIIERE N
Fl BRFEERMEEBREME N
BT 4L ) B IR BB 3R
o BBEEERE S REILA -

BMEEHEEEERERNZEERNT
By - A A R 7 £ 1B 3% e B B 4 ) O JER
B I BRI R R G RV B A T HETE
o ERFEEENHTRRELR K
A B AT R BEAN [ 880K | BIRMABIR A
5l EFEBIMAEGERL  #
FrEZNILEEBHNER - BERDREE
BERET B REBEREGRE -

EMREEIE BASEELE B
E - ASRMERARBERSERL - X
R RBEER 2 ELBRRRERES
7> —7H BRAGBRERZEBERKM
BERBFER 2HERMRLEERL
M BRI LT 2 EWELE - BRUR
TRBRAREL  MEIARAR  R—
T¥E ZEH ZRETCHRRRE
HRE - ETEERE - AERR - AEMH
EEcHASRBRER  ZELE  BR
BRMNARERAL - GFERARARM
FEIRIEREN -

FEREXRHB @ BASBHIRNE— PN
BIREXBHERER  BBERREER
IBEER - BIFEHEIRERFO RS
AL - BEXBMR [HE+ IR+ M
MM RALRE  BBEREER
2R BACWER  BEEIBRER
EBR AR B R -

FEHRE (8)
Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

OUTLOOK

As the first year for the full implementation of the spirit of the 20th National
Congress of the Chinese Communist Party, 2023 will play a connecting
role in the realization of the goals of the “14th Five-Year Plan”. With the
relaxation of the pandemic prevention and control measures and the synergy
between the national stock policies and the incremental policies, the local
governments will focus on restoring economic development, significantly
enhancing the economic activity.

In the face of macro fundamentals of economic recovery and growth, we will
continue to adhere to the bottom line of the Group’s development and risk
control, and get prepared for new opportunities and uncertainties ahead.
As a leading urban gas operator in the PRC, we, under the guidance of the
two national policies of rural revitalization and the “dual carbon” targets,
will continue to strength the foundation of our own gas business, while
developing the value-added business and actively expanding the green
energy business, so as to accelerate the Group’s development with quality.

For the natural gas business, we will continue to supply natural gas to
various users in a safe, stable and reliable manner. Tian Lun Gas always
gives top priority to safe operation and gas sources. On the one hand, we
will firmly implement the requirements of the state and governments at all
levels, comprehensively enhance gas safety foresight, effectively prevent
relevant safety incidents, and effectively enhance the accuracy of the hidden
danger rectification, so as to save against a rainy day and keep everyone
safe. On the other hand, we will broaden the channels for obtaining gas in
various ways and purchase gas at different times, from different sources and
among different suppliers. We will take multiple measures to maximize the
efficiency of resource utilization and comprehensively enhance the ability to
protect the supply of natural gas.

For the value-added business, we will strive to further highlight the role
of value-added business in maintaining stability. Through the coordinated
planning and development of the natural gas business and the value-added
business as well as the innovative business and the value-added business,
we will construct the brand ecosystem of “sales + service + brand” of
Tian Lun Gas, and will continue to promote the in-depth development of
value-added business strategies through the whole process and refined
management of service projects.

# Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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For the new energy business, under the guidance of the national dual carbon
policy, we will continue to rely on the state-owned capital to develop our
operational strengths and further expand the rural green energy business.
Our goal is to become a top-tier rural green energy operator and service
provider in the PRC. In 2023, we will focus on accelerating the development
of the new energy business. Through the strategic partnership network that
can leverage resource allocation more effectively, and the reliance on our
own pipeline resources, we will develop and operate the distributed rooftop
photovoltaic projects and renewable energy plants.

At the same time, we will help Tian Lun Gas release its potential and embark
on a new path to sustainable development in the new era by promoting up-
to-date business thinking, comprehensively enhancing the team’s ability,
and constructing a diversified incentive system. First, in order to further
focus on the three-year strategic development plan, we will prioritize our
business needs, optimize the organizational structure based on the principle
of efficiency, promote refined management, and improve the leadership
of the cadre. Secondly, we will do our best to introduce, train and protect
talents, construct a talent service system with Tian Lun’s characteristics,
and continue to maintain career passion and responsibility with constant
innovative thinking by creating a compound talent team. Finally, we will
attach importance to the differences in staff needs in terms of incentive and
business implementation. Through the establishment of an effective and
standardized incentive mechanism, we will continue to enhance the sense
of belonging and identity of the employees, and make full use of their own
values so as to continuously contribute to the Group’s development.
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FEHRE (8)
Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Tian Lun Gas is standing firm even in the trying times, fulfilling our own
duties and responsibilities. We consistently insist on providing users with
efficient, uninterrupted and highquality services, which are inseparable
from the hard work and dedication of all employees as well as the strong
support and solidarity of all member companies. | would like to take the
opportunity to sincerely thank all employees for their contributions to the
development of the Group over the past year. At the same time, | would also
like to express my sincere gratitude to all of our shareholders and investors
for their trust and support. We will always maintain our original aspirations,
persevere in innovating and fighting, facilitate the high-quality development
of Tian Lun Gas, and actively reward our shareholders and society with more
outstanding results.

Zhang Yingcen
Chairman
30 March 2023

# Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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CEO Message
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors and fellow staff, | am pleased to present
our annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”).

In 2022, the domestic pandemic was still recurrent, with the continuous
normalization of pandemic prevention and control. The Russia-Ukraine
conflict caused major adjustments in the global natural gas supply; the
domestic natural gas market demonstrated weak supply and demand.
In the second half of the year, the government optimized the pandemic
prevention and control measures and accelerated the resumption of work
and production. As the pandemic subsided with a recovering economy,
China's economy showed a clearer upward trend with a steady increase in
the demand of natural gas. At the same time, under the long-term goals
of national carbon peak emissions and carbon neutrality, the Chinese
government and relevant departments have successively promulgated a
series of policies, such as the “14th Five-Year Plan for Modern Energy
Systems”, the “National Climate Change Adaptation Strategy 2035"” and
the “Implementation Plan for Technologically Supporting Carbon Peak
Emissions and Carbon Neutrality (2022-2030)”, with the aim of promoting
the construction of a nationwide unified energy market and deepening
the reform of market-oriented allocation of natural gas resources. All of
those will be conducive to maintaining the steady growth of the natural
gas production and the industry’s prosperity in the PRC, bringing business
opportunities to the Group. In the face of the complex international situation
and the normalization of the domestic pandemic, the Group continued to
adhere to the principle of “developing clean energy and improving the living
environment” and further expanded and innovated the low-carbon energy
business while developing the natural gas business in a high-quality manner.
As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 69 urban gas projects across the
PRC providing gas services to over 5,250,000 households of urban and rural
residents and over 40,000 industrial and commercial users.
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CEO Message (Continued)

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded operating
revenue of RMB7,543 million, basically equal to the same period of last
year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

2022 was the third year of the global COVID-19 pandemic. In spite of the
multiple unfavorable factors such as geopolitical complications, soaring
global inflation, and the impact of the domestic pandemic, China’s economy
has still achieved positive growth. According to the latest data released by
the National Bureau of Statistics of China, China’s economy grew by 3.0%
in 2022. According to the data released by the National Development and
Reform Commission of China, the apparent natural gas consumption in the
PRC was 366.3 billion m? in 2022, representing a decrease of 1.7% year-
on-year. The slowdown in domestic economic growth and high international
natural gas prices have resulted in negative growth in natural gas
consumption, but the global effort of energy transition to a more low-carbon
direction has not wavered. The market potential for natural gas remains
positive in the medium term. As the pandemic subsides with a recovering
economy, China’s natural gas consumption is expected to return to positive
growth in 2023.

In 2022, the retail business of natural gas continued to be the largest
contributor to the Group’s revenue. The Group’s retail sales volume of
natural gas reached 1,666 million m3, representing an increase of 4.8%
compared to the corresponding period of last year. The main reasons are
that the Group prioritized gas source optimization, made timely adjustments
in accordance with the supply and demand, and secured gas supply through
multiple pipelines. At the same time, the Group stepped up its efforts to
develop industrial and commercial users and aligned prices for industrial
and commercial users.
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CEO Message (Continued)
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Due to the impact of the pandemic and the sluggish new real estate market,
the Group formulated a flexible development strategy based on the market
and user demand, adding 350,737 residential users for the year ended
31 December 2022. The cumulative number of residential users to gas
pipelines increased to 5,252,003 households. In the future, the Group will
strive to maintain a stable trend, and will secure special funds for urban
renewal and increase the added value of connections and single user quotas
as new growth points.

The Group has always adhered to the concept of “being customer-
centric and service-oriented” to develop value-added businesses. Through
innovative business models and enriching service content, it continued
to expand brand influence, to deeply explore the customer values and to
develop diversified marketing strategies, so as to meet the diversified and
differentiated demands of customers and achieve a rapid growth in the
overall revenue of the value-added business. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group’s revenue from the value-added business reached RMB333 million,
representing an increase of 24.1% compared to RMB268 million for the
corresponding period of last year.

Facing the policy fundamentals of economic adjustment and recovery, the
Group accelerated the development of new energy business while taking root
in the gas industry, and strived to become an operator and service provider
for rural green energy. On the basis of the planning of nearly 2 million
township users in gasified villages, projects such as EPC construction,
operation and maintenance business of household photovoltaics have been
launched.

The Group’s current operating area has covered 16 provinces across the PRC
and has accumulated over 5 million users. Among which, the scale of user
managed within Henan Province has reached 3 million households, and
nearly 2 million households are township users.
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CEO Message (Continued)

OUTLOOK

In 2023, as the Asia-Pacific region becomes an important engine of
global economic growth, the eastward shift of energy consumption will
accelerate, and energy producers such as Russia will further strengthen
cooperation with emerging economies such as China. In this regard, the
supply and demand of the global energy will be structurally reshaped. We
will actively grasp the changes in the global energy landscape and respond
to the national trend of energy transformation and the national low-carbon
development strategy. Under the background of dual-carbon energy, we
will capture the development opportunities of China’s energy upgrade and
continue to make low carbon energy business as an important strategic
direction. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to strengthen cooperation with
government platforms and large state-owned enterprises while developing
its natural gas business in a high-quality manner. Based on our abundant
township customer resources and market operation experience, the Group
will dig deep into the clean energy operation business, further expand and
innovate the low-carbon energy business, and support rural revitalization, all
of which will also be conducive to the sustainable development of Tian Lun
Gas.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The main businesses of the Group include provision of gas pipeline
construction and infrastructure laying and installation for residential,
commercial and industrial users, as well as transportation, distribution and
sales of gases including natural gas and CNG and production and sales of
LNG in bulk and in cylinders.

The key results and operating information of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 as compared to the corresponding period of the previous
year are as follows:

B2+t-A=t-BLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—S-Cf —E-—F L)
2022 2021 Change by
EEBMRRAPR New pipeline gas users: 355,673 643,359 (44.7)%
—HREERF (FE) — Urban gas residential users (households) 282,601 291,514 (3.1)%
— HEFERF (PE) — Township residential users (households) 68,136 347,199 (80.4)%
— IB%£RP(PH) — Industrial and commercial users (households) 4,936 4,646 6.2%
ZREBMARAP Total pipeline gas users: 5,294,315 4,938,642 7.2%
— BEERE (F&) — Urban gas residential users (households) 3,309,311 3,026,710 9.3%
— BEFERF (FE) — Township residential users (households) 1,942,692 1,874,556 3.6%
— IEERF(FPE) — Industrial and commercial users (households) 42,312 37,376 13.2%
KATHER (BUFK) Natural gas sales volume (in ten thousand m3): 191,177 194,238 (1.6)%
— RARTEEKHERE — Sales volume of retail business of
(BaAXK) natural gas (in ten thousand m?) 166,634 158,951 4.8%
—FEAPARRBEES — Natural gas sales volume
(B XK to residential users (in ten thousand m3) 52,411 44,776 17.1%
— ITHERFPRARBES — Natural gas sales volume to
(BamK) industrial and commercial users
(in ten thousand m?) 106,318 105,016 1.2%
RBAPARRBES — Natural gas sales volume
(%i?\f x*) to transportation users
(in ten thousand m?) 7,905 9,159 (13.7)%
— RARBEEKERE — Sales volume of wholesale business of
(BaAXK) natural gas (in ten thousand m?) 24,543 35,287 (30.4)%
REEEMRARBE (BHK) Long-haul pipeline gas transmission volume
(in ten thousand m3) 75,931 81,287 (6.6)%
2T REEERE(RE) Total length of medium and high-pressure
pipelines (kilometre) 8,813 8,606 2.4%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

New Business Development

2022 is the first year of the second phase for the Group’s township energy
planning. According to the key points of the national “14th Five-Year Plan”
and the latest two-carbon policy guidance, the Group took the initiative
to upgrade the “rural coal gas project” in Henan Province to “rural energy
project”. Taking this huge user base as the starting point of township
energy business, the Group will take the advantages of market resources to
cooperate with more high-quality partners to fully explore the value of user
resources, actively promote the construction of low-carbon energy in rural
Henan province, and further develop the clean energy operation projects,
such as residential rooftop distributed photovoltaic.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has participated in 6
bids of distributed photovoltaic projects including SPIC Henan Projects,
with 4 won. Also, the Group has established 4 associates with SPIC, which
are located in Xuchang, Pingdingshan, Hebi and Shangcheng respectively.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s revenue amounted to
RMB7,543 million, representing a slight decrease of 1.4% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year. Among which, revenue from
engineering construction services amounted to RMB1,409 million which
represented a decrease of 36.6% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year; revenue from gas retail business amounted to RMB4,905
million which represented an increase of 18.3% as compared with the
corresponding period of last year; revenue from gas wholesale business
amounted to RMB826 million which represented a decrease of 14.9% as
compared with the corresponding period of last year. The Group’s revenue
was primarily derived from sales of natural gas in cylinders and in bulk
business, engineering construction service business, accounting for 65.0%,
10.9% and 18.7% (the corresponding period of last year: 54.2%, 12.7%,
29.0%), respectively, of the total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Revenue from Gas Retail Business

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from gas retail business
of the Group amounted to RMB4,905 million, representing a year-on
year increase of 18.3% as compared with RMB4,146 million for the
corresponding period of last year. In 2022, residents spent more time to
stay and study at home due to COVID-19 pandemic. During the year ended
31 December 2022, revenue from gas sales of the Group's residential users
amounted to RMB 1,199 million, representing an year-on-year growth of
18.2%.

Meanwhile, the Group has developed flexible industrial and commercial
development strategies by rearranging the large industrial users. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, revenue from gas sales of the Group’s industrial
and commercial users amounted to RMB 3,323 million, representing an
year-on-year growth of 18.7%.

Revenue from Gas Wholesale Business

For the year ended 31 December 2022,
business of the Group amounted to RMB826 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 14.9% as compared with RMB971 million for the
corresponding period of last year.

revenue from gas wholesale

Revenue from Engineering Construction Services

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from engineering
construction services amounted to RMB1,409 million, representing
a decrease of 36.6% as compared with RMB2,222 million for the
corresponding period of last year. The Group has adjusted its development
strategy during the year with suspending the rural gasification business. If
the revenue from the rural gasification business is deducted, the revenue
from engineering construction services of urban gas business amounted to
RMB838 million, representing a slight decrease of 3.4% as compared with
RMB 868 million as compared with the corresponding period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Revenue from Other Businesses

Most of the revenue from other businesses comes from value-added services.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has developed customized packages
according to the needs of users, strived to enrich product content, bringing
in revenue from other businesses of RMB403 million, representing an
increase of 29.2% as compared with RMB312 million for the corresponding
period of last year. Among which, revenue from value-added services was
RMB333 million, an increase of 24.1% compared to RMB268 million of
last year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group realized gross profit of
RMB1,393 million, representing a decrease of RMB386 million or 21.7%
from the corresponding period of last year. Overall gross profit margin of
the Group was 18.5%, representing a decrease of 4.8 percentage points as
compared with the corresponding period of last year. The decline is mainly
due to the company’s adjustment of its business structure, which resulted
in a decrease in the proportion of engineering construction services revenue
with high gross profit margin to total revenue from 29.0% in 2021 to
18.7% in 2022, as well as the increase in the price of gas source and the
delay of price adjustment in 2022.

Other (losses)/gains — Net

For the year ended 31 December 2022 due to exchange losses and
other reasons, other losses — net of the Group amounted to RMB104
million, representing a decrease of RMB204 million as compared with the
corresponding period of last year.

Finance Expenses — Net

For the year ended 31 December 2022, finance expenses — net of the
Group amounted to RMB313 million, representing an increase of RMB85
million as compared with the corresponding period of last year.

Net Profit and Core Profit*

For the year ended 31 December 2022, net profit of the Group amounted
to RMB469 million, representing a decrease of RMB559 million or 54.4%
as compared with the corresponding period of last year. For the year ended
31 December 2022, core profit of the Group amounted to RMB607 million,
representing a decrease of 35.0% as compared with RMB934 million for
the corresponding period of last year.

* Core Profit is net of other gains — net and net impairment losses on assets
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Net Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2022, net profit attributable to owners of
the Company was RMB445 million, representing a decrease of RMB556
million or 55.5% as compared with the corresponding period of last year.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group has been adopting prudent policies in respect of financial
resources management, including maintaining an appropriate level of cash
and cash equivalents as well as sufficient credit limits, in order to cope
with the needs of daily operation and business development and control the
borrowing at a healthy level.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group incurred capital
expenditure of RMB514 million, of which RMB117 million was used in
project acquisitions and RMB397 million in continuously improving urban
gas business. The above capital expenditure was financed by the Group’s
operating cash flows and bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of
RMB1,340 million in total, of which 96.1% was denominated in RMB, 1.6%
was denominated in HK dollars and 2.3% was denominated in US dollars,
safeguarding the needs of project expansion and acquisition of businesses
of the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total borrowings were RMB7,203
million (among which loans denominated in RMB were RMB3,764 million,
loans denominated in US dollars were RMB2,855 million and loans
denominated in HK dollars were RMB584 million). Among those borrowings,
59.5% of which were classified as non-current liabilities, and 40.5% of
which were classified as current liabilities. As at 31 December 2022, the
gearing ratio, calculated based on the percentage of total liabilities over
total assets, was 63.5%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCE COST AND EXCHANGE RISK
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s finance cost was
RMB331 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s overseas borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies accounted for 47.7% of its total
borrowings. The Group will continue to closely monitor the changes in
exchange rates and strive to lower its finance costs through diversified
arrangements, and will adopt necessary measures to lower its exchange risk
as and when necessary.

TOP-UP PLACING OF EXISTING SHARES AND
SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES UNDER
GENERAL MANDATE

On 21 February 2022, the Company, Tian Lun Group Limited and the
Placing Agent entered into the Placing Agreement, pursuant to which the
Placing Agent conditionally agreed, as agent of Tian Lun Group Limited,
to procure on a best efforts basis the Placees to purchase an aggregate
of up to 50,000,000 Shares at the price of HK$8.40 per Share, on the
terms and subject to the conditions set out in the Placing Agreement. At
the same date, the Company entered into the Subscription Agreement
with Tian Lun Group Limited, pursuant to which Tian Lun Group Limited
conditionally agreed to subscribe for Subscription Shares (equivalent to
the number of Placing Shares) at the Subscription Price (same as the
Placing Price) in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in the
Subscription Agreement. On 21 February 2022, being the date of the
signing of the Placing Agreement and Subscription Agreement, the market
price per each share was HK$9.63. The top-up placing shares represented
50,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an aggregate nominal value
of HK$500,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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On 24 February 2022, an aggregate of 50,000,000 Placing Shares of
the Company have been successfully placed by the Placing Agent to not
less than six Placees at the Placing Price of HK$8.40 per Placing Share.
The Placees are professional and institutional investors. To the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable
enquiry, each of the Placees (and their respective ultimate beneficial
owners) are independent of the Company and its connected persons. None
of the Placees has become a substantial shareholder of the Company
immediately after completion of the Placing.

On 28 February 2022, an aggregate of 50,000,000 Subscription Shares
have been subscribed by Tian Lun Group Limited at the Subscription Price
of HK$8.40 per Subscription Share (equivalent to the number of the
Placing Shares actually sold by Tian Lun Group Limited under the Placing).
The Subscription Shares represent approximately 4.95% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
Subscription Shares. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 21 February 2022 and 28 February 2022.

The Directors consider that the Placing and the Subscription represent an
opportunity to raise capital for the Company’s new projects while broadening
its shareholder and capital base, which is conducive to the development of
the Company.

The completion of the Placing and the Subscription took place on 24
February 2022 and 28 February 2022, respectively. The net proceeds
from the Subscription amounted to approximately HK$414 million and the
number of issued shares of the Company was increased to 1,010,027,108.
The net price for each Placing Shares was HK$8.28. The proceeds raised
are mainly used as follows: (i) development of rooftop photovoltaics projects
for rural residential users and commercial/industrial users (“Rooftop
Photovoltaics Projects”); (ii) development of clean energy heating services
(“Clean Energy Heating Services Projects”); and (iii) working capital and
general corporate purposes (“General Working Capital”).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has utilised approximately HK$86
million of the proceeds mainly for the Rooftop Photovoltaics Projects
and relevant investments, and the General Working Capital, representing
approximately 20.8% of the net proceeds, and the unutilised proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$328 million.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Dividend

Pursuant to the resolutions of the Board on 30 March 2023, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend (the “Final Dividend”) for
the year ended 31 December 2022 of RMB11.00 cents per share (2021:
RMB14.57 cents per share). Together with an interim dividend of RMB7.35
cents per share which had been paid, total dividend paid for the year ended
31 December 2022 was RMB18.35 cents per share.
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The Final Dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollars on or about 21 June
2023 (Wednesday) to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 7 June 2023 (Wednesday), subject to
the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Meanwhile, in order to support the Company’s development, Mr. Zhang
Yingcen, being the controlling shareholder of the Company, agreed with the
undistributed 2022 final dividend of RMB18,829 thousand for the time
being. Such matter will be confirmed before the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Further announcement will be made by the Company in relation
to the exact amount of the Final Dividend in Hong Kong dollars when the
conversion rate for Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars to be adopted has been
determined by the Board.

Closure of Register of Members

In order to determine the Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed Final
Dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
2 June 2023 (Friday) to 7 June 2023 (Wednesday) (both days inclusive).

In order to be eligible to receive the proposed Final Dividend, all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Group’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30
p.m. on 1 June 2023 (Thursday).

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Upon specific enquiries made to
all the Directors, each of them confirmed that they strictly complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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Corporate Governance Code

The Company has adopted and has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

Audit Committee

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Company consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Liuging (chairman
of the Audit Committee), Ms. Zhao Jun and Ms. Ou Yaqun. The Audit
Committee had reviewed and discussed the annual consolidated results
and consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the Group, had audited
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and issued unqualified
opinion.
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Mr. Zhang Yingcen, aged 60, is the founder of the Company, the
Chairman of the Company and an executive Director. He is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and has involved in leading the
development and investment of the business of the Group in the PRC.
Mr. Zhang has more than 26 years of management experience, including
21 years of experience in the management of gas enterprises. Mr. Zhang
received the certificate of graduation in advanced EMBA program from
Enterprise Research Center of Peking University in 2001, and received
a certificate of graduation in the PRC Enterprise CEO/Financial CEO
program from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in 2014 and
obtained his certificate of EMBA from Tsinghua University in 2018. He
is currently the vice president of Chinese Xianggi Association, and the
vice president of Henan Charity General Federation.
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Mr. Xian Zhenyuan, aged 48, is the chief executive of the Company
and an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Xian has 19 years of
experience in the management of gas enterprises. Mr. Xian joined the
Group in 2003 and served as a director and general manager of certain
subsidiaries of the Company successively. Mr. Xian obtained a bachelor’s
degree majoring in International Trade from Southeast University in the
PRC in 1997 and obtained a master’'s degree majoring in Accounting
from Macquarie University in Australia in 2003.
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Ms. Qin Ling, aged 51, resigned as the general manager and an executive
Director of the Company on 16 March 2023. From April 2019 to May
2021, Ms. Qin served as a vice president of Tus Environmental Science
and Technology Development Co., Ltd, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000826.SZ7). From January 2018 to
April 2019, she served as an executive vice president of CMIG New Energy
Investment Co., Ltd. From April 2007 to January 2018, she served as an
executive vice president of ENN Group Co. Ltd* (3R EBERMDER AT,
a vice president of ENN Smart Energy Group* (¥1H4E8E/REE) and a
deputy general manager of ENN energy services Co., Ltd., etc. From August
2005 to April 2007, she worked as the manager of the Transportation Data
Analysis Center at the National Center of ITS Engineering & Technology*
(BREGERAEL TREMTAZEA D). Ms. Qin obtained a bachelor degree
(major in automatic control) and a master of business administration
from Tsinghua University in July 1994 and June 1997, respectively. Ms.
Qin obtained a master of science in civil engineering (major in intelligent
transportation) from the University of Virginia in May 2001.
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Mr. Liu Min, aged 49, who obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Economics
from Renmin University of China (FEARKE), is an executive
Director and the general manager of the Company. Mr. Liu has years of
experience in clean energy industry, financial management, investment
and financing management, asset acquisition, project development,
product marketing and business operations. Mr. Liu has served as the
vice president of the New Energy Chamber of the National Federation
of Industry and Commerce (2R TREBAEHELREE) and the
vice chairman of the 7th Hainan Provincial Federation of Industry and
Commerce (/BfE LEEEAE). Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Liu
has served as the finance manager and the general manager assistant of
Beijing Daxing Urban Construction Group (Qihong Industrial Corporation)
QbR K B R EERURE 24822 5)) from July 1995 to April 1999,
the assistant president, chief financial officer, the rotating president and
the executive president of Hanergy Holding Group Limited (ZgEFEAE
&), the chairman of Hanergy Yunnan Wulang River Basin Hydropower
Development Limited CZREEm AN AR KEREBRAR]), the
chairman of Nanfang Center of Hanergy Solar Power Manufacturing
Industry Group (ZEEENAEEZEEER A F L), the chairman of
Hanergy Corporation in the America region (ZREZIMNE I AR, the
chief executive officer and the chairman of Hanergy Global Solar Power
and Applications Group (Zg£Z I IAFEFAEE), the executive director
and deputy chairman of Hanergy Thin Film Power Group Limited (&
SR EEB AR AR, formerly known as Hanergy Solar Group Limited
CEBEKRIGREEE AR AR)), the shares of which were listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 00566), from May 1999 to September 2015.
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Ms. Li Tao, aged 50, is an executive Director and deputy general
manager of the Company. She joined the Group in April 2011 and is
responsible for the financial management of the Group. Ms. Li has years
of experience in corporate finance management. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Li had served as the head of finance of SDIC Henan Coal
Transportation & Sales Co., Ltd. Ms. Li obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
Economics from Henan University of Economics and Law in the PRC
in 1994, and obtained a master’s degree in applied accounting and
finance from Hong Kong Baptist University on 13 November 2014. Ms.
Li is a senior accountant and a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC.
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Non-executive Director

Ms. Chen Hong, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 30 July 2021. From May 2011 to August 2013,
Ms. Chen served as the financial controller (B175428%5) of Zhuhai Letong
Chemical Co., Ltd.* GREMLBILTRHER AT, the shares of which
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002319), and a
director of Xinghua Port Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 1990) (now known as
Zhuhai Harbour (Singapore) Company., Limited), the shares of which were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the
listing was withdrawn on 20 November 2020. Zhuhai Harbour (Singapore)
Company., Limited is now a subsidiary of Zhuhai Port Co., Ltd.* Ms. Chen
is currently the financial controller (B/7542&%) of Zhuhai Port Co., Ltd.*
(FREHBRD AR AR, the shares of which are listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000507). Zhuhai Port Co., Ltd. is a substantial
shareholder of our Company. Ms. Chen is also a director of Zhuhai Port (Hong
Kong) Development Co., Limited. Zhuhai Port (Hong Kong) Development
Co., Limited is a subsidiary of Zhuhai Port Co., Ltd.*, and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Ms. Chen is also a director of Jiangsu Xiugiang
Glasswork Co., Ltd.* (LERFERIEIETERMNBRRAR]), the shares of
which are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300160). Ms.
Chen, who obtained a bachelor degree (major in electronic materials and
components) from South China University of Technology (ZER5IE2 T AE) in
China in July 1995, is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jin, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 28 May 2018. Mr. Liu served as an assistant
professor at Anderson School of Management of the University of California,
Los Angeles from July 1999 to July 2006 and served as a tenured associate
professor from July 2006 to July 2008. He also served as an Economics
Instructor at the Department of Economics at Columbia University in 1998.
He obtained a doctoral degree in Business Administration from Columbia
Business School in 1999. Mr. Liu is currently the Deputy Dean of Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business and a professor of Accounting and
Finance. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in research on capital markets,
financial accounting and equity investment and is an internationally
renowned expert in the field of equity investment and securities analysis. Mr.
Liu's research has international influence and has been one of the authors
whose research achievements are most widely quoted in international
literatures among Chinese social science scholars in the past decade. He
is a long-term reviewer and editorial board member of various international
first-level academic journals. Mr. Liu has received the Outstanding Research
Award from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business, the Eric and “E”
Juline Faculty Excellence in Research Award, and the Barclays Global
Investors Best Paper Award.

Mr. Li Liuqging, aged 49, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Li has over 20 years of experience in accounting and auditing, and was
a senior manager and vice branch manager of Henan Branch of Ascenda
Certified Public Accountants Ltd. He is currently a partner in Zhongxingcai
Guanghua Certified Public Accountants LLP and in charge of its Henan
Branch. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in Accounting from Henan
University of Economics and Law in 1998 and a postgraduate certificate
majoring in Corporate Management from Tianjin University of Finance and
Economics in 2000. Mr. Li is a Certified Public Accountant on securities, a
Certified Public Valuer and a Certified Tax Agent in the PRC.
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Ms. Zhao Jun, aged 60, is an independent non-executive Director. Ms.
Zhao worked in the Post Office of Zhengzhou City and Postal Transportation
Bureau of Henan Province and served as a Senior Lecturer, Education
Officer and Occupational Testing Officer successively. She had been the
human resources director of Shanghai Shibang Machinery Co., Ltd. Beijing
Office and a supervisor of Beijing Kelushi Heavy Industrial Technology
Co., Ltd. Ms. Zhao obtained a bachelor’'s degree majoring in Agricultural
Machinery Repair from Agricultural Machinery Department of Henan
Agricultural University in the PRC in 1984.

Ms. Ou Yaqun, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 30 July 2021. Ms. Ou served as the chief
financial officer (B /&M E) of Greka Engineering & Technology Ltd (183
%IRRT AR A R)*) from February 2008 to September 2017; a budget
analyst of Xinyuan (China) Real Estate, Ltd. (&%t (FE)EZEER AT, a
subsidiary of Xinyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed
on New York Stock Exchange (stock code: XIN), from July 2007 to February
2008; the finance controller (Bf754885) of Henan Hejing Air Purification
Technology Co., Ltd* (AEZFERFREMAREEALT) (now known as
Henan Hejing Cleaning Technology Co., Ltd* CRAIE# FZFRMARETA
@])) from July 1998 to June 2007; and a finance supervisor (1 #42% 42
BR48%) of The Fifth Research and Design Institute of Nuclear Industry* (#%
TEFEAMFERTFT) from July 1992 to June 1998. Ms. Ou is currently the
deputy general manager (2I424¢32) of Zhengzhou Qidi Donglong Technology
Development Co., Ltd.* (EB/NE @R BERHZZER BB A A]). Ms. Ou obtained
a bachelor degree (major in accountancy) from Hengyang Engineering
Institute* (7% TE2F%) (now known as University of South China (FIZEAE))
in June 1992. Ms. Ou, who obtained a master degree of accounting from
Henan University of Economics and Law (] B 81 &S BUA A E) in June 2010,
is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Senior Management

Mr. Xu Weidong (72f3), aged 53, is a deputy general manager of the
Company. He is responsible for the management of the Group’s new energy
business division. Mr. Xu has accumulated 31 years of experience in the
management of gas enterprises. After joining the Group in May 2011, he
successively acted as general manager of Jilin Zhongji Dadi Gas Group Co.,
Ltd. (FEMEFHF AR REEERAF]) and general manager of Xuchang
Tian Lun Gas Limited (FFEmXGIMBABR A F]). Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Xu worked at Jilin Zhongji Dadi Gas Group Co., Ltd. as general
manager. Mr. Xu obtained a diploma in marketing from Wuhan University of
Technology. Mr. Xu obtained a senior economist qualification certificate of
PRC.

Mr. Zhang Linxiong (5R#), aged 55, is a deputy general manager of the
Company. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2011, and he is responsible
for the management of the Group’s Security and Management Center. Mr.
Zhang has accumulated 33 years of experience in the management of gas
enterprises. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked at Baiyin Natural
Gas Co., Ltd. (HSRTMARBREMLAT) as executive deputy general
manager. Mr. Zhang obtained a diploma in water supply and drainage from
Changchun College of Architecture (REZERZFERIER) in 1990.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond, aged 60, is the company secretary. Mr. Tam has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director of Vision Fame
International Holding Limited (stock code: 1315), CNQC International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1240), Meigu Technology Holding Group
Limited (stock code: 8349) and Kingland Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1751) since December 2011, September 2012, January 2017 and
May 2020, respectively. He was also the company secretary of Branding
China Group Limited (now known as BC Technology Group Limited) (stock
code: 863) from April 2013 to April 2018. Mr. Tam was an independent
non-executive director of Li Bao Ge Group Limited (stock code: 1869) from
June 2016 to February 2020. Mr. Tam obtained a bachelor degree of arts
in Accounting with Computing from the University of Kent at Canterbury,
United Kingdom in July 1985. He is an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tam has
been appointed as the finance director of an auction company in Hong Kong
since December 2011.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2022 together with the audited consolidated financial statements
to the shareholders.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is an investment holding company whose subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the investment, operation and management of
gas pipeline connections, transportation, distribution and sales of gas,
construction and operation of gas filling stations, and production and sales
of LNG in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Further details of the
principal business and subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 11
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review for the year ended 31 December 2022, and
discussion about the Group’s future business development, are set out in the
section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 11 to 15 and the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 20 to 29 of this
annual report.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group’s financial position, operating results
and business outlook may be subject to many risks and uncertainties directly
or indirectly relating to the business of the Group, and have put in place the
relevant policies to ensure continuous identification and management of the
adverse impacts such risks might have on the Group. The major risks and
uncertainties currently facing by the Group are set out below.

Finance risks

The Group may be exposed to finance risks including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and liquidity risk. Management of the Group monitors
market changes and will adopt various means to mitigate such risks as and
when appropriate.
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Business risk

The performance of major business of the Group is subject to many factors,
including but not limited to overall market and economic conditions, and
the performance of property, industry and commerce market where the
Group operates its business. The Group will adjust its development plan in
a timely manner in line with the development of its local consumers and in
accordance with the relevant policies.

Growth strategy

The Group's business growth objectives will be achieved through internal
growth, strategic investments and acquisitions. In the event of change in
market condition, insufficient funds generated from operation or other
reason, the Group will consider delaying, revising or abandoning its growth
strategy in certain aspects.

Human resources risk

The Group may be subject to the risk of loss and recruitment of staff
and talents with requisite skills. The Group will provide competitive
remuneration packages and career development plans to suitable candidates
and employees based on market standard, individual experience and
individual performance. The Group will also recognise and encourage
employees’ contribution to the Group through performance appraisal system
and adoption of share option scheme.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has adopted the relevant environmental protection standards
in the PRC, formulated occupational health and environmental protection
measures, and established regulated operation procedures to ensure
compliance with the laws and regulations relating to environmental
protection.

As a gas supplier, the Group is committed to environmental protection
and improving air pollution. In 2022, the Group’s urban gas operation and
transmission business distributed a total of 2,671 million m® of natural gas.
Based on the gas sales volume, the Group helped reduce emissions from
approximately 4.452 million tons of coal.

In its day-to-day business operation, the Group continues to promote green
measures and improve employees’ awareness of environmental protection
and advocates the concept of recycling for use. It uses energy-saving lamps
for lighting and requires employees to turn off the lights before leaving office
so that no lights will be left always on. It requires turning off the faucet
after using to avoid water waste. It promotes electronic office and expands
the functions of our OA online office system to improve use efficiency. It
encourages double-sided printing to reduce resource waste so as to reduce
the impacts on the environment.

The Group will review its environmental protection work on a regular basis
and adopt more environmental protection measures in respect of business
operation to strengthen the environmental sustainability.

IMPORTANT RELATIONSHIPS WITH
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has always considered employees as essential for its continuous
business growth, pays great attention to the safety of employee’s working
environment, and has in place health and safety systems and measures.
The Group also organises induction and on-the-job trainings on a regular
basis based on the needs of employee position and career development.
In addition, the Group has established a fair and effective performance
appraisal system and incentive plan to motivate employees to exhibit their
talents and achieve performance objectives.
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With customer needs in mind and by adhering to the principle of “putting
customers above all else”, the Group has developed a customer service
guidebook and customer complaint management measures, and continues
to provide customers with value-added services in order to improve customer
satisfaction.

The Group selectively chooses suppliers by setting out requirements for
suppliers participating in its public tender in areas such as experience,
reputation and production capacity, and assesses successful bidders on
a half-yearly basis. Currently, the Group has established long-term good
cooperation with many suppliers.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s business is mainly conducted by the Company’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China, and the Company is listed on the Stock Exchange. As such,
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report,
the Group has been in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Hong Kong, such as the Environmental Protection Law, the Air
Pollution Control Law, the Labour Law, the Labour Contract Law, the Special
Provisions on Labour Protection of Female Workers and the Production
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the annual results of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on the last page of this report. The summary does not form part of
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

In order to thank the Shareholders for their support, the Group has
established a long-term steady dividend policy. Pursuant to the resolutions
of the Board dated 30 March 2023, the Board recommended the payment
of the Final Dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 of RMB11.00
cents per share (the “Final Dividend”) (2021: RMB14.57 cents per share).
Together with an interim dividend of RMB7.35 cents per share which had
been paid, total dividend paid for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
RMB18.35 cents per share.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

The Final Dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollars on or about 21 June
2023 (Wednesday) to the Shareholders whose name appear on the register
of members of the Company on 7 June 2023 (Wednesday), subject to
the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Meanwhile, in order to support the Company’s development, Mr. Zhang
Yingcen, being the controlling shareholder of the Company, agreed with the
undistributed 2022 final dividend of RMB18,829 thousand for the time
being. Such matter will be confirmed before the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Further announcement will be made by the Company in relation
to the exact amount of the Final Dividend in Hong Kong dollars when the
conversion rate for Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars to be adopted has been
determined by the Board.

RESERVES

Details of movements of reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in Notes 25, 27 and 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the distributable reserves of the Company was
RMB341,096,000 being the share premium.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographies of Directors and senior management of the Group are set
out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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EENRREEN DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
HIEZZT-—F+-HA=+—HEXME The Directors from 31 December 2022 to the date of this report were as
REAEST ¢ follows:
HITES Executive Directors
SOmS I E (EE) Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman)
BERR A Mr. Xian Zhenyuan
= Rt Ms. Qin Ling
(M—ZE-_=ZF=Z A+~ HEMD) (resigned on 16 March 2023)
2 R&EE Mr. Liu Min
TELT Ms. Li Tao
FEITESE Non-executive Director
[ Ms. Chen Hong
BYKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
2 ks Mr. Liu Jin
THRESLE Mr. Li Liuging
W OEzt Ms. Zhao Jun
BRI Rt Ms. Ou Yaqun

ARAFIEABSMNEERSMEEEZHE  The Company has maintained appropriate directors and senior management
EVEENEAEEERMERE - WEHE  liability insurance policies for all Directors and members of senior
FERBZREE - management and reviews the coverage on an annual basis.

FEFEHRITESEEHARRRFIZAH=F Al non-executive Directors entered into service contracts with the Company
RREEL  ER—FAZELAS DR —E  for a term of three years and subject to termination by either party upon
ASEEEBMT AL o giving no less than one month’s prior written notice to the other party.

BE-_ZT-_—F+-HA=+—H &KX" Asof 31 December 2022, none of the Directors had a service contract with
FEEMEAARRFT LN —FANIMAEZN  the Company which is not determinable within one year without payment of
BEOCEEHERIN BRI &£1E 2 RS compensation, other than statutory compensation.

# o
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under “RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS” below, none
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries had entered into any contract of
significance in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, as at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into by
the Company or existed during the year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. Li Liuging and Ms. Zhao Jun has served the Company for more
than twelve years. As an independent non-executive Director with extensive
experience and knowledge and in-depth understanding of the Company’s
operations and business, each of Mr. Li Liuging and Ms. Zhao Jun has
expressed objective views and given independent guidance to the Company
over the past years. The Board considered that their long service would not
affect their exercise of independent judgment and was satisfied that each of
Mr. Li Liuging and Ms. Zhao Jun has the required integrity and experience
to continue fulfilling the role of an independent non-executive Director and
consider each of Mr. Li Liuging and Ms. Zhao Jun to be independent.

The Board of the Company confirmed that it has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation of his
or her independence and considered, based on the confirmations received,
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors remained independent during the year.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Directors and senior management of the Company receive compensation
in the form of fees, salaries, allowances, benefits in kind or discretionary
bonuses relating to the performance of the Group. The Group also reimburses
the Directors and senior management for expenses which are necessarily
and reasonably incurred for providing services to the Group or discharging
their duties in relation to the operation of the Group. When reviewing
and determining the specific remuneration packages for the executive
Directors and senior management, the Remuneration Committee takes into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, employment elsewhere in
the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid individuals are set out in
Note 9 to consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")),
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (“Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company (“Shares”):

HARAT
I RT
BRAHEEA
Bkt
¥EHER Approximate
A BREOEE percentage
B Rt REE Number of  of the total issued
EENE Capacity/Nature Number of underlying share capital
Name of director of interest Shares held Shares held of the Company
FomEs A ([5REED) LA E R (FIEEL) 555,899,300 — 55.04%
Mr. Zhang Yingcen (“Mr. Zhang”) Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 1)
TS (MIFE2) 5,722,500 — 0.57%
Interest of spouse (Note 2)
HARIR S A ([EEAE D) EnEEA 9,000,000 — 0.89%
Mr. Xian Zhenyuan (“Mr. Xian") Beneficial owner
REfhEE R (i 3) 12,829,500 — 1.27%
Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 3)
e EnEEA 3,000,000 — 0.30%
Ms. Li Tao Beneficial owner
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Notes:

Gold Shine Development Limited is interested in 471,171,300 Shares through its
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Tian Lun Group Limited. The entire issued share
capital of Gold Shine Development Limited is owned as to 60% by Mr. Zhang.
Therefore, Mr. Zhang is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares and
underlying Shares held by Tian Lun Group Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

Mr. Zhang wholly owns Chequers Development Limited, which is interested
in 63,728,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is also deemed or taken to
be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares held by Chequers
Development Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

Mr. Zhang wholly owns Kind Edge Limited, which is interested in 21,000,000
Shares. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the aforesaid
21,000,000 Shares.

Mr. Zhang is the director of Gold Shine Development Limited, Tian Lun Group
Limited, Chequers Development Limited and Kind Edge Limited.

Ms. Sun the spouse of Mr. Zhang holds 5,722,500 Shares through her
individual security account. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the Shares held by Ms. Sun for the purpose of the SFO.

Mr. Xian beneficially owns the entire equity interests of Pleasant New Limited,
which in turn owns 12,829,500 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Xian is deemed or
taken to be interested in all the Shares held by Pleasant New Limited for the
purposes of the SFO. Mr. Xian is the sole director of Pleasant New Limited.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, the underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporation” above and the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company or their associates to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2022, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO, the following persons (except the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or the underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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EART
ERITRAE
BMAOBDL

FristER8 Approximate
BB percentage of
B REmtE iR EE Number of issued share
HE LB Capacity/Nature Number of underlying capital of
Name of Interest Shares held Shares held the Company
RimEEBER AT (MHFE1) BEEAA 471,171,300 — 46.65%
Tian Lun Group Limited (Note 1)  Beneficial owner
TEERARAF (MEL) Pz A E e 471,171,300 — 46.65%
Gold Shine Development Interest of controlled
Limited (Note 1) corporation
RRERARAA EnaA 63,728,000 — 6.31%
Chequers Development Limited Beneficial owner
RAER 2+ EmfEmn 5,722,500 — 0.57%
(ME2)([F2zt)) Beneficial interest
Ms. Sun Yanxi Ao (Rt = 555,899,300 — 55.04%
(Note 2) (“Ms. Sun”) Interest of spouse
WEERNDEBRAR FFr 422 )25 [ A 2 120,000,000 — 11.88%
Zhuhai Port Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled
corporation
WEEERABRERAR EnlaA 120,000,000 — 11.88%
Zhuhai Port (Hong Kong) Beneficial owner
Development Co., Limited
mEE EnlEA 69,280,759 — 6.86%

Mr. Koo Yuen Kim
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

Notes:

(1)  The entire issued share capital of Tian Lun Group Limited is held by Gold Shine
Development Limited. Tian Lun Group Limited owns 471,171,300 Shares.
Therefore, Gold Shine Development Limited is deemed or taken to be interested
in all the Shares and underlying Shares held by Tian Lun Group Limited for the
purposes of the SFO.

(2)  Gold Shine Development Limited is owned as to 60% by Mr. Zhang. Together
with Note (1) above, Mr. Zhang is deemed or taken to be interested in all the
Shares and the underlying Shares held by Tian Lun Group Limited for the
purposes of the SFO.

Chequers Development Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang and owns
63,728,000 Shares. Mr. Zhang is also deemed or taken to be interested in all
the Shares and underlying Shares held by Chequers Development Limited for
the purposes of the SFO.

Mr. Zhang wholly owns Kind Edge Limited, which is interested in 21,000,000
Shares. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the aforesaid
21,000,000 Shares.

Ms. Sun is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, and therefore Ms. Sun is deemed or taken
to be interested in all the Shares and the underlying Shares in which Mr. Zhang
is interested and may be obliged to purchase respectively for the purpose of the
SFO. Ms. Sun holds 5,722,500 Shares through her individual security account.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors were not
aware of any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares,
debentures of the Company which falls to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) on 13 October 2010. On 12 July 2018, the Company granted a
total of 30,000,000 ordinary shares of nominal value of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company in accordance with the Old Scheme. For
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company 12 July 2018.
The Old Scheme expired on 12 October 2020. Upon expiry of the Old
Scheme, no further options will be granted thereunder; however, the rules of
the Old Scheme will remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary
to give effect to the exercise of option granted prior to its expiry or otherwise
as may be required in accordance with the rules of the Old Scheme. The
share options under the Old Scheme were cancelled with effect from 20
April 2022.

The following table discloses the movements in the Company’s share options
under the Old Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022:

R=B==%
HEHN T2A=+-8
RIBZZF  HEHRRY BRTE RN HRATR
-A-8 Granted Exercised Lapsed/  Outstanding
As at during the during the cancelled as at
ARA 1 January reporting reporting  duringthe 31 December 4R TERE F: 3
Grantees 2022 period period reporting period 2022 Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price
6,000,000 — — 6,000,000 — ZE-\$tAtzH —E_-5rA+ZA 9.12%%
12 July 2018 BT tAT-H HK$9.12
12 July 2021 - 11 July 2022
6,000,000 — 6,000,000 — ZZ-\BtAfzH T -ftA+ZA 9.12%%
12 July 2018 225t AT-H HK$9.12
12 July 2021 - 11 July 2022
6,000,000 - 6,000,000 — ZE-\BtAtzH “E--5tA+CH 9.128
12 July 2018 E2ZCCFEAT-H HK$9.12
12 July 2021 - 11 July 2022
@zt
Total 18,000,000 18,000,000
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

In order to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional
incentive to them and to promote the success of the business of the Group,
the Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) on 28 October 2020, pursuant to which, The Board is authorized
to, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it may think fit, grant
any employee (full-time or part-time), director, consultant or adviser of any
member of the Group, or any substantial shareholder of any member of the
Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business
partner or service provider of any member of the Group, options to subscribe
for such number of Shares as the Board may determine in accordance with
the terms and price of the New Scheme. The New Scheme has become
unconditional on 5 November 2020 and will be effective for ten years
commencing from 5 November 2020, and it is subject to early termination
according to the terms set out in the New Scheme. An offer for the grant
of options must be accepted within 7 days inclusive of the day on which
such offer was made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.
The Subscription Price of a Share in respect of any particular option granted
under the New Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board and
notified to a participant and shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant of the option, which must be a Business Day; (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s
daily quotations sheets for the five Business Days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the
date of grant of the option, provided that in the event of fractional prices,
the Subscription Price per Share shall be rounded upwards to the nearest
whole cent.
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The Company has the right to issue share options, provided that the total
number of shares that may be issued upon the exercise of all options granted
under the New Scheme must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the
date of approval of the New Scheme. The Company may refresh such limit
at any time but is subject to the shareholders’approval and the issuance of
a circular in compliance with the Listing Rules. The aggregate number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time. No options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme or
any other share option schemes of the Company, if this will result in such
30% limit being exceeded. As at the date of this report, the total number
of Shares which may be issued under the New Scheme was 100,361,510
shares, representing 9.94% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this report. The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to any participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) under the New Scheme, in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the New
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board of the Company may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to
the provisions of early termination thereof.

From the effective date of the New Scheme to the date of this report, there
were no share options granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
New Scheme, nor any outstanding share options. A summary of the principal
terms of the New Scheme was set out in the circular of the Company dated
8 October 2020.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions entered into by the Company and
subsisting during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 35
to the consolidated financial statements. Such related party transactions
do not fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, during the year ended 31 December 2022
and as at the date of this report, the Group had no material acquisition,
disposal or significant investments.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The articles of association of the Company provides that every Director
shall be entitled to be of the Company indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has adopted and maintained appropriate insurance to
provide protection for possible legal action against its directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2022, sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 19.19% of the turnover of the Group, in which sales to the
largest customer accounted for approximately 9.97%, while purchases from
the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 36.59%
of the purchases of the Group in which purchases from the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 12.16%. To the best of the Board’s knowledge
having made all enquiries with all Directors, neither the Directors, their
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), nor any Shareholders
owning more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during
the year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company purchased certain
of its shares on the Stock Exchange which were subsequently cancelled by
the Company. The details of such share repurchase for the year ended 31
December 2022 are summarised below:

B EBERHEE SEHROEE EBEaROERER PRt ER
Number of shares  Number of shares Repurchase price of

Month repurchased cancelled shares per share Price paid
BS B b

Highest Lowest In total

BT BT BT

HK$ HK$ HK$

—E-~F—HA 24,916,000 24,916,000 9.15 8.15 213,911,210.34

—FE-FNA 2,730,000

ZE-FhA 18,320,500

—E-_F+A 3,134,000
October 2022

—E-_F+—A8 1,312,000
November 2022

—E-—&F+—A 1,765,000
December 2022

MR-ZZE - —F— FiEREAY24,916,000 I
BHER B —FE = A5 -

RZEBE-_—_FNREZZ-_—_F+_-1"

KRB EETHER 27,261,500 M 15+ 3%
SRR A o

RRRRIERERDE 2022FFEHE o

— 3.58 3.44 9,633,735.39
— 3.78 3.38 66,314,526.42
— 3.54 2.77 9,749,204.12
— 3.47 2.78 4,110,881.73
— 3.89 3.33 6,534,269.15

The 24,916,000 shares repurchased in January 2022 were cancelled in
February 2022.

From August 2022 to December 2022, the Company repurchased a total of
27,261,500 shares, which have not been cancelled yet.
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The shares of the Company were repurchased by the Company in 2022
pursuant to the mandate granted by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting held on May 2022, for the purpose of benefiting the Company and
its shareholders as a whole by increasing the net asset value and earnings
per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had
purchased, redeemed or sold any of listed securities of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no relevant provisions for pre-emptive rights in the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the public float of the Company is not less than 25% as prescribed under
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has implemented the code provisions set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. The Company has been in compliance with the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.
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AUDITOR

The Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022. A resolution will be
proposed in the forthcoming annual general meeting for the re-appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor.

For and on behalf of the Board of
Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited
Chairman

Zhang Yingcen

30 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving high
corporate governance standards to enhance corporate performance,
transparency and accountability, earning the confidence of Shareholders
and the public. The Board strives to adhere to the principles of corporate
governance and adopt sound corporate governance practices to meet the
legal and commercial standards by focusing on areas such as internal
control, fair disclosure and accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with all code provisions set out in
the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the year
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Upon specific enquiries of all
Directors, each of them confirmed that they strictly complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors

As at the date of this annual report, the Board of the Company comprised
(i) Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman), Mr. Xian Zhenyuan, Mr. Liu Min and
Ms. Li Tao as executive Directors; (ii) Ms. Chen Hong as a non-executive
Director; (iii) Mr. Liu Jin, Mr. Li Liuging, Ms. Zhao Jun and Ms. Ou Yaqun
as independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Qin Ling has resigned as an
executive Director on 16 March 2023. The biographies of all the Directors
are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report. All executive Directors of the Company have sufficient
experiences for their positions to effectively carry out their duties.
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The Company has appointed four independent non-executive Directors and
at least one of them has accounting expertise to assist the management in
formulating development strategies of the Group, and to ensure that the
preparation of the financial reports and other mandatory reports by the
Board are in strict adherence to appropriate systems in order to protect the
interests of the Shareholders and the Company. Each independent non-
executive Director has confirmed in accordance with the guidelines specified
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules that they are independent of the Company,
and the Company considers that they were independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among the members of the Board, and in
particular, between the chairman of the Board and the chief executive of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DUTIES

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out in the amended code provision D.3.1. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Board had reviewed and discussed the corporate
governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the effectiveness of
the corporate governance policy of the Group.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All appointed Directors received comprehensive, formal training on the
first occasion of their appointments and were ensured to have a proper
understanding of the businesses and development of the Group and that
they were fully aware of their responsibilities under statute and common
law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements and other regulatory
requirements and the business and governance policies of the Company.
To facilitate the Directors to discharge their responsibilities, they are
continuously updated with regulatory developments, business and market
changes and the strategic development of the Group. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Yingcen,
Mr. Xian Zhenyuan, Ms. Qin Ling, Mr. Liu Min, Ms. Li Tao, Ms. Chen Hong,
Mr. Liu Jin, Ms. Zhao Jun, Mr. Li Liuging and Ms. Ou Yaqun, have
participated in a training course on the PRC Company Law organized by the
PRC legal adviser to the Company, to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills and provided their training records to the Company.
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SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as practicable in all other
cases, an agenda accompanied by the relevant Board papers are sent to all
Directors in a timely manner and at least three days before the specified
date of a Board meeting. All Directors are entitled to have access to Board
papers and related materials.

THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of the
Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of the Company
and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the Shareholders
as a whole while taking into account the interests of other stakeholders. The
Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting forth matters that require
the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board
is also responsible for making decisions of formulating the development
targets and strategies, material acquisitions and disposals, material capital
investment, dividend policies, the appointment and removal of directors
and senior management, remuneration policies and other major operation
and financial issues of the Company. The powers and duties of the Board
include convening general meetings and reporting the Board’'s work at
general meetings, implementing resolutions passed at general meetings,
determining business plans and investment plans, formulating annual
budget and final accounts, formulating proposals for profit distributions
and for the increase or reduction of registered capital as well as exercising
other powers, functions and duties as conferred by the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company. The daily business operations and
administrative functions of the Group are delegated to the management.

Code provision C.5.1 of the Code stipulates that the Board shall convene
meetings regularly with at least four board meetings every year (approximately
once a quarter).
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The Board of the Company held 8 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2022.

HE T BITERIE
Attendance/

5= Directors Meetings Held
BITES Executive Directors
FREEAE (EE) Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman) 8/8
BIRR A Mr. Xian Zhenyuan 8/8
= kut Ms. Qin Ling 8/8
2 RiE&E Mr. Liu Min 8/8
F BuL Ms. Li Tao 8/8
FHITES Non-executive Director
PRzt Ms. Chen Hong 8/8
BIYFHTES Independent non-executive Directors
2 x4 Mr. Liu Jin 8/8
O OEat Ms. Zhao Jun 8/8
TERERE Mr. Li Liuging 8/8
BREp Rzt Ms. Ou Yaqun 8/8
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AEEERRGERALBESARARMN
HEENRNRFIRESTEREFTENTE
o AEREEE B RSB RISCEIRR o

In general, the notices of meetings of the Board of the Company are sent
to all Directors through email and fax before the dates of meetings. In
order to enable the Directors to consider the issues to be approved in the
meetings with adequate time, the notices of regular Board meetings will be
sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to the convening of the meeting
while prior notification of the convening of ad hoc Board meetings will be
made to Directors in due course. In order to provide all Directors with a full
picture of the latest operating conditions of the Company, the management
representatives of the Company will report the latest operating conditions
of the Company and the implementation of the issues resolved in the last
Board meeting to all the Directors before the convening of the meeting.
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COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD

The Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and Environmental, Social and Governance Committee were
established under the Board. These committees perform supervision and
control of the Company based on their written terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make recommendations
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor, to
review financial statements and making recommendations on the financial
reporting, and to review and supervise the financial reporting and internal
control procedures of the Group. The Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Liuging, Ms. Zhao Jun
and Ms. Ou Yaqun. Mr. Li Liuging is the chairman of the Audit Committee
and has the appropriate professional qualifications. The Audit Committee
shall meet at least twice a year.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s internal control during the
financial year ended 31 December 2022. The Group’s final results for the
year ended 31 December 2022 had been reviewed by the Audit Committee
before submission to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee had
also reviewed this annual report, and confirmed that this annual report is
complete and accurate, and complies with all relevant rules and regulations,
including but not limited to the Listing Rules. There is no disagreement
between the Directors and the Audit Committee regarding the selection and
appointment of the external auditor. The Audit Committee held 2 meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

ERZEEHEZERLEERNT The attendance of the members of the Audit Committee at the meetings is
as follows:

HEBITEERRE
Attendance/
£8 Member Meetings held
FRERE (L/E) Mr. Li Liuging (Chairman) 2/2
M OEAat Ms. Zhao Jun 2/2
BRgRBf A0 Ms. Ou Yaqun 2/2
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Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors and
management of the Board’s succession, to ensure that the candidates to
be nominated as Directors are experienced, high caliber individuals. The
Nomination Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Ms. Zhao Jun and Mr. Liu Jin, and Mr. Zhang Yingcen, an executive
Director and the chairman of the Board, who is also the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once every year.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2022 for reviewing the structure of the Board, size and
composition of the Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and other related matters. The attendance of the

BrEgRBFEENT members of the Nomination Committee at the meetings is as follows:
HEBITEERH
Attendance/
£8 Member Meetings held
TR E (EE) Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman) 1/1
i Bt Ms. Zhao Jun 1/1
2 k& Mr. Liu Jin 11
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Board Diversity

The Stock Exchange introduced certain amendments to the Code set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which are effective from 1 September
2013 in relation to the Board diversity. In order to achieve the diversity
of members of the Board, the Board will take into account a number
of factors including gender, age, cultural and educational background,
and professional experience. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee had been amended to set out its responsibility for overseeing the
implementation of the Board diversity policy. The Group has adopted the
policy on Board diversity which is summarized as follows:

(1) Election of members of the Board shall be based on a series of
diversified bases, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; and

(2) The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
diversity policy in order to ensure that the policy produces desirable
results.

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company has met the
gender diversity requirement.

Gender diversity at workforce levels (including or senior management)
is disclosed in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Company.

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (i) reviewing the
remuneration package of each Director and member of senior management,
and making recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment
thereof; and (ii) reviewing and evaluating the performance of individual
executive Directors for determining the amount of bonus (if any) payable to
them.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Zhao Jun and Ms. Ou Yaqun, and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Zhang Yingcen. Ms. Zhao Jun is the Chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least
once every year for reviewing the remuneration policies of the Company.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31
December 2022.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the ESG Committee include: (i) reviewing key ESG
trends as well as risks and opportunities ; and (ii)reviewing the annual ESG
report.

The ESG Committee comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr. Xian
Zhenyuan and Mr. Liu Min, and one independent non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Liu Jin. Mr. Xian Zhenyuan is the chairman of the ESG
Committee. The ESG Committee shall meet at least once every year.

The ESG Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended 31 December
2022.

REZ@ZLEEMT -
HEBTEERY
Attendance/
£B8 Member Committee Meetings held
AR () Mr. Xian Zhenyuan (Chairman) 1/1
2 REA Mr. Liu Min 1/1
2 kA Mr. Liu Jin 1/1
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The attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee at the
meetings is as follows:

HEBITERRE

Attendance/

£8 Member Meetings held
HEZLT (FE) Ms. Zhao Jun (Chairlady) 1/1
FORE LA Mr. Zhang Yingcen 1/1
BRERAf Lt Ms. Ou Yaqun 1/1
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors entered into service contracts with the Company
for a term of three years and subject to termination by either party upon
giving no less than one month’s prior written notice to the other party.

None of the Directors of the Company who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company not terminable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, at least one third of the Directors
shall retire from office by rotation. Each Director shall retire at least once
every three years and such Directors shall include those who have assumed
the longest term of office since their last appointment or re-election.
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GENERAL MEETINGS

For the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, the Board held
the annual general meeting and the extraordinary general meeting on 27
May 2022 and 18 October 2022 respectively. The attendance record of the
Directors is as follows:

HEBITRRAGRE
Attendance/

== Directors General Meetings held
PITES Executive Directors
FREEAE (EE) Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman) -2
SRR 5T A Mr. Xian Zhenyuan 2/2
RBRTT(R=ZZT=_=F=A+/B&1) Ms. Qin Ling (resigned on 16 March 2023) 2/2
IR STHE Mr. Liu Min 212
FEZL Ms. Li Tao 2/2
FHITES Non-executive Director
RRUT 224 Ms. Chen Hong 2/2
BIYFHTES Independent non-executive Directors
EEb S Mr. Liu Jin 2/2
THENLE Mr. Li Liuging 2/2
HEZL Ms. Zhao Jun 2/2
I GHE 3o Ms. Ou Yaqun 2/2
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The Company’s external auditor attended the annual general meeting held
on 27 May 2022 and the extraordinary general meeting held on 18 October
2022.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The auditor to the Company acknowledges its reporting responsibilities
in the auditor’s report on the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may raise significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, therefore the Directors
continue to adopt the going concern approach in preparing financial
statements.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s audit expenses
amounted to RMB3,550,000. There were no significant non-audit service
assignments performed by the auditor of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining operation of the effective internal
control system of the Group. The Board performs annual review of the
effectiveness of all material controls of the internal control system, including
financial supervision, operating supervision, compliance supervision and
risk management system through the Audit Committee.
personnel are responsible for assisting the Audit Committee in reviewing
the effectiveness of the internal control system. Internal review personnel
perform internal review and other relevant review regularly. They report
the review results to the Audit Committee and provide the members of the
committee with advice to optimize internal control for the Audit Committee’s
consideration. During the year, internal review personnel mainly reviewed
the major risk management systems based on the internal control advice in
the report formulated by external audit institutions, and reported the review
results to the Board. With the support of the Board, the internal review
personnel carried out improvement for the operation of the Group. The Board
had conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Company and its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2022.

Internal review
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PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one
or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, no
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Articles of Association, the number of

Shareholders necessary for putting forward a proposal at general meetings is
as follows:

(i

=

at least 2 Shareholders entitled to vote at any general meeting; or

(ii) any Shareholder or Shareholders representing no less than one-tenth
of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the right to
vote at the general meeting; or

(iii)  any Shareholder or Shareholders holding Shares conferring a right to
vote at the general meeting being Shares on which an aggregate sum
has been paid up equal to no less than one-tenth of the total sum
paid up on all the Shares conferring that right.
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Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, no person, other than
a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless
notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the head office or at the registration office no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such general meeting and the minimum length of the period during
which such notices to the Company may be given will be at least seven days.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director are posted on the website of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group has already set up the Investor Relations Department to be
responsible for investor relations management work and established various
channels for the communication with investor, including direct line and mail
so as to ensure smooth communication between the Company and investors.
In addition, in order to provide a full picture of the business development
and prospects of the Company to the media, securities analysts, fund
managers and investors, the Company held telephone conferences and
luncheons for them, organized visits to the Company from time to time and
answered their inquires in a timely manner.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with its
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage their
participation. The Company will ensure that there are separate resolutions
for separate issues proposed at the general meetings. The Company will
continue to maintain an open and effective investor communication policy
and to update investors on relevant information on the Group’s business in a
timely manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirement.
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The Company reviews its shareholders’ communication policy on an annual
basis to ensure its effectiveness. After the review of the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy, the Company is of
the view that the policy is effective in providing channels for shareholders to
communicate their views on various matters affecting the Company and for
the Company to solicit and understand the views of the shareholders.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING
SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time put their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing through the contact details as follows:

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited

4th Floor, Tian Lun Group Building

No.6 Huang He East Road

Zheng Dong Xin District

Zhengzhou City, Henan Province

The PRC

Email: ir@tianlungas.com

Telephone and Fax No.: 86 371 6370 7151

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond,
and his biography is set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

The company secretary of the Company Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond has
been informed of the requirement of the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
and he confirmed that he had attained no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2022.

MATERIAL CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

There were no material changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the Shareholders of Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), which are set out
on pages 85 to 271, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

SR AR E T + TR A 1A
Mk : +852 2289 8888 * 4 : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwehk.com

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Revenue recognition
° Goodwill impairment assessment
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Key Audit Matter

WA FERR

Revenue recognition

ALH A HITEIRRMEES -

Refer to Note 5 in the consolidated financial statements.

ERERTEREARRMAGTHNA/ARE75.4318T - *
ERRRMREEREY - TIRRR KRR

During the year, the Group recognised revenue of
approximately RMB7,543 million, majority of which was
related to sales of gas and engineering construction service.

BYZEEHRE (F)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BT AR IR R ET R
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HERBAME - RAIRITOREFBE
Our audit procedures in relation to revenue
recognition included:

AP R AN BT A TR B A\ B R AR ) P R A2 1R
M2 BBERMEATHEEMENEEMEH LK
A EHENREENYEREERANGBENREE -
FHEEARE R EFRR

We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of revenue
recognition and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of subjectivity, the degree
of complexity and the degree of susceptibility to
management bias.

® Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

75



BYZEEMHRE (F)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

i
pwe nik

FAsEEt FIR BT AR R E =R

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Revenue recognition (continued)

HIMAEERES  BREXFIERKR  WARRIRAE HERVBAHEEWAME  BRMUBVITHEERTE

B LIE - HEBRIINTEEERENZES - HEERE

IR EEERIETE - ZBWADBES - KWERREERZH  Our specific procedures in relation to the recognition

ERAF  BRARAF  BEAFPRIXEAR - of revenue derived from sales of gas included:

In relation to sales of gas, significant effort was spent on

auditing the revenue recognised due to the large volume ®  FH{EFLRIE ISP B S EREIFENTT A RUE

of transactions. The sales price was controlled by the PRC e Evaluating and testing the design and the

regulators, and sales volume was determined by reading operating effectiveness of internal controls;

meters at the period end. The revenue was highly dispersed

and derived from a large number of customers in residential, ERMER AL IS FTRER W AR Facss s

vehicles, commercial and industrial sectors. JERIE R - B - WERECH IR & WIE SRR K
HEITRE AR

° Testing, on a sample basis, the transaction

records that revenue was recognised to the
underlying documents, such as invoices and
meter reading records, and evidence of cash
receipts; and

o  HRBREHAENETEENEHEEREMENH
EENERBREETHYE  FAEREFETS
BRER -

o Assessing if any unreasonable difference by
comparing the total gas sales volume per
management with the total gas purchase volume
per suppliers during the reporting period.
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Revenue recognition (continued)

HRIRRRERRBEES  WARBRRSABRRL2ED @ﬁ%lﬁi§&%%%WAﬁm BFIETH A
TR EREER - WA BZBTS 02T EE i)itfzs%ii;ic procedures in relation to the recognition
HE RRAMBEE RARAFTEE - IBREFEEEEEH of revenue derived from engineering construction
B o service included:

In relation to revenue derived from engineering construction . ST S P BRI B SR S RN ST R

service, it was recognised according to the progress towards o Evaluating and testing the design and operating

complete satisfaction of relevant performance obligation of effectiveness of internal controls;

the rellated contracts. Revenue was.measured with reference | ERMENTTE - BRRERES > RHA R
to estimates of the contract costs incurred to date and the EBEEASRARBUWA - LEBEHEASRBLK
total estimated contract costs, which involved management iﬁ’l SHEHENER  MEFHNEESRK
judgements.

° Testing, on a sample basis, the total contract
revenue by examining the contracts with
customers and invoices and the total estimated
contract cost to the underlying documents, such
as the approved budgeted contract cost;

s [FAMKNRZE BBAREEMHERERDE
HAANEENGEESAFNECSELNESRMK
A WEHEE TRBA S EEE N ERE - K2
BHEEEBERBXER AR

° Testing, on a sample basis, the amount of
contract cost incurred to date, by checking
delivery notes of raw materials, invoices and
billings from sub-contractors, assessing the
accuracy of the progress towards complete
satisfaction of relevant performance obligation
and if any over-run of the related contracts; and

. LAEIWiﬁ{uan&/\ﬂﬁi%ﬂﬂ<${’ﬁﬁ§
A AERE IR R KRS & RIB ENKF =
TEEA ErERE -

o Assessing whether the gross profit margins of
the related engineering design and construction
and gas pipelines connections contracts fell into
a reasonable range by benchmarking against the
historical results of similar contracts completed
by the Group.

BIIRR - EHERAESRMPIEREERAN X FF -
We found the revenue recorded were supported by the
evidence we obtained.
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Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BB RERE

Goodwill impairment assessment

BREE M IERRMTE4(@) MHFEL7 -
Refer to Note 4 (a) and Note 17 of the consolidated
financial statements.

RZBZZHF+ZA=+—0  ESECHEREENAAR
2737t BRESEEAEEEETAHERESEFE
BIES K B HIET - Ft R AMIRTN % EE -

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had recorded goodwill
of approximately RMB2,737 million. We focused on it
because the amount is significant and critical judgement
was made by management to assess whether goodwill was
impaired or not.

HEBBHEBEREN NS - RMMITNETREF
BIE

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
goodwill impairment assessment included:

o BEARANGT(LE IR B B p B R E AR B A A R A I A
AR - RAE R T R RE M EE MR
IKIE -~ R IR E M E IR E R M ) SUR M AY
BE  FHMEERERNEERR

° Understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of goodwill
impairment and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
subjectivity, the degree of complexity and the
degree of susceptibility to management bias;

s RERMUHEEEXRBNERNBYRETREZ
EEFN  FHHEREHRSELETAEGS
5

o Assessing management’s identification of CGUs
based on how independent cash flows are
generated and our understanding of the Group’s
business;

e FMAERERANEREEESE:
o Assessing the value-in-use calculations
methodology adopted by management;

. HAFHNERReREE FFENRERETEN
HEITHE - UFHETERFT B S MEBRER T BN L
B

o Comparing the current year actual cash flows
with the prior year cash flow projections to
consider if the projections included assumptions
that were overly optimistic;
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Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BB EE ()

Goodwill impairment assessment (continued)

BEEIREEEESReELE T MIEREELET
WAKEeHEEHEREREReRERAAEEAEESE
TE o EEITRER AR - A B ENEFFERSIZEEN
EETAHEE M - ARREREMY - TREARHE N TEH L
NEEREE(BRELEENE  WARRERFTREK) K
FRERIE - EEERENGERNESRRERA/EEKN
B ERESLNEAREEBTERE -

Goodwill was allocated to each cash generating unit (“CGU"),
the recoverable amount of each CGU was determined by
management based on value-in-use calculations using
cash flow projections. In carrying out the impairment
assessments, the estimation of recoverable amount is
subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The
inherent risk in relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill is considered significant due to the complexity
of the models, subjectivity of significant judgements and
assumptions involved in developing the estimates, including
operating margins, revenue growth rates and discount rates,
being applied in the value-in-use calculations. Management
has concluded that there is no impairment in respect of the
goodwill.

o SIARBHEERTERENZ T E R HER
BERTREREN

° Engaging our internal valuation experts to
evaluate the methodology of the impairment test
and assess the appropriateness of the discount
rate used by the management.

o REIMUEEEXEBOBERLHRAITEH
7B AR ER (BELEENERMRAL K
)RS

° Assessing the reasonableness of key
assumptions (including operating margins
and revenue growth rates) based on our
understanding of the Group’s business and
benchmarking against the available industry
data;

o BWABBEIHFITENEE - EMIEEETT
b - WERZERE SR SBIFE ER
RN - WHHARRSRE R NSRS
HEITAHE - URENNE B S E B ERENE
[EREYYS3

° Reconciling input data to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets, considering the
reasonableness of these budgets and testing
mathematical accuracy of the computation and
assessing management’s sensitivity analysis
around the key assumptions, to ascertain the
extent to which adverse changes, would result
in the goodwill being impaired; and

o FHMATHEERRIEHREREER T RERER
B EBENT M

° Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures
related to goodwill impairment in the context of
the applicable financial reporting framework.

MR BREHHEBERMENGNER B
FIPTEIS E IR A FF

We considered that the conclusion on management’s
goodwill impairment assessment was supported by
the evidence we obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

R KE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Lee Chung Bor.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023




BOtERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(EFELBARETT (HHZEHA))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
B &E ARET T ARBET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

1 @N Revenue 5 7,542,859 7,650,345
SHER A Cost of sales 8 (6,149,950) (5,871,226)
EF Gross profit 1,392,909 1,779,119
DEHRAR Distribution expenses 8 (77,187) (75,304)
TIER Administrative expenses 8 (233,639) (199,569)
ERRENEERN Net impairment losses on financial

VERIEN =V assets and contract assets 3.1(c) (64,293) (18,030)
E b zs Other income 23,413 15,485
Hith (&18) FI5 — F8 Other (losses)/gains — net 7 (104,395) 99,409
e FIE Operating profit 936,808 1,601,110
B s Finance income 11,541 7,729
B E A Finance expenses (324,955) (235,782)
MBER — #58 Finance expenses — net 10 (313,414) (228,053)
JEIREEE N B R A EEEFEE  Share of results of associates

and a joint venture 11(b) 46,730 (10,253)
B B 8% AT A Profit before income tax 670,124 1,362,804
FTiStHE R Income tax expense 12 (200,852) (334,690)
FERE Profit for the year 469,272 1,028,114
FEEER Profit attributable to:
— RNARIFBEE — Owners of the Company 444,598 1,000,672
— FEfE I s — Non-controlling interests 24,674 27,442
469,272 1,028,114
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)
(R FEBARETT (BIESEHE))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—s—-= —E-—F
2022 2021
ks ARMT T AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Hithiza W Other comprehensive income:
HETEESEE Item that will not be reclassified
B hyE to profit or loss
NARBEFZEHES) Changes in the fair value of equity
ETAEAMARE WG 2 investments at fair value through
EREREANAEEED other comprehensive income 27 (9,600) 8,325
REEHMEE WS Other comprehensive income
HIRBIE for the year, net of tax (9,600) 8,325
AEEREESRE Total comprehensive income
for the year 459,672 1,036,439
BER: Attributable to:
— RREMBEE — Owners of the Company 434,998 1,008,997
— FERE 1 s — Non-controlling interests 24,674 27,442
459,672 1,036,439
BRKZFEBRAAT Earnings per share for profit
FEE(BRARYT) attributable to owners of
the Company for the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
— BERRMEEGRE — Basic and diluted earnings per share 13 0.45 1.00

Pt AHERA WG R EEFTM M E— 48]  The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read

2

iB © in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SHEERER

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(EFELBARETT (HHZEHS))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
s —E-—F
2022 2021
P EE ARET T ARBT T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
FIRBEE Non-current assets
FREEE Right-of-use assets 14 268,115 272,206
NARBETEEHESE Financial assets at fair value
ATABRNESREE through profit or loss 23 80,687 —
TBE - BB R&E Property, plant and equipment 15 3,646,105 3,518,709
WEMEEHE Investment properties 16 41,576 45,008
| EE Intangible assets 17 4,980,409 5,097,000
EEmEARNIEE Investments accounted for using the
equity method 11(b) 801,015 773,671
RIEFTISHEE Deferred income tax assets 30 18,044 27,040
NARBETER Financial assets at fair value
HEB)it \EMERE through other comprehensive
W EmEE income 19 59,800 72,600
JFEE M50 B 5 e LA R LKL R Trade and other receivables 20 13,221 24,996
EMIEmBEE Other non-current assets 21 67,670 58,389
9,976,642 9,889,619
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 129,260 154,642
EHEE Contract assets 5 2,667,764 2,414,722
JFE LS BR R % L A JE LSk Trade and other receivables 20 1,644,577 1,407,831
NAREBEFTER Financial assets at fair value
HEEE ARMIRE through other comprehensive
W mEE income 19 10,899 6,747
WARBEFER Financial assets at fair value through
HEEFABENERmEE profit or loss 23 54,712 39,018
ReFRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 1,340,135 1,014,978
R HIERE Restricted cash 24 134,745 177,279
5,982,092 5,215,217
HEE Total assets 15,958,734 15,104,836
EEkEE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
&7 Share capital 25 8,511 8,466
EF Treasury shares 25 (158,925) (200,697)
A 7 Share premium 25 341,096 528,133
] Reserves 27 877,666 736,819
B Retained earnings 27 4,439,597 4,145,458
FERAATFEEZER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 5,507,945 5,218,179
ISR R Non-controlling interests 314,725 310,195
B Total equity 5,822,670 5,528,374
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EHEEREBR(E)
Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)
(ZREEMABARKEF T (BIESEHHH))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

R+=ZA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
B AR#ETR AREFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=i LIABILITIES
FRBARE Non-current liabilities
Eh Borrowings 29 4,287,778 4,247,647
HEaE Lease liabilities 14 6,886 7,060
EIEFTSH AR Deferred income tax liabilities 30 745,495 753,669
RN 55 Deferred income 11,387 12,627
5,051,546 5,021,003
ReaE Current liabilities
JRE 1~ BR R B2 ELAth AR Trade and other payables 28 1,161,991 1,418,781
BHBE Contract liabilities 5 575,851 592,003
FERT AR Dividend payables 6,837 6,533
BHIFTSHAE Current income tax liabilities 414,422 437,566
(R Borrowings 29 2,915,286 2,058,375
HEBE Lease liabilities 14 1,569 2,914
NARBETZEHED) Financial liabilities at fair value
FFABENERAE through profit or loss 23 8,562 39,287
5,084,518 4,555,459
FEN=Ri Total liabilities 10,136,064 9,576,462
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 15,958,734 15,104,836

LA EEAGBEREEMMMMT—0E  The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with
= © the accompanying notes.

i

ke
§

F 852271 EMAHMBMERCTHESE  The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 271 were approved by
RZEZ=F=A=+H#t#Z  WAREKXEF the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf.
EBEE -

[y AR
Mr. Zhang Yingcen Mr. Xian Zhenyuan
EE EE
Director Director
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BOHERS R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(EFELBARETT (HHZEHA))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BENELANER
Attributable to owners of the Company
o Efik gl ik 2ika B HtER SiEa
Non-
Share Treasury Share Retained controlling
capital shares premium Reserves eamings Total interests Total equity
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT NRETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Ki£25) (W3 25) (M3t 25) (Hs27) (Hisk27)
(Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 27) (Note 27)
R-B--5-F-RH Balance at 1 January 2021 8,466 - 817,455 h56,177 3,317,103 4,699,201 281,086 4,980,287
Gels Comprehensive income
KERE Profit for the year - - — — 1,000,672 1,000,672 21,442 1,028,114
Hfpiraki Other comprehensive income
PR REEEY &) Financial assets at fair value
AL A aRAY through other
SREE compreensive income = = = 8325 = 8325 = 8325
fagaks Total comprehensive income = = = 8,32 1,000,672 1,008,997 27,442 1,036,439
EREFEENLNAE Transactions with owners in
HEHETNRA their capacity as owners
B Appropriation = = = 172317 (172,317) - - -
3N Acquisition of subsidiaries = = = = — = 15,340 15,340
SRR (1) Dividends paid (Note 31) = = (289,322) = - (289,322) = (289,322)
W3R A Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests = - - - - - (13,673) (13,673)
SRR (1525 (b)) Repurchase of shares
(Note 25 (b)) = (200,697) = = = (200,697) = (200,697)
= (200,697) (289,322) 172317 (172,317) (490,019) 1,667 (483,352)
R=%=-% Balance at
tZB=1-BLR 31 December 2021 8,466 (200,697) 528,133 736,819 4,145,458 5218179 310,195 h,528,374
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O EREER ()
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

(EFELBARETT (KIS EHS))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BENALFES
Attributable to owners of the Company
B EER BAER fife BhlE @ EHER s
Non-
Share Treasury Share Retained controlling
capital shares premium Reserves eamings Total interests Total equity
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RNB'000 RNB'000 RNB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RNB'000
(W3t 25) (M3 25) (HiE25) (HiE27) (HiE7)
(Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 27) (Note 27)
RZB-ZE-f-R&R Balance at 1 January 2022 8,466 (200,697) 528,133 736,819 4,145,458 5,218,179 310,195 5,528,374
Geka Comprehensive income
RERE Profit for the year = = = = 444,598 444,598 2,674 469,272
Hfefraks Other comprehensive income
WAnEEEEAEY Financial assets at fair value
SARfEA YR through other
SREE comprehensive income = = = (9,600) = (9,600) = (9,600)
R Total comprehensive income = = - (9,600) 444,598 434,998 2,674 459,672
SERFEENENEEN  Transactions with owners in
SHENRA their capacity as owners
Bl Appropriation = = = 150,459 (150,459) - = —
FHRH (K31 Dividends paid (Note 31) = — (223,081) = — (223,081) = (223,081)
AR AR Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - - - - - - (19,655) (19,655)
WETATEMER Aequisition of additional
interests of a subsidiary - - - (12) - (12) (681) (693)
EERTSANELY Non-controlling nterests
FERIER arising on merger within
the group - - - - - - 192 192
TR (P25 (b)) Repurchase of shares
(Note 25 (b)) - (255,911) — — - (255,911) - (255,911)
BIRERD(MED @) Issuance of shares
upon placement
(Note 25 (a)) 403 - 333,369 - - 333,772 - 333,772
TRlpsrss (3 25 (a) Cancellation of shares
(Note 25 (a)) (358) 297,683 (297,325) = = = = -
45 41,772 (187,037) 150,447 (150,459) (145,232) (20,144) (165,376)
i Balance at
+-A-+-BiR 31 December 2022 8,511 (158,925) 341,09 877,666 4,439,597 5,507,945 314,725 5,822,670

bR E G A i 5 B 3K B B P BY PI R — 6 B

AEMRBIZERER AT 2022FFHEHRE o

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.




EHRERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(RFELLEARETIT (G IHESHHP))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
B ARET T ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
RETEHNRERE Cash flows from operating activities
KEEANRS Cash generated from operations 32(a) 900,005 671,403
BATFTISH Income tax paid (210,782) (265,633)
LEEBEENFRS Net cash generated from
operating activities 689,223 405,770
RETEBNRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BETDE  WEREE Purchases of property, plant
and equipment (385,543) (415,650)
THETE FRIEL N Increase in lease prepayments (4,850) (3,625)
BETEE - WER Proceeds from disposal of property,

RABFTSRIA plant and equipment 32(b) 9,351 3,529
BEELEE Purchases of intangible assets (6,209) (3,502)
B B s A ABR Proceeds from disposal of

IR EFTISK investments accounted for

using the equity method 20,192 —
BELUAAREBESFEBEEDS Purchases of financial assets at

FABENEREE fair value through profit or loss (119,484) (30,010)
BEENAREBEFZEESZE) Proceeds from disposal of financial

FFABENSREEMER assets at fair value through

profit or loss 80,112 10
WEEF ARIRFIR M Net cash outflow for the

acquisition of subsidiaries (116,735) (918,297)
PR I & E) Changes in restricted cash 58,705 (44,825)
BUFHLE Interest received 11,460 8,158
REE R EIMIEE Investment in an associate (800) —
SNET A - BEA Settlement of forward exchange instrument,

MG RMEE cross currency swap and interest rate

swap contracts (12,100) (16,989)

WERSAFRS Net cash used in investing activities (465,901) (1,421,201)
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SHRERER (B)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
(ZREEMABARKEF T (BIESEHHH))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
LS ARET T ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000

RETENRERE Cash flows from financing activities
(EhNFIEEE Proceeds from borrowings 32(c) 3,602,314 4,896,706
EEER Repayments of borrowings 32(c) (2,938,260) (3,687,593)
BAFLE Interest paid (292,531) (214,798)
ENREER Financing expenses paid (18,244) (46,187)
EANGESENvl Dividends paid to Company’s

shareholders 31 (223,081) (289,322)
Z PRI & Changes in restricted cash (70,627) (42,462)
W BE 7~ R RESME Acquisition of additional interests

in a subsidiary (693) (1,760)
REE=EEE: faliall Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests (19,351) (14,714)
L gralCIkE: Repurchase of shares (269,421) (200,697)
HEBEINR Payments related to lease liabilities (4,539) (4,673)
BITRERD Issuance of shares upon placement 333,772 —
BEEBEERTFIRE Net cash generated from financing

activities 99,339 394,500
HeRASEEYF Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

#®in GRd) cash equivalents 322,661 (620,931)

FUREMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of the year 24 1,014,978 1,640,081
RekReEEBYMNER Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and

Wz, (18%K) cash equivalents 2,496 (4,172)

FRASRESESEY Cash and cash equivalents at end

of the year 24 1,340,135 1,014,978

B B3R 2R 8 3R 8 B PR Y P R — 6 B

B
=

92 RGARERERAT 2022FFEHE o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in




SO SRR MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—F_—F{_A=1—HILFE (LHEEMUSARETIT(HHFSEHYA))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

REE-KREH

RmARIERAR AR ([ARE )
KEFRERERRE(ZE—ZF
BIRAR-_E—FFHA_+H
EREREEMKIAERRER
RA] > ARARRERBRAR] R
“Z-TE+-ATREREEA
RHPARAR ([BEAT]) ERE
M e

KRABREFRAI(ATARIA
KB ETEEHEARLME([H
BOETHmREHTREEZR LR
% RERA - IEEAPRHEMRSK
EREI BT ERERREEBHR
AR BREAAR - BERRRHR
REE R HERT - URIERA
RHEEMPERTEEK -

KRR R EREA A Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands

ZEEHPBHRRELHEZTEN
—TE=F=A=+HERE-

ZEAHMBRERIAARESIR
(FRIEREHA) °

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated on
20 May 2010 in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (2010
Revision) of the Cayman lIslands as an exempted company with
limited liability. The Company is an investment holding company and
was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 10 November 2010.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the engineering
construction service by providing residential, commercial and
industrial users with construction and installation of gas pipeline,
and infrastructure laying and installation as well as transportation,
distribution and sales of gases including natural gas and compressed
natural gas (“CNG”) and production and sales of liquefied natural
gas (“LNG”) in bulk and in cylinders in certain cities of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

The address of the Company’s registered office is Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
unless otherwise stated.
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SO R R MIEE ()
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.1

94 RGRREBRERAT 20226FEHRE o

EZESTHEREBE

AH R iR B T A S MK
BTN IR BREBE - &
HBEHPAN > ZFRRRABEER
FEEWM—BUER - MBHRER /A
SE(AARRBREFRBEK) R
EI

RBLE
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ENFEEEEERAAEENS
SHRECRIRP TR EAE - RS
e HE = BRI EES - 3
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FEFT BB RER TS -

2.

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
are for the Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative instruments), which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.1
2.1.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new and amended accounting standards and
interpretations become applicable for annual reporting periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2022, and have been adopted by
the Group in current period:

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards 2018-2020

The improvements of HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 16, HKFRS 1
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Revised Accounting Guideline 5

Property, plant and equipment
— proceeds before
intended use

Onerous Contract — Cost of
fulfilling a contract

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. EESHHERE 2.

(&

/1

2.1 mBEEXE(E)

2.1.2 XEEH A RAIR —E==
F—F—HRHZEBFHEHIFE
X HIFTEREEE S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 New standards and amendments of HKFRS issued effective

for the financial periods beginning on and after 1 January
2023 and have not been early adopted by the Group

EERRZARRNETHEENR
Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

HEMBRE
HKFRS 17
BRI 15%
KBRS 42 R
EBHmES 2% (B3] 4)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BB ERE 85 (BRI A)
Amendments to HKAS 8
BEEGEAERIZE 125 (IB5TA)
Amendments to HKAS 12

HERIZE 17 5%

BRGETERIFE 15 (BRI 40)
Amendments to HKAS 1

BRRESRLW(ZT_TF)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

BBV HREERFE 109K
BB GETERIE 285 (15T A)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

AR E LA ER] - EFTMBE
OANE IR S AR AR AN B AR S O
TE o AKEEABEMRBNE
Al - AEFTMBL SRR E UL T IAK

06 RWAREBRAERAT 20226FEHRE o

e —E-=%—AF—H
Insurance contracts 1 January 2023
BETBORIRER —E-=%—A—H

Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023

B TS —F-=%-H—H
Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
BB - HEANEERBBHEBNRERIE —E-=5—H—H

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
HERESERRBNIERD

Classification of Liabilities as Current or

1 January 2023

—E_mME—-HA—H
1 January 2024

Noncurrent
FEMENIIR — ERAHREHEERKR —T-NWF—F—AH
NTHERZDE

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayement on Demand Clause

KEEEABE N RS AR PE M
MEELEITE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between

1 January 2024

)
~AE

To be determined
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the new
standards, amendments to standards and conceptual framework on
its results of operations and financial position. The Group expects
to adopt the relevant new standards, amendments to standards and
conceptual framework when they become effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.2
2.2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entities and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entities. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business
combinations by the Group (refer to Note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated balance sheet respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.2
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(continued)

2.2.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the case
where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting (see Note 2.2.4 below), after initially being recognised
at cost.

2.2.3 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure of the
joint arrangement. The Group has joint ventures.

Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method
(see Note 2.2.4 below), after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated balance sheet.

2.2.4 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit
or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the other entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(continued)

2.2.4 Equity method (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-accounted
investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note 2.10.

2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an
investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.
This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRS.
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2.

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(continued)

2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests (continued)

2.3

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred,

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business,

° equity interests issued by the Group,

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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the acquired entity.

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the
amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value
as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing
could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in
profit or loss.
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2.

2.4

2.5

2.6
2.6.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

2.6.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.6.2 Transactions and balances (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in profit or loss on a
net basis within “other (losses)/gains — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2.6.3 Group companies

The results and financial position of Group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

° income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and

statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

° all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2.

2.6

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.6.3 Group companies (continued)

2.7

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost, net of their residual values at a range of 0%-5% of the
cost, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 20-30 years
— Equipment and machinery 5-10 years
— Gas pipelines 16-30 years
— Office equipment and motor vehicles 3-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).
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HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
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2.

2.7

2.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP"”) represents buildings, gas
pipelines and equipment and machinery under construction or
pending installation and is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs
of construction of buildings and costs of plant and machinery. No
provision for depreciation is made on CIP until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and ready for intended use. When the
assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred to
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with
the policy as stated above.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally freehold office buildings, are held
for rental yields and are not occupied by the Group. Investment
properties are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write-
off the cost of the assets to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives of 25 years.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amounts. These are recorded within “other (losses)/
gains — net” in profit or loss.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.
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2.

2.8

2.9
(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, the transfer does not change
the carrying amount of the property transferred, nor does it change
the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquirees and the acquisition date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquirees over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the
entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.
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2.

2.9
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Operating rights for city pipeline network and gas station

Operating rights for city pipeline network and gas station represent
the rights for distribution of gas in certain cities or districts in the
PRC, and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses, if any. The cost incurred for the acquisition of
operating rights is capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives (10-50 years).

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (3-5
years).

Network

Network acquired in a business combination is the distribution
network of pipelined gas and is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The network is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost over the estimated
lives of 25-30 years.

Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The
contractual customer relations have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives (23-
25 years) which are determined by the length of the adjusted lengths
based on the existing sales contracts with its customers while taking
into account the possibility of renewals by the management.
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2.10

2.11
2.11.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Investments and other financial assets

Classification

the Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit or
loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.11
2.111

2.11.2

2.11.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.
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BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.11.3 Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income: Assets that
are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in “other (losses)/
gains — net”. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
“other (losses)/gains — net” and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet
the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within “finance
expenses — net” in the period in which it arises.
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BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
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2.11
2.11.3

2.11.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in “other (losses)/gains — net” in profit
or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables and contract assets, see Note 3.1(c) for further details.




2.

2.12

2.13

EZESTHEREBE
(&)

KiEemIA

EAKE R AR EEAIHITEN
ARHEERASR WA BERF
RMEEFZESIRAREREENGEE
BER SREEHEAENEHE
o YEEHEEABRRSEF
B o AEBIERIN T A A HEIHE
EAEDAFFEREB R T (Hlan g
ERARK L) BEEFFENL
BE e

MBREREN
BBRERS OREHRERSERA
&

HMAE - AERVREQAE

e WEERRITRSEE

. BEAVBREERE IR
[EMTAIBETHRERRESR
BEEEENEE &

. E RN ERE (E
R mBERMBRELERNE
1558 [EF & HWA L RAI
FERE RETUA o

MBERODAABERERER T
ATERNERXNERAEFTR
BN SR EH) - SEE R
EEBRNE=TNETTRZME
MRS REZEMNRERE °

BB E N R RAEE LRI ERK
Hip YR B R EREARETS
ARH - AABEARASLELHE
RIS ERKAB D -

B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.12

2.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet where the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still
allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances,
such as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability
at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured
at fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

° the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the
present value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
or joint ventures are provided for no compensation, the fair values
are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost
of the investment.
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2.

2.14

2.15

2.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, including in “other (losses)/gains — net “.

Inventories

Inventories, including materials for gas pipelines and consumables
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are determined using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sell.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade and other receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 2.11 for further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade receivables and Note 3.1(c) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.17

2.18

2.19

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, that are convertible
to known amounts of cash and while are subject to an insignificant
risk.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back or a share-
based payment plan, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company as treasury shares
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
owners of the Company.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2.20

2.21

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest expense and finance charges to the
extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.22

2.22.1

2.22.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Group’s entities operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.
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BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
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2.

2.22
2.22.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates
and joint ventures. Only when there is an agreement in place that
gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from the associates’ and
joint ventures’ undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred taxes balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.23
(a)

(b)

2.24
(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC contribute on a monthly basis
to various defined contribution retirement schemes managed by the
PRC Government. The contributions to the schemes are charged
to profit or loss as and when incurred. The Group’s obligations are
determined at a certain percentage of the salaries of the employees.

Housing fund and other benefits

All full-time employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
entitled to participate in various government-sponsored housing
and other benefits funds. The Group contributes on a monthly basis
to these funds based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees. The Group’s liability in respect of these funds is limited
to the contributions payable in each period.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan, under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for example, an
entity’s share price);
° excluding the impact of any service and non-market

performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save or holding
shares for a specified period of time).
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2.24
(a)

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services
in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value
is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the trust (note 26) transfers the
appropriate amount of shares to the employee. The proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (and share premium).

Share-based payment transactions among Group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
entity accounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.25

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

The Group derives its revenue primarily from sales of gas and
engineering construction service. Revenue is recognised when or as
the control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws applicable,
control of the goods and services may be transferred over time or at a
point in time. Control of the goods or services is transferred over time
if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer; or

o creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

° do not create an asset with an alternative use of the Group

and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the goods and services.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to
the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference to
the contract costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amount receivable for the goods and
services transferred to the customers stated net of value added taxes.
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2.25

(a)

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been met for the
Group’s activity described below:

Engineering construction service

Revenue in respect of the engineering construction service, including
gas pipeline connection and engineering construction, is recognised
over time, by reference to completion of the specific transaction
using input method which recognises revenue using costs incurred
relative to total estimated costs to determine the extent of progress
toward completion. The Group recognises revenue over time only if it
can reasonably measure its progress toward complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation. However, if the Group cannot reasonably
measure the outcome but expects to recover the costs incurred in
satisfying the performance obligation, then it recognises revenue to
the extent of the costs incurred.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion
are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or
decreases in estimated revenue or costs are reflected in profit or loss
in the period which the circumstances that give rise to the revision
become known by management.

The customers are required to pay in advance for certain contract
amount based on a payment schedule. If the services rendered by
the Group exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. If
the payment exceeds the services rendered, a contract liability is
recognised.

Sale of gases

Revenue from the sale of gases, including pipelined gases, CNG and
LNG, are recognised at the point of time when control is transferred
to the customer, which generally coincides with the time when the
gas is delivered to customers and title has passed, and is based
on the gas consumption derived from metre readings. Payment of
the transaction price is due immediately at the point the customer
consumes the gas. Payments received in advance that are related
to sales of natural gas not yet delivered are recognised as contract
liabilities and deferred in the consolidated balance sheet.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

Service income

Service income represents income from engineering and consulting
services provided to customers and is recognised when services are
rendered.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

° the profit attributable to owners of the Company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares;

o by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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2.27

2.28

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right to receive payment is
established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of an investment. In this case, the dividend is recognised in
other comprehensive income if it relates to an investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income. However, the
investment may need to be tested for impairment as a consequence.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.




2.

2.28

EZESTHEREBE
(&)

HE (&)

MEE L EEANE EEREET
Mt e - MERFOENTHAR
e 3RE B

. B € 3 (B R ' E EE
) FABRAE (o e AR R
. AR RN ZEE
f5kEE - REEHRFRGAE
PR IE Bt TR

=

g2

. AEBRBH/EEREF
ENEE

. AEEAERTEBITENE
BREBRAITRER ARk

. EHERRREARERT
EEFRNBRTRLEE
HET AR ©

EEREERITEERRERR
HENFTBELAARBNTES -

HEMRBEREEANS MR -
AEENHEANSHXBEELIE
RHETE - EULIER T - EERAAM
AHPIBE BRI - BEFE AR
PUEEIRE TS REREEEE
BRI EE - EROEB AU
HIR R BAE M BANEF

o

B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.28

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable;
° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a

rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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2.28

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing
was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group,
which does not have recent third-party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the
lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.

The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so

as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.28

2.29

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group leases lands. All land in the PRC is state-owned or
collectively-owned and no individual land ownership exists. The
Group acquires the right to use certain land. The premiums paid for
such right are treated as prepayment for the lease and recognised as
right-of-use assets.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note
16). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised
as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income.
The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based
on their nature.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate. Government grants relating to
property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred government grants and are credited to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss as part of
“finance expenses — net “.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes,
see Note 10 below.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims and make good obligations are recognised
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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2.

2.31

2.32

2.33

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used
to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.
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2.

2.33

3.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair value interest rate risk
and cash flow interest rate risk), concentration risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out by Group finance department under
the policies approved by the Board of Directors. Group finance
department identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group’s operating units. The board provides
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, concentration risk, credit risk, and use of non-
derivative and derivative financial instruments, and investment of
excess liquidity.
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3.1

(a)
(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Group exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar (“USD”)
and HK dollar (“HKD"). Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.
Management has set up a policy to require the Group companies to
manage their foreign exchange risk against their functional currency.
The Group companies may mitigate the foreign exchange risk through
entering into forward exchange instrument or cross currency swap
and interest rate swap contracts. See Note 23 for detail information.

As at 31 December 2022, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 1%
(2021: 1%) against the USD with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year then ended would have
been approximately RMB20,564,000 (2021: RMB15,037,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of USD-denominated bank borrowings, restricted cash,
cash and cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2022, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 1%
(2021: 1%) against the HKD with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year then ended would have been
approximately RMB4,093,000 (2021: RMB5,555,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
HKD-denominated bank borrowings, restricted cash, cash and cash
equivalents.
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3.1

(a)
(ii)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings and bank
deposits. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at
variable rates. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s
borrowings of RMB5,682,599,000 (2021: RMB5,125,400,000)
bore interest at variable rates and borrowings of RMB1,520,465,000
(2021: RMB1,180,622,000) at fixed rates.

As at 31 December 2022, if interest rates on borrowings at variable
rates had been 0.3% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit before income tax for the year would have been
approximately RMB17,048,000 (2021: RMB15,376,000) lower/
higher, respectively, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.

As at 31 December 2022, if interest rates on all interest-
bearing bank deposits within cash and cash equivalents had been
0.3% higher/lower with all other variables held constant, profit
before income tax for the year would have been approximately
RMB4,020,000 (2021: RMB3,045,000) higher/lower, respectively,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income earned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
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3.1
(b)

(c)

(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Concentration risk

During the year ended 31 December 2022, approximately 10% of
the Group’s total revenue (2021: about 19%) derived from a single
customer Henan Yutian New Energy Limited (“Henan Yutian”), the
subsidiary of Henan Yuzi Tianlun New Energy Investment Fund Centre
(Limited Partnership) (“Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund”), a joint venture
of the Group (Note 35(b)). The sales in general are concentrated. In
the event that Henan Yutian terminate the business relationship with
the Group and the Group fails to find new customers, it may have
an adverse impact on the Group’s financial position and results of
operations.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group arise from cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade and other receivables, contract assets, financial
guarantee contracts, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and at fair value through profit or loss. The
carrying amounts of these balances and financial guarantee contracts
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
these financial assets.

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an on-going basis.

The Group generally requests advances from customers in relation
to the engineering construction service, and grants credit periods up
to two months to the customers in relation to the transportation and
sales of gases business. In circumstances of credit sales, to manage
the credit risk in respect of trade and other receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with
appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers.
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3.1

(c)
(i)

(ii)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Risk management (continued)

Significant concentration of credit risk primarily arises when the
Group has significant exposure to individual customers. As at 31
December 2022, trade receivables of RMB450,034,000 represent
47% (2021: 44%) of total trade receivables and contract assets of
RMB2,695,196,000 represent 99%(2021: 99%) of total contract
assets was due from the Group’s largest customer Henan Yutian. The
Group monitors the exposure to credit risk in respect of the trade
receivables and contract assets through exercising influence over its
financial and operating policy decisions and reviewing its financial
positions on a regular basis.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the following types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

° cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash;

° trade receivables;

° contract assets;

° other financial assets at amortised cost; and

° notes receivable at fair value through other comprehensive

income and amortised cost.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, all of the
Group’s bank deposits are deposited in the major reputable financial
institutions in the PRC which management believes are of high credit
quality and do not expect any losses from non-performance by the
counterparties.
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3.1

(c)
(ii)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract
assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the aging days. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in
progress and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the
trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified
the GDP and the national completion of investment in fixed assets in
which it sells its goods and services to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021 was determined as follows for both trade receivables
and contract assets:
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3. MBEEERE(E 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.1 H¥EBEZEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) 1EHAREREE) (c)  Credit risk (continued)
(i) EHEEREE) (i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
JEWR NG A EE () Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)
TRERTEBEAETNRERS The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has
SNEFERMEBERRNE L EER been recognized for trade receivables and contract assets other than
TEEz AR EBIER - related party under the simplified approach:
-EUT  -5ZRE HEE=F ZFZMF MERE @t
Less than
ZE-ZE+ZA=1+-H 31 December 2022 lyear 1to2years 2to3years 3todyears Over4 years Total
EEERELX Expected loss rate 2.85% 19.48% 28.29% 68.66% 100.00%
RESE — IR Gross carrying amount —

(AREFT) trade receivables (RMB'000) 461,472 23,794 8,200 5,606 16,557 515,629
REEE — ANEE Gross carrying amount —

(AREFT) contract assets (RMB'000) 34,337 = = = = 34,337
BXBEARETT) Loss allowance (RMB'000) 14,116 4,636 2,320 3,849 16,557 41,478

—ENUT —FEAE FEERZFE ZERENE DOENME @it
Less than
“E-—%F+-A=+—H 31 December 2021 lyear 1to2years 2to3years 3todyears  Over 4 years Total
EEERELX Expected loss rate 1.58% 15.07% 25.06% 86.09% 100.00%
REEE — YIRS Gross carrying amount —

(AREFT) trade receivables (RMB'000) 327,552 32,682 12,842 3,752 13,651 390,479
RREE — AHEE Gross carrying amount —

(AREFTL) contract assets (RMB'000) 26,866 — — — — 26,866
BEBEARETT) Loss allowance (RMB'000) 5,583 4,925 3,218 3,230 13,651 30,607
RNEEBFNE T EHUTmEEKRE The Group individually assessed the credit risk of trade receivables
I BR 3% A R # 450,034,000 7T 1 amounting to RMB450,034,000 and contract assets amounting to
G HEEANR¥2695196,000 RMB2,695,196,000 due from Henan Yutian. Considering financial
THERARERE - EREITEEXR background and good creditability of Henan Yutian, provided
MPEESRRITEE  REF for accumulated loss allowance amounting to RMB65,621,000
R A8 K AR %65621,000 (As at 31 December 2021, provided for accumulated loss
T(ZEZ—F: BERERRARE allowance amounting to RMB12,191,000 for trade receivables
310,451,000 THM&EHEEARKE amounting to RMB310,451,000 and contract assets amounting to
2,398,771,000 7T + Z&taHiREE RMB2,398,771,000).

BAARM12,191,0007T) °
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MEERERE (&) 3.

MERREE(Z) 3.1
EHAEE(E) (c)
LHEERE (&) (ii)

JEWIRATNE R (HE)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)
BURRMENEERES
Provision for trade

Receivables and
contract assets

AREFIT

RMB’'000

R-—ZE-—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 25,684
FEWRF A& X EERE Net provision for impairment of trade

B FEE receivables and contract assets 18,019

FEIRIZ I Written-off during the year as uncollectible (905)

R-ZZE-_—F+-F=+—H At 31 December 2021 42,798
FEURBR FRAA KV E ERE Net provision for impairment of trade

R e L receivables and contract assets 64,301

R-ZE-_—F+-F=+—H At 31 December 2022 107,099

ENFEA BN EEE - &
WERRM A WEER S WAL - T
FHER K S EEHNEEREE
BAER NG BERERTE
B ARRIRE RHEETH -

FEUKER SRR A A BE R R BB K 7
R B P 51 SRR R B S 1B -
BT 2 R SE S B R A
RMERE -

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and
a failure to make contractual payments.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets
are presented as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.
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3.

3.1

(c)
(ii)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost mainly include other
receivables. Other receivables is measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, other receivables
including security deposit, which were performing. The Group
believes the loss allowance for other receivable as a result of applying
the expected credit risk model was immaterial.

Notes receivable at fair value through other comprehensive income
and amortised cost

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, majority of
the notes receivable were bank acceptance bills (see Note 19 and
Note 20), which were accepted mainly by large state-owned banks
or national commercial banks. The Group believes that there is no
significant credit losses due to the default of these banks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)  Credit risk (continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

During the year, the following losses were recognised in profit or loss
in relation to impaired financial assets:

BE+T-A=1t—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E=-= —E-—F
2022 2021
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
VEREREES Impairment losses
— YRR R AR — movement in loss allowance for
BEBIBRHEZY trade receivables and contract assets 64,301 18,019
— HMeBMEERME  — Impairment (reversal) /losses on
(8[E) 18K other financial assets (8) 11
SRR EHEER Net impairment losses on financial and
VERIEN SEi= V] contract assets 64,293 18,030

BE_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HILt
FE - ERATEHRIBEERK CIE
BHERRIEZE(ZE = —F
AR#905,0007T) °

AR B[R IR R R B S FE AR -
HiEA RSN D RERER
BEH50% @ [/AmMEKREXME
W —BRREHRER  HER
Jee\ g ) B AR ) 7 7 2 B 4 0 R 7R
BEXfmESROWERE  FRME
35(f) °
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For the year ended in 31 December 2022, no trade receivables have
been written off by the Group as there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery (2021: RMB905,000).

The Group granted financial guarantees to Henan Yutian with
maximum exposure to credit risk as the 50% carrying amount of the
loans, counter-guarantee to one shareholder of Henan Yuzi Tianlun
Fund with maximum exposure to credit risk as the value of the shares
in Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund, see Note 35(f) for details.

The Group expects that no material liabilities will arise from the
financial guarantee contracts.
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BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
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3.

3.1
(d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of undrawn borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations, mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows, and
meet its financial obligations when they fall due. The Group expects
to fund its future cash flow needs through internally generated cash
flows from operations, borrowings from financial institutions, as well
as equity financing through shareholders when necessary. The Group
also reviews the utilisation of borrowings and ensures the compliance
of loan covenants.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.

—FR -EEWE WEZRE BENE
Less than Between Between
Group 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years Over 5 years
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
MZBZZF+ZA=+—H At31 December 2022
RITfER Bank borrowings 3,240,121 1,703,647 2,887,300 28,630
HivfEsn Other borrowings 534 530 1,561 4,192
HEAR Lease liabilities 2,085 2,370 3,628 2,052
EREZREMERZY  Trade and other payables? 926,503 = = =
WARBEEAEE Financial liabilities at fair value
STAEHER 2BAR  through profit or loss 8,562 = = =
FTESRBEAE Total non-derivative financial liabilities 4,177,805 1,706,547 2,892,489 34,874
M-E-—F+-A=1—H At 31 December 2021
BRI Bank borrowings 2,269,837 2,063,053 2,380,556 90,726
Etbfas Other borrowings 494 489 1,442 4309
HEAE Lease liabilities 3,19 2,510 3,624 2,638
ERERREMEMFFTY  Trade and other payables” 1,146,521 = = —
DAREEFEAEEE  Financial liabilities at fair value
SABHBRZEBBE  though profit or loss 24,598 12,072 2,617 —
FiEeRates Total non-derivative financial liabilities 3,444,645 2,078,124 2,388,239 97,673
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HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3. MBERERE(E 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.1 MBEBEEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(d) GEEEE(E) (d)  Liquidity risk (continued)
o ERNERREMENRBEL 0 Trade and other payables include notes payable, trade payables,
MizE28 RIF TR BN 2 - & amounts due to related parties, contingent considerations, interest
{TRRFR - FEATBAES 7T 5RIB ~ & payables and other payables as stated in Note 28.
N B HE  BAFSREM
FEfFK -
(i) REEAEBERA  NEBEEIN (i) As at the balance sheet date, the Group’s financial guarantees
RENMBEERNOERERS provided to related party (note 35(f)) are analysed below based on the
EEIR BB 5 (PO EE35(f) B maximum amounts and the earliest periods in which the guarantees
BRI HERFRES RN could be called:
T

2022 12H31H
31 December 2022

—FLR —E=F —BEF REHE &t
Within 1 year 1to2years 2to5years Over5 years Total
B TS IELR Financial guarantees 272,248 = = — 272,248

202112831 H
31 December 2021

—FHIR —R|=F —HREF AFENUE At
Within 1 year 1to2years 2tob5years Over5 years Total
BATSIEIR Financial guarantees 308,790 — — — 308,790
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3.2
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3.

3.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital risk
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including “current and non-current borrowings” as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) add lease liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash. Total capital is calculated as “equity”
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt. The Group
aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021
were as follows:

W+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-= —E -
2022 2021
AREET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
LAREFR(FFE29) Borrowings (Note 29) 7,203,064 6,306,022
HEAE (FFE14) Lease Liabilities (Note 14) 8,455 9,974
B IS MRS E[EY  Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 24)

(fF7E24) (1,340,135) (1,014,978)
B ZBRFIRE Less: Restricted cash (Note 24)

(fizx24) (134,745) (177,279)
B F5E Net debt 5,736,639 5,123,739
B Total equity 5,822,670 5,528,374
HBEKR Total capital 11,559,309 10,652,113
N S Gearing ratio 50% 48%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3.

3.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried at
fair value as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 by level
of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair value
hierarchy as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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PCECCFL A= —HIUFRE (RREENBARETIT(BIHESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3. BKERER (& 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.3 AREEMRF(E) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

TRENMEFEE-_E-_—_F+=
B=+T—HERAABEFENEE

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2022.

MEME -
B1E B2E B3IE #st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR¥ETR AR¥ETR AR¥ETR AR¥ETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets

AR EERER
BHHARIA

Financial assets at fair value
through other

WaEREREE comprehensive income
— MEATEIELT  — Unlisted equity securities
RS in gas industry = 59,800 59,800

— EUWER — Notes receivable = 10,899 10,899
aat Subtotal — 70,699 70,699
AREETZAE  Financial assets at fair value

gt NE A through profit or loss

BENemEE

— BEMFIx — Cross currency swap and

BEHAE interest rate swap contracts = 88,187 88,187

— 4B E|¥i A — Total return swap — 47,212 47,212
= Subtotal — 135,399 135,399
HEE Total assets = 206,098 206,098
af Liabilities
H A0 RERT5R Other payables

— B YE — Contingent consideration = 14,516 14,516
UAREBEERE  Financial liability at fair value

it NEHER through profit or loss

MERaE

— SNETH — Forward exchange instrument = 8,562 8,562
mam Total liabilities — 23,078 23,078
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HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3. MBRERER(E) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.3 AREEMRBEE) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
TREMEEE T —F+= The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that
A=Z+—BERAREBEFENEE are measured at fair value at 31 December 2021.
MEME -
£l £2 %3 st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
J/A”D\;’METE sf2BE  Financial assets at fair value
STAEMERE through other
uﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁF comprehensive income
— WERATEIELET  — Unlisted equity securities
T iE S in gas industry — — 72,600 72,600
— RUEE — Notes receivable — — 6,747 6,747
= Subtotal — — 79,347 79,347
’&/’METE#EH,H\ Financial assets at fair value
SPAES through profit or loss
}a SIS REE
SEAAEREE  — Cross currency swap and
&R interest rate swap contracts — — 9,018 9,018
— RITEMER — Bank financial products — — 30,000 30,000
= Subtotal — — 39,018 39,018
BEE Total assets — — 118,365 118,365
=L Liabilities
HABRER X Other payables
— BHE — Contingent consideration — — 180,700 180,700
’&/’METE#EHE Financial liability at fair value
SPAEMER through profit or loss
E’Uﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁ
— EBMFI==E  — Cross currency swap and
=G interest rate swap contracts — — 2,617 2,617
—SNETE — Forward exchange
instrument — — 36,670 36,670
BeE Total liabilities — — 219,987 219,987
FRNEL 2 3 2HEAWMmETE There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
% o
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BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
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3.3
(a)

(b)

(c)
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3.

3.3
(a)

(b)

(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The valuation
technique used to value the financial instrument is discounted cash
flow analysis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3. UHEREREE(E) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 QAREEME(E) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(c) HEFEIBAHZHMIA(E) (c)  Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)
TREMME_ZE-__F+=A The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for
—T—HLEFEFEIEcRIEAN the year ended 31 December 2022.

SMEIR-

RATEE i Lyl
ER" BEEF SEHE EUEE  EHER 4EHES L

Forward

exchange

instrument,

cross currency

swap and

Bank Unlisted interest

financial equity  Contingent Notes rate swap  Total return

products?  securities consideration  receivable contracts swap Total

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AREBTR ARETR ARETR AR%T:R
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

W—A—8 Balance at 1 January 30,000 72,600  (180,700) 6,747 (30,269) —  (101,622)
A Additions 50,031 - — 153372 - 62,531 265,934
SABRRLA Changes in fair value
ElEED) recognised in profit or loss 81 = 49,449 (566) 97,794 (15,319) 131,439
B2 il Net losses transfer to other
mFEk comprehensive income = (12,800) = = = = (12,800)
RE Disposals (80,112) — —  (148,654) - —  (228,766)
BeYft Cash paid — — 116,735 — 12,100 — 128,835
W+ZA=+-A Balance at 31 December — 59,800  (14,516) 10,899 79,625 47212 183,020
@ ERREERZHN—H5 0 As part of cash management activity, the Group purchases short-term
AEEREE 30 AN A E bank financial product with maturity date within 30 days.
BHIER °
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PECF A HIEFE (2FRBURBARET T (RIFESFHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3. MBEREEE 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 QAREEMEFE) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(c) HEFIEAWEMIA(E) (c)  Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)
TRBEREBEE_ZT-_—F+=A The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for
—T—HILEFEFIESRMIAN the year ended 31 December 2021.

SMETAR -

RITIRE kLT LIS
Em'  BRES XBHE EhZE BHER &t

Forward

exchange

instrument,

Cross currency

swap and

Bank Unlisted interest

financial equity  Contingent Notes rate swap
products”  securities  consideration receivable contracts Total

ARRT  ARBTT ARRTR  ARRTT  ARRTR  ARETR
RMB'O00  RMB'OOO  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

w—A—AH Balance at 1 January — 61,500 (111,708) 27,083 (30,445) (53,570)
W AR Acquisition of subsidiaries — — (143,660) — — (143,660)
i Additions 30,010 — — 182,592 = 212,602
SABRRLAEER Changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss — — 54,303 (1,993) (16,813) 35,497
EZEMIRANENFFE  Net gains transfer to other
comprehensive income = 11,100 = = = 11,100
RE Disposals (10 = —  (200,935) —  (200,945)
BeYft Cash paid — — 20,365 - 16,989 37,354
W+=A=1+-H Balance at 31 December 30,000 72,600 (180,700) 6,747 (30,269)  (101,622)
@ ERREBEEIZHN —HH - 0 As part of cash management activity, the Group purchases short-term
AEEREE 30 XN HAE bank financial product with maturity date within 30 days.
BHEM -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—F_—F1 _A=1—HILFE (LEEUSARETIT(BHFSEHYA))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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4.

(a)

(b)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2.10. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 17).

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs are not lower than the carrying amount even if taking
into account a reasonably possible change in key assumptions on the
calculations of recoverable amounts of CGUs.

Income taxes

The Group’s subsidiaries that operate in the PRC are subject
to corporate income tax in the PRC. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.
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BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(b)

(c)
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4.

(b)

(c)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Income taxes (continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised as management considers it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred income tax assets and income
tax expense in the period in which such estimate is changed.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except that the temporary differences
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, or arise from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are depreciated
or amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group assesses annually the residual value and the useful life of
the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and if the
expectation differs from the original estimates, such differences from
the original estimates will impact the depreciation or amortisation
charges in the year in which the estimates change.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—F_—F1 _A=1—HILFE (LEEUSARETIT(BHFSEHYA))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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4.

(d)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in the tables in Note 3.1(c).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the senior executive management team on
monthly basis that are used to make strategic decisions.

The senior executive management team considers the business from
a “product” perspective only, as geographically all the products are
provided within the PRC, which is considered as one geographic
location with similar risks and returns.

The reportable segments derive their revenue and profit primarily
from sales of natural gas in cylinders, sales of natural gas in bulk
and engineering construction services.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

In 2022, the senior executive management reassessed the business
model and the types of end-users who use its products, and
reclassified part of natural gas wholesale businesses into retail
businesses, enabling better review of business performance. For sales
made to residential customers, industrial and commercial customers,
and transportation customers is classified as sales of natural gas in
cylinders; sales to distribution users of city gas enterprises and gas
source trading users are classified as sales of natural gas in bulk. The
revenue from sales of gas appliance, value-added business and other
miscellaneous income, have been reviewed by the senior executive
management, and its results are included in the section “all other
segments”. The segment information in 2021 has been adjusted
retrospectively.

The senior executive management team assesses performance of the
operating segments based on segment results which represent the
profit before taxation earned by each segment without allocation of
net impairment losses on financial assets and contractual assets,
other income, other (losses)/gains — net, finance expense — net,
share of results of associates and a joint venture, unallocated
corporate expenses such as central administration costs and
directors’ salaries.

The Group does not allocate assets and liabilities to its segments, as
the senior executive management team do not use these information
to allocate resources to or evaluate the performance of operating
segment. Therefore, the Group does not report a measure of segment
assets and liabilities for each reportable segment.




B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

DEER (& 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HE-ZT-_—_F+-A=+—AH1F The segment information provided to the senior executive
FE - gAmEsBRASRITERE management team for the reportable segments for the year ended 31
BEERENDHBERT December 2022 is as follows:

AR AR IRZE Fig
BEEH  BEER RE%  HAEH  SHEHE AAE E
Sales of Sales of  Engineering
natural gas  natural gas  construction All other Inter-segment
in cylinders in bulk services  segments  elimination  Unallocated Total
ARETT ARBTRT ARBTR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

B A Total revenue 4,905,179 825,907 1,408,858 834,517  (431,602) — 7,542,859
AEHERA Inter-segment revenue - - — 431,602  (431,602) = =
RAPMIZFRMA External revenue 4,905,179 825,907 1,408,858 402,915 — — 7,542,859
Rl Nl Timing of revenue recognition
EE-RE At a point in time 4,905,179 825,907 — 399,968 - — 6,131,054
E-BHER QOver time — — 1,408,858 2,947 - — 1,411,805
AEEA Segment profit 314,584 61,946 599,772 137,479 - — 1,113,781
FARER Unallocated expenses (31,698)  (31,698)
SRRANEEN Net impairment losses on
HESETE financial assets and
contract assets (64,293)  (64,293)
Eftla Other income 23413 23413
EtEE — 38 Other losses — net (104,395)  (104,395)
RERE Operating profit 936,808
YKER — 38 Finance expenses — net (313414)  (313,414)
FEBENFARAECEEE  Share of results of
associates and
a joint venture 46,730 46,730
REEHAAE Profit before income tax 670,124
MERER Income tax expense (200,852)  (200,852)
KEFE Profit for the year 469,272
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

5. 9EEE (& 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HE-Z-_—F+-A=+—AH1t The segment information provided to the senior executive
FE - A mESBRASRITERE management team for the reportable segments for the year ended 31
BEREEHEMSBER/DT KL= December 2021, as restated, is as follows:
Pl
FAR FRE IERE fig

SEEH  HEER k% EhAE  HHEHE AHE a3t
Sales of Salesof  Engineering
natural gas  natural gas  construction All other Inter-segment
in cylinders in bulk services  segments  elimination  Unallocated Total
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000

B A Total revenue 4,146,336 970,602 2,221,512 580,330 (268,435) — 7,600,345
DEBREUA Inter-segment revenue = = — 268435  (268,435) = =
RENIMIEFEMA External revenue 414633 970602 2221512 311,89 - — 7,650,345
H Nl Timing of revenue recognition
EE-BE At a point in time 4,146,336 970,602 = 309,212 = — 5,426,150
E—REREA QOver time = — 2221512 2,683 = —  2,224,19
PEE Segment profit 438,238 64,472 891,798 132,960 — — 1527468
FORER Unallocated expenses (23222)  (23,222)
SHRANAEY Net impairment losses on
HESETE financial assets and
contract assets (18,0300 (18,030
Hils Other income 15,485 15,485
EtFE — 58 Other gains — net 99,409 99,409
BERE Operating profit 1,601,110
BBER— 38 Finance expenses — net (228,053)  (228,053)
BEBENFARAECEEE  Share of results of
associates and
a joint venture (10,253) (10,253)
REEHANE Profit before income tax 1,362,804
FEHER Income tax expense (334,690)  (334,690)
REFE Profit for the year 1,028,114
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-T-—Ff-H=—1—HIFFE (2FELBARETT(HIESEHH))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

DEWEE(E

ARBEBFRAIGEMPRAE -
PR 2K B RSMNERE P BV AL SR
KRB - RArARIEREEESN
TRFRE

HE-_T-_—F+=-A=+—HI
FEN  AEBEEE—IINPREP
WAL AR T751,669,0007C © 15
REFHBRALH10% (T =-—F
E: AR¥1,440,960,0007T @ 1h
ANEE AU A 19%) (Hi5E35(b))
HERABR IR KRB
AREMEER(ZE=-_—FE: T
BEELREMRATMILER)

AEBOHERATEEFERARM
MEEMEE :

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The principal subsidiaries of the Company are domiciled in the PRC.
All the revenue from external customers are derived from the PRC,
and all the non-current assets are located in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue of approximately
RMB751,669,000, which is about 10% of the Group’s total revenue,
is derived from a single customer (2021: RMB1,440,960,000,
about 19%) (Note 35(b)). The revenue is attributable to the
engineering construction service and sales of natural gas in bulk
(2021: engineering construction service and sales of natural gas in
bulk)

The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities related
to contracts with customers:

W=B==F R-ZE-—%

t=A=t-A t+=A=t-H

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

AR¥T R AREF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

MEEHEE Current contract assets 2,729,533 2,425,637

A B Less: Loss allowance (61,769) (10,915)

ERNEERTE Total contract assets 2,667,764 2,414,722
AHAaE Contract liabilities

TR R MRS Engineering construction service 386,041 421,586

KARTEXET Sales of natural gas in cylinders 189,754 167,280

RARBLEEZETS Sales of natural gas in bulk 56 3,137

EHEERE Total contract liabilities 575,851 592,003
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PECF A HIEFE (2FRBURBARET T (RIFESFHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

5. ZEEE(E 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(i) COEIAHESYEBEEBHBUW () Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
A
FUMEHNEEEEFDLLEER The following table shows the revenue recognised in the current
WARSERINT reporting period related to carried-forward contract liability as of
January 1:
BZE+-A=+—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—=B_C- —T-—F
2022 2021
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
TERE KRS Engineering construction service 373,485 290,431
RARTEE Sales of natural gas in cylinders 156,819 105,850
RARILEE TS Sales of natural gas in bulk 3,137 4,387
533,441 400,668
6. Hfttlhz= 6. OTHER INCOME
BZ+=-A=+—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—EC-CF T
2022 2021
AR¥ET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BT ED Government grants in relation to
— BIERE — Tax refund 2,977 2,914
— EHIREEEEEN K  — Subsidies for local investment rewards
H th#HBh and other incentives 20,436 12,571
23,413 15,485
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFEF = —HIUFRE (2HEEURBARETIT(GIFSEHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

Hiy(E5E) FI$E — 7. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET
TREE

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

== —E-—F
2022 2021
ARMT T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BRETEE - WFEX  Gains on disposal of property,

RAEFIE (5E32(b))  plant and equipment (Note 32(b)) 2,555 425
e MEnE Penalty and overdue fines (1,031) (3,419)
SEEBARBEESE) Changes in fair value of contingent consideration 49,449 54,303
SEIEH (J82K) Wz Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains (245,598) 71,115
WAREBEG=EHAAE  Gains/(losses) on financial assets and

BHEET BTN financial liabilities at fair value through

TREEMESRME[E  profit or loss (Note 23)

Wz, (BK)

(Bf3E 23) 82,475 (16,813)
ARBETERHE  Disposal losses of notes receivable measured

BEET AHMSRE at fair value through other comprehensive

W a R R R income (Note 19)

BEEK (M 19) (566) (1,993)
Eb Others 8,321 (4,209)

(104,395) 99,409
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-T - H=1—HIIFE (2HEELBARETIT(GIESHEHH))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

8.

REESENER 8. EXPENSES BY NATURE

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

== —E-—F

2022 2021

AR¥T T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

FANRME &EES  Raw materials and consumables used 5,278,145 4,668,463
TEE - BEK Depreciation on property, plant and

BABEITE (HFE15) equipment (Note 15) 202,174 190,704
R EETE Depreciation on investment properties (Note 16)

(KMizr16) 2,685 2,670
| EE#S (BH5E17) Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) 122,796 123,706
BITwMER(MTE9) Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) 307,911 281,923
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 14)

(Btzr14) 11,401 10,893
THE2EMEFTER Engagement of construction and design services 357,880 720,643
HIEE Maintenance costs 37,339 25,917
BERERE Energy consumption 35,363 31,969
He Taxes 24,057 25,393
BN == Office expenses 18,855 15,369
EXEH Professional expenses 14,350 10,081
EBREE Entertainment expenses 12,137 12,471
EIRE Travelling expenses 11,652 7,016
RiBE Transportation costs 9,576 6,019
ZE AN S Auditors’ remuneration

— ZERTE — Audit services 3,500 3,500

— IEZEARTE — Non-audit services 50 50
HmEBERLE Licensing fee for the exclusive operating rights

EERE for city pipeline network 1,100 1,100
SEER Advertising expenses 2,105 2,821
M Miscellaneous 7,700 5,391
SHERA - DRk AN K, Total cost of sales, distribution expenses and

1THE BT administrative expenses 6,460,776 6,146,099
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BE+t-A=1T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-= —E-—F

2022 2021

AR¥T T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

TE& M Wages and salaries 231,750 215,449
BRIRE KA Pension costs — defined contribution plans (a)

— TRfFE 8l (a) 25,014 22,645
HERBEST Social security benefits costs 25,367 22,743
=i} Others 25,780 21,086

307,911 281,923

AEBzHPEFRARNETIRSMN
HEMTRAEREMEENRAKE
FHE c AREZFETARERE
BRABHNZEEFMETEDL
AT BIHER -

RZEZ_ZF+ZA=+—8"
AN BB A2 IR AN
BWAFEHRR(R_BE=_—F+=
A=+—H: &) - R=ZT==
T A=t+—BYEAJESANE
SRR IAHBARRER (R =T
——F+-A=+—H:#)-

FRERAERESHBNSREFT R
AR®E241,000( == —%F -
ARH1,415,0007T) °

(@)

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate
in the defined contribution retirement schemes administrated
and operated by the local municipal government. The Group’s
PRC subsidiaries contribute funds to the schemes to fund the
retirement benefits of the employees, which are calculated on certain
percentage of the employee salaries.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to offset contributions payable in future years and no
forfeited contributions were utilised by the Group to reduce its
contribution for the current year in 2022 (2021: Nil).

Contributions totalling RMB241,000 (2021: RMB1,415,000) were
payable to the fund at the year-end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PECF A HIEFE (2FRBURBARET T (RIFESFHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

9. BITRERHZ& 9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(continued)

(b) HEuUESHMAL (b) Five highest paid individuals
BE-T-_—_F+-_A=+—A1F The five individuals whose emoluments were highest in the Group
FE - AEBRANESHFALERE for the year ended 31 December 2022 included four (2021: four)
WEREE(ZZE_—FEF : UF) - directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in
ZEEENHEE RN E38 Note 38. The emoluments payable to the remaining one individual
FoHET-_—_F+_HA=1— for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: one) are as follows:

BLEFEE N TFHTI—R(ZF
——FE &) ALHBET

BE+-A=1+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

=== —_E_—fF
2022 2021
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEAFS  {FBE285 - Basic salaries, housing allowances,
Lt 2 BL AN A F) other allowances and benefits 356 481
RIRRER Pension and other social benefits
Hibi S RBAEF 17 —
373 481
ARA L A LTS BRI TE The emoluments of the above individuals fell within the following
: bands:

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—=2-_- —E-—F
2022 2021
£ 2%% 1,000,000t Nil to HKD1,000,000
(HEARE (approximate to RMB893,000)
893,0007T) 1 1
AEBEWERAEESHA LI No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
ETBNE 1E A DN AR S B sk N A B individuals as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
BB S BB (S o compensation for loss of office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

10. M BBEH

REE 10. FINANCE EXPENSES — NET

BE+t-A=1T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—=2-_- —E-—F
2022 2021
ARMT T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
B U zs Interest income
— IRITFER — bank deposits (11,541) (7,729)
AEEA Interest expenses
— & — bank borrowings 331,375 242,916
—HEAE — leasing liabilities 560 677
— Hity — others 9,105 7,335
B AEREEE AR Less: amounts capitalised on
H5E (M3E 15()) qualifying assets (Note 15(e)) (16,085) (15,146)
324,955 235,782
313,414 228,053
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFL A= —HIUFRE (RREENBARETIT(BIHESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11 FARKE 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
RZEZZF+=ZHA=+—H =& The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
ARANFETFT AR TREZS 2022:

HRELHER/ B&f/ REEX
£ BHERAH EEERER BAR% Bi TEERAGEY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
URBRARAR ([UABHR) iBERREE/ BREFAT 7 100%*  REBERESMH
“2F=E+AR N
Upsky Holdings Limited (“Upsky Holdings") BVl Limited liability company T 100%**  Intermediary holding
8 July 2003 company in BVI
KeFsRaRAF ((ReHaR) hEAE/ BREMAR = 100%  REERNBRAR
“T-ZERATH
Tian Lun New Energy Limited Hong Kong/ Limited liability company —* 100% Intermediary holding
(“Tian Lun New Energy") 10 May 2010 company in HK
BETARTERARAR (BRN0R) @8/ BREMAR 15,000 100% RAERREBANRHE
“2-TERATER REREERRETRZE
Hebi Tian Lun New Energy Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 15,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Hebi New Energy") 13 May 2010 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC

TEARRREEERAR(TEAGRR]) +8/ BREMAR 1,912,660 100% M ERREEANRHE
ZERCET-A-A RAREERRETRER
Henan Tian Lun Gas Group Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 1,912,660 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Henan Tian Lun Gas") 1 November 2002 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC

BETAREARAERAT hE/ EREFAT 10,000 100%  PHEHEBERAR
([EExRER]) “ZRLETACTAR

Hebi Tian Lun Vehicle-use Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Hebi Tian Lun Vehicle") 29 Qctober 2007

162 XGMRRERERAT 2022FFEHE o




1) FARRE (&)

B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 -F -

FfZA=F—HIFFE (2BRELRARETT(KIFSEFHS))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ RERN
£ BHRAH EETRE 2 e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTR
(RMB'000)
FETARRRARAA ([FFEXR)) hE/ BEREEAT 135,000 100%  RREREEERASHE
ZEESEAAZTAR RAREERRETRER
Xuchang Tian Lun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 135,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Xuchang Tian Lun") 29 September 2003 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
FETARERRRARAR e/ BRETAR 10,000 100%  RREEERERAR
([FExRER]) ZEEN\ENATZR
Xuchang Tian Lun Vehicle-use Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Kuchang Tian Lun Vehicle") 12 September 2008
ST LERXGIHRARAR( LERR]) HB/ BRELAT 15,000 0%  REREEBRARHE
ZERHELATIR RAREERRETRER
Zhengzhou Shangjie Tian Lun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 15,000 90% Sales of pipelined
(“Shangjie Tian Lun") 18 July 2007 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
ARTARRARAR ([HBAR) e/ BREFAT 30,361 BI%  MPERREERRRHE
ZEESERATAR RIREERRAIRT R
Baiyin Natural Gas Limited (“Gansu Baiyin")*** PRC/ Limited liability company 30,361 98.97% Sales of pipelined
16 June 2003 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
ARTEANRARAR (A RER]) hE/ EREfFAT 8,500 100%  RREEERERRR
“ERNETATRR
Baiyin Wantong Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 8,500 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Baiyin Wantong") 15 October 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFL A= —HIUFRE (RREENBARETIT(BIHESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) FARKRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELNER/ B/ HERN
£ BHRAH EEERER B e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTT
(RMB'000)
EERE AREERERAT e/ BRERAT 140,000 100%  RREREEERASHE
(FE#mE)) ZFERE-AC 1A RS EERRAIRER
REERARHE
Jilin Zhongji Dadi Gas Group Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 140,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Jilin Zhongji") 25 March 2005 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines and sales of
CNG in the PRC
amARRARAR ((haxi)) e/ BREFAT 24,000 100%  REEEEEERAR
“FT\ELANR
Jiutai Dadi Gas Limited (“Jiutai Dadi") PRC/ Limited liability company 24,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural gas
8 July 2008 inthe PRC
ERTAMRRARAR ([ERAM)) hE/ BEREfFAT 10,000 100% RAEHEEERAAR
ZEERETAZ T EBERAR
Panshi Dadi Gas Limited (“Panshi Dadi") PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural gas
26 October 2006 and CNG in the PRC
AETAMRRARAR ([ AZAL) hE/ BREFAT 12,000 100%  RPEHERERARR
ZZE)\f-AZtAA BERAR
Da'an Dadi Gas Limited (“Da'an Dadi") PRC/ Limited liability company 12,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural gas
25 January 2008 and CNG in the PRC
AHm AR ARERA hE/ BREMAR 6,000 100%  RREEERERAR
([a%As]) e
Baicheng Dadi Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 6,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC

(“Baicheng Dadi")
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFEF = —HIUFRE (2HEEURBARETIT(GIFSEHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11 FRARIRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ RERN
£ BHRAH EETRE 2 e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTR
(RMB'000)
BB MEERAA hE/ BRERAR 16,000 100%  RPEEEEERAR
(TEEHLH) ZEENENAZTR
Zhenlai County Dadi Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 16,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural gas
(“Zhenlai County Dadi") 30 September 2009 in the PRC
BREALRAERAR nE/ EREEAR 10,000 100%  RPEEEEERAR
([EmEAD]) “ERRET-A=TH
Tongyu County Dadi Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural gas
(“Tongyu County Dadi") 30 November 2005 in the PRC
EETRRIRAERAR e/ EREFAR 20,000 00%  RPERREERAREE
([5AfR) ZERNET-ANA RAREERRETRYS
Puyang Tian Lun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 20,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Puyang Tianlun") 9 November 2009 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC

MM AHRARERAR hE/ BREFAR 13,000 100%  RPEHEEERAR
([#eAs)) ZERtE-RTRA
Dunhua Dadi Gas Limited (“Dunhua Dadi") PRC/ Limited liability company 13,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural gas
15 January 2007 inthe PRC
ETARRERERAR (E0AR))  +E/ EREfFAT 5,000 100% RRERETRAGTR
ZTT-E-fAtH EEl
Jilin Dadi Technology Consultancy Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 5,000 100% Engineering design and
(“Jilin Dadi") 7 March 2002 consulting services in
the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFL A= —HIUFRE (RREENBARETIT(BIHESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11 FRARIRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
HRELNER/ B/ HERN
£ BHRAH EEERER B e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTT
(RMB'000)
HREXRREARAA PE/ BREAAT 10,000 00%  APEREEERAAHE
(5% xR “2—41-ACH RAREERRETRER
Xinye County Tian Lun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Xinye Tian Lun") 2 November 2011 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC

MR RERAE e/ BRELAT 33,330 100%  RPEREREERARHE
([Ar4ER]) ZEERE-5R RS EERRAIRY R
REERARHE
Henan Luyuan Gas Limited (“Henan Luyuan") ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 33,330 100% Sales of pipelined
6 January 2005 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas

pipelines and sales of
CNG in the PRC

EEXRAAERAR HE/ BRERAT 41,000 00%  APEREEERARHE
(A=) T4 AZTRA RAREERRETRER
Song County Tian Lun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 41,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Henan Songxian") 24 June 2011 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC

BEMGRERRARAR hE/ EREFAT 1,060 100%  PHEHEBERAR
([BEsRER]) ZEERE\AZTZH

Shangqiu Luyuan Vehicle Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 1,060 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Shanggiu Luyuan Vehicle") 22 August 2006
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-T-—Ff-H=—1—HIFFE (2FELBARETT(HIESEHH))

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ RERN
£ BHRAH EETRE 2 e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTR
(RMB'000)
AORBRRERAA hE/ BRERAR 13,500 100%  RPEREEERASHE
(A%l “T—4-f5R RREERRETRRE
Dongkou Senbo Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 13,500 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Dongkou Senbo”) 6 January 2011 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
RHBARARERAA (FHER]) e/ BRELAR 30,000 100%  RPEREREERARHE
ZEEMETAZT/\A RAREERRETRE R
Kaifeng Xi'Na Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Kaifeng Xi'Na") 28 October 2004 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
BEARRAERAR e/ BREEAR 10,000 80%  PERREERAAHE
([Bg=X]) ZE-Z§RANA RAREERRETRYS
Cao County Zhongtian Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 80% Sales of pipelined
(“Caoxian Zhongtian”) 9 May 2012 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
BEHRRRARAR e/ EREEAR 12,000 80%  MERREERAANE
([E8=R]) ZEEREMAZTEA RAREERRETRZE
Shan County Zhongtian Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 12,000 80% Sales of pipelined
(“Shanxian Zhongtian”) 27 April 2006 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
ERERRGIRARAR HE/ BREAAT 30,000 00%  APERBEERATHE
([BRAf) “T-ZE-ARR RASEERRATRRE
Guangxi Luzhai Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Luzhai Tianlun”) 6 January 2012 natural gas, construction

and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) FRARKRE (©2) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ HERN
£ BHRAH EETREH B e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTT
(RMB'000)
HExhERERRAERAT £F/ BREAAT 10,500 0%  RPEREEERAR
(TFEXR)) ZE-CERA=T-H
Xingtai Tianlun Yunyu Vehicle Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,500 70% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Xingtai Tianlun”) 31 May 2012
ERREREERAA (HRAR]) e/ BREMAT 30,000 100%  REERREEANRHE
ZB-CEt-A=TH REREERRETRZE
Gulang Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Gulang Tianlun") 30 November 2012 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
EHREERRIRERAA e/ BREMAR 10,000 0% REEREFRERRE
((R&XfR)) ZT-=ETZANA RERE
Jilin Changling County Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 70% New energy technology
(“Changling Tianlun") 4 December 2013 development services in
the PRC
FREEAARERERAA(RAEE]) 4B/ BREMFAT 10,000 80%  AMEREEBAARHE
e Sk RAREERRETRZS
Dongming Wanji Natural Gas Industrial PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 80% Sales of pipelined
Limited (“Dongming Wanji") 3 June 2005 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
HETETARSARAR (2R ) nE/ BREAAT 30,000 00%  APEREEERAANE
2 1 RAREERRETRRE
Heze Guanghe Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Heze Guanghe") 24 January 2002 natural gas, construction
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ RERN
£ BHRAH EETRE 2 e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTR
(RMB'000)
BEEGARRAARAR hE/ BEREEAT 10,000 100%  RPEREEERASHE
([EBXR]) ZRCEt-ACTHA RAREERRETRER
Guangxi Guanyang Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Guanyang Tianlun") 27 November 2013 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
P B R RERRAERAR nE/ BREAAA 10,000 100%  RPEHEEERAR
([ HxmER]) ZE-CERATIR
Zhengzhou Shangjie Tianlun Vehicle Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
Limited (“Shangjie Tianlun Vehicle”) 18 April 2013
EHABRARARAR (28AR)) g/ BRERAT 160,380 100% Wﬂ RETEEHR
“2-=F=AZ1RA RS
Yunnan Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 160,380 100% Engineering design and
(“Yunnan Datong") 24 March 2013 consulting services in
the PRC
SEEARRRRARAA e/ EREFAR 37,380 100%  RPEREEERATHE
([&2RR]) ZERtEFZAZT-R RAREERRETRZS
Huize Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 37,380 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Huize Datong") 21 December 2007 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
EEABARRERAR(EEAR]) hE/ EREFAT 30,000 100%  RPERREERARHE
“ERNE-ATER REREERRETRRE
Gejiu Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined

(“Gejiu Datong")

15 January 2009

natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) FARKRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ HERN
£ BHRAH EETREH B e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTT
(RMB'000)
BREABANRARAR e/ BREEAT 33,000 100%  RREREREERASHE
(TEAE)) “E-ZENACH RREERRETERE
Guangnan Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 33,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Guangnan Datong”) 2 September 2010 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
AREABRARBRAR nE/ BREAAA 26,000 00%  RPERREERARHE
(MA@l ZE-ZEAAZTHA RAREERRETRE R
Hekou Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 26,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Hekou Datong") 24 September 2013 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
RUEABRATERAR nE/ EREFAR 26,000 00%  RPERREERARHE
([RILAR]) Z5——£nA1H RAREERRETRZS
Yanshan Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 26,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Yanshan Datong”) 10 May 2011 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
HAABRARERAR e/ EREEAR 10,000 00%  RPERREERAREE
(T Al) ZEENEN\AZ TR REREERRETRRE
Honghe Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Honghe Datong") 25 August 2009 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
HRERBRAARAR (REXR]) hE/ BREMAR 10,000 100%  RPEEEEEANR
Z2-ZEYA=1A
Weishi Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Weishi Tianlun") 30 July 2013 gas in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ RERN
£ BHRAH EETRE 2 e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTR
(RMB'000)
EFERRIAERAT hE/ BREAAT 16,000 00%  APERBIEE
([HExR]) ZE-ZE/\AZ 17 RikR
Jilin Yitong Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 16,000 100% Engineering design and
(“Yitong Tianlun”) 26 August 2013 consulting services in
the PRC
ERERARAR (EAER) hEEE/ BEREfFAT 610 100%  REBRERARRERZ
“E-=ExA+=R
Hong Kong Xin Rong Limited Hong Kong/ Limited liability company 610 100% Trading of natural gas
(“HK Xin Rong") 13 June 2013 equipment in HK
BT HRER R EEMRERAR 8/ BEREAF 30,000 90% RRERREERNAEE
(g1 ZEEN\E+ATRR RAREERRETRE R
Shantou Chaoyang District Minan PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 90% Sales of pipelined
Pipelined Gas Limited 15 October 2008 natural gas, construction
(“Shantou Chaoyang”) and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
WETEERRRRARAT hE/ EREMFAT 17,250 0%  AEREEERARHE
(s —hARERAZTHA RAREERRETRZS
Shantou Chenghai Gas Construction PRC/ Limited liability company 17,250 90% Sales of pipelined
Limited (“Shantou Chenghai") 24 June 1994 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
BATERARRAARA e/ EREEAR 133,224 60%  RIERREERARHE
(R “T-TENARR RAREERRETRRE
Chaozhou Huamao Energy Distribution PRC/ Limited liability company 133,224 60% Sales of pipelined
Limited (“Chaozhou Huamao”) 6 September 2010 natural gas, construction

and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFL A= —HIUFRE (RREENBARETIT(BIHESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1) FARRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ HERN
£ BHRAH EETREH B e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTT
(RMB'000)
SR RAROAAER) w8/ ARARAT 10000 0% REEERASEERER
“E-ZFRA=TA
Tangyin Yuneng Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Provision of designing service
(“Tangyin Yuneng") 30 May 2013 of gas pipelines in the PRC
gt ERAE ([£HtL)) hEEE/ BREMAR 79" 100% REBETRENEERE
“5-mEN\ARTR
Wah Shing Century Limited Hong Kong/ Limited liability company 79 100% Investment in equity and
(“Wah Shing Century") 5 August 2014 assets in HK
IRRRRERRAR (L RARRE ) e/ EREMFAT 70,000 100%  REERRRNMER
ZZEFRAZTER
Beijing Tian Lun Investment Company PRC/ Limited liability company 70,000 100% Intermediary holding in
Limited (“Beijing Tian Lun Investment”) 23 May 2006 the PRC
TEXRRRERERAR(RERAEE) 8/ EREFAT 265,411 0%  RERRMRHEERER
“TE\E-BTAR
Henan Tianlun Pipeline Company Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 265,411 90% Sales and transportation
(“Tianlun Pipeline”) 19 February 2008 gas in the PRC
HIERRIRRARAR (HIRfR]) hE/ BREMAR - 100%  RPERRAAREEMN
“E-NEtAZR RRRHBHE
Xichuan Tianlun Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company — 100% Sales of natural gas and
(“Xichuan Tianlun") 3July 2019 trading of natural gas

equipment in the PRC

SHERRRARAA([=REE)) e/ EREFAA 24,000 00%  RPERREMRHER
-2~ AR BRARRERER
MREEIRER
Sanming Hui Ji Energy Company Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 24,000 100% Sales and transportation
(“Sanming Huiji") 9 January 2012 gas, gas pipelines

connections in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1) FARIKRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ RERN
£ BHRAH EETRE 2 e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTR
(RMB'000)
FHRRIRERRRAR (SNAR ) hE/ BRERAR 50,000 85%  IMPEREMAHERER
ZEEN\EZA+A
Suzhou Tianlun Natural Gas Pipeline PRC/ Limited liability company 50,000 85% Sales and transportation
Network Company Limited 17 March 2008 gas in the PRC

(“Suzhou Tianlun")

BRELBAARARAR (BREE]) e/ BRELAA 3,000 100%  RHERREERRAHE
ZERRETCATCA RAREERRETRZS
Li Quan County Hong Yuan Natural PRC/ Limited liability company 3,000 100% Sales of pipelined
Gas Company Limited 12 December 2005 natural gas, construction
(“Liquan Hongyuan") and connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC

EREANRARAR (%E7E)) e/ BREMAR 3,000 100% RAERREBANRHE
ZERENATIR RAEERRATERR
Qian County Hong Yuan Natural Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 3,000 100% Sales of pipelined
Company Limited (“Qianxian Hongyuan”) 18 September 2006 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC

EMEERRIRARAR ([ EHEZ ) hE/ BREMAR 19,000 100%  RPERREERARHE
“T-TERAZT-R RREERRATERS
Jilin Qian'an Tianlun Gas Company PRC/ Limited liability company 19,000 100% Sales of pipelined
Limited (“Jilin Qian'an”) 21 May 2010 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC

BRgmisEnaaRARN(BEwE])  +8/ ERELAA 10,000 100%  RPERREERARHE
Z5——F=f=1-H RREERRAIRT R
Fenghuang County Zhongyou Zhiyuan Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined
Company Limited (“Fenghuang Zhongyou") 31 March 2011 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) FRARKRE (©2) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRAINER B&f1/ RERY
£ BERAH EEEREN 2E e Bi TEERALENY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTTI
(RMB'000)
W ERERARARELLT nE/ EREEAR 30,000 100%  RPERBEERAREE
([mIBE]) ZEREETCACTA REREERRETRZE
Sichuan Mingsheng Natural Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined
Company Limited 20 December 2000 natural gas, construction
(“Sichuan Mingsheng") and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
)| G R AR AR B AR &/ BRERLA 39,800 100% RPERREEARANE
gl “E-1ENA-R RAREERRETRER
Xichuan Longcheng Natural PRC/ Limited liability company 39,800 100% Sales of pipelined
(Gas Company Limited 1 September 2015 natural gas, construction
(“Xichuan Longcheng") and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
SETRIBEEERARERAA nE/ ARERAT 20,000 8%  RPEREEERAREE
(12e%EZ)) “ERLECA AR MAREERRATIRLR
Lechang Anshunda Pipeline PRC/ Limited liability company 20,000 85% Sales of pipelined
Nature Gas Company Limited 15 February 2007 natural gas, construction
(“Lechang Anshunda”) and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
8¢ EGRBIRARAA e/ EREFAR 51,145 00%  RPERREERARHE
([ezmal) —hWAZERATZA RAREERRETRY S
Sichuan Jintang County Tian Lun Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 51,145 100% Sales of pipelined
Company Limited (“/intang Gas") 12 May 1993 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
BEXRRRERAA ([HANE) hE/ BREMAR 1,081 100%  RPERREERARHEE
“B-tE-AtZA REREERRETRRE
Nantong Tian Lun Gas Company Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 1,081 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Nantong Gas") 22 January 2017 gas, construction and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) FRARKRE (©2) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ RERN
£ BHRAH EETRE 2 e B TEERAGERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTR
(RMB'000)
REERARNRERERLA £F/ BRERAR 10,000 100%  RPEREEERASHE
([RERA]) ZE-CERATIR RREERRETRRE
Wubu Changxing Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Wubu Changxing") 18 April 2012 gas, construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
AEERERARAREEAR) hE/ BREFAT 12,000 100%  RhEREEERARHE
(IAHERED ZEEREMATIR RAREERRETRYS
Mizhi Changxing Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 12,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Mizhi Changring”) 14 April 2006 gas, construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
DERRARRARAR ([ HERAR)) hE/ BREMAR 5,000 100% RAERRRRREEN
ZZ-\fmAT-A RIERREHE
Shanghai Tian Lun Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 5,000 100% Sales of natural gas and
(“Shanghai Natural Gas") 11 April 2018 trading of natural gas
equipment in the PRC
RFEEANRERAR (RRELH)) EP/ EREFAT 10,000 100%  RPERREBANEES
Z2-ZE/\AZ1H RAREERRETRE R
Shijiazhaung Jinming Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Shijiazhuang Jinming”) 20 August 2013 gas, construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
WX BENERERARAT e/ EREFAR 10,000 1%  RPERRRARHEHE
(TmiEs]) Z5-\fZRt-H
Sichuan Tian Lun Shuxin Clean Energy Limited  PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 51% Wholesales of natural gas
(“Sichuan Shuxin”) 11 February 2018 in the PRC
SETXRESHRERAA(RBRE)  H8/ EREMFAT 16,030 100%  REERRENEE
“E-\EARZTH HRRHERHE
Xingyang City Tian Lun Intelligent Energy PRC/ Limited liability company 16,030 100% Electricity generation, supply
Limited (“Xingyang Tianlun") 20 September 2018 and sales services in the

PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFL A= —HIUFRE (RREENBARETIT(BIHESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) FARKRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ HERN
£ BHRAH EETREH B e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTT
(RMB'000)
RRRRERRRARAR (RAXR)) e/ BREEAT 2,884 5820%  RAEREARAEE
ZE-N\EtAT-R TEARRAEE
TR
Dongming Tian Lun Yunzhen Energy PRC/ Limited liability company 2,884 58.20% Sales of natural gas,

Limited (“Dongming Tianlun") 11 July 2018 construction consulting and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC

EVERAERAA ([RTE]) e/ BRELAT 20,000 100%  REERRARRHE
ZEESEMATRA TEEARRAEE
TRk
Xiping Kaida Gas Company Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 20,000 100% Sales of natural gas,

(“Xiping Kaida") 15 April 2003 construction consulting and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC

BiAwEHERERAR (BkR]) e/ ERELAT 10,000 5%  RREREAREHEHE
ZZ-WERAZT-R
Guangyuan Tian Lun Shuxin Energy PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 51% Wholesales of natural gas
Limited (“Guangyuan Tianlun") 21 May 2019 inthe PRC
ML ZRAARBARAR e/ EREEAR 400 100%  ReEREMEALEREE
(EvEY) s
Henan Jin'an Gas Appliance Technolog PRC/ Limited liability company 400 100% Production and sales
Co., Ltd.(“Jin'an Gas Appliance”) 16 July 2021 of gas appliances
in the PRC
AHERRETRARAR (| BREE]) hE/ EREFAT 500 100%  RebERRRERS
“E-NEtATER
Henan Shoukai Construction Engineering PRC/ Limited liability company 500 100% Building construction
Co., Ltd.(“Shoukai Building") 15 July 2019 business in the PRC

176 XRGHREEREMRAT 20226 FEHE




1) FARRE (&)

B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 -F -

FFZA=+—HIEFE (2HEBARETFT(HIFZEHNA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ RERN
£ BHRAH EETRE 2 e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTR
(RMB'000)
BUREREERAA(TBLKR]) hE/ BEREEAT - 0%  RREREMSHERER
Z5-\FRA=1-H HRARERK
Lushan Tianlun Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company — 90% Sales and transportation
(“Lushan Tianlun") 31 May 2018 of gas and sales of gas
appliance in the PRC
BERRMAERLA (EEXR]) hE/ BEREfFAT - 0% - MMERERMREERER
Z2-)\fRA+-A MRAHERH
Baofeng Tianlun Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company — 90% Sales and transportation
(“Baofeng Tianlun”) 11 May 2018 of gas and sales of gas
appliance in the PRC
EERRERNRARAR e/ BREEAT - 0%  REREMEIENRRS
(%X RER]) ZECEENATR
Yexian Tianlun Vehicle Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company — 90% Gas vehicle refueling
(“Yexian Tianlun Vehicle") 10 September 2020 service in the PRC
REXRRAERAA (HEXR]) e/ BREMAR - 90% RAEERRRRREEN
“T-NERAAR RERREHERH
Jiaxian Tianlun Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company — 90% Sales of natural gas and
(“Jiaxian Tianlun") 6 June 2019 trading of natural gas
equipment in the PRC
EEXRRRERAA (EEXR]) hE/ ERELAA 70 0%  RREREASHERER
ZZ-\ERATNR MRBHERK
Yexian Tianlun Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company 70 90% Sales and transportation
(“Yexian Tianlun") 18 May 2018 of gas and sales of gas
appliance in the PRC
EHARMAERAR ([EAAR) hE/ EREFAT - 0%  MPEREMREERER
“T-\ERARR REABEXK
Wugang Tianlun Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company — 90% Sales and transportation
(“Wugang Tianlun") 6 June 2018 of gas and sales of gas

appliance in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11 FRARIRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ HERN
£ BHRAH EETREH B e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTT
(RMB'000)
TEEEERRRARAR (ILER)) e/ BREEAT 60,000 100%  RREREAREHE IR
ZEESEYCACTRE AARMAEEIRRE
Shengiu County Huixin Natural Gas Company ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 60,000 100% Sales of natural gas,

Limited (“Shengiu Huixin") 25 December 2003 construction consulting and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC

THEBEXARAREAAA(FMIER]) +&/ BRELAT 46,000 100%  RPERERARHE IR
ZERHE-ANA AARMAEEIRLE
Zizhou County Shunxiang Natural Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 46,000 100% Sales of natural gas,

Company Limited (“Zizhou Shunxiang") 9 January 2007 construction consulting and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC

LR ERERAA nE/ EREFAR 10,000 00%  RPERRAAREE IE

([&REX]) it 3 o HARMREE IR

Gulang Longtian Natural Gas Co.,Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of natural gas,

(“Gulang Longtian") 31 July 2020 construction consulting and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC

TEKEHERRRBARAR e/ EREEAR 20,000 100%  RPERERNAER
(T a8 ) S Y oy 12
Jiangsu Yongyang Hefeng Energy Technology ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 20,000 100% Intermediary holding in the
Co., Ltd (“Yongyang Energy") 24 March 2021 PRC
ERERRERELLR hE/ EREMFAT 25,000 0%  MERREEAARHE
([EBE]) “ZENENAZT-A RAREERRETRT S
Deyang City Huaneng Gas Co.,Ltd PRC/ Limited liability company 25,000 90% Sales of pipelined natural

(“Deyang Huaneng”) 21 April 2004 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFEF = —HIUFRE (2HEEURBARETIT(GIFSEHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) FARKRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ RERN
£ BHRAH EETRE 2 e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTR
(RMB'000)
ERgERARLT hE/ BREAAT 10,000 0% WPEFEEERAR
([Ek8e)) ZZEN\E-A=T-H HEXH
Deyang City Lvneng Gas Co.,Ltd PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 90% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Deyang Lvneng") 31 January 2008
TEXRAAERAR nE/ EREEAR 17,000 100%  RPERBEERAR
([HEXR) S 0 1 HERR
Wangging Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 17,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Wangqing Tianlun”) 23 March 2021
MAEREREERRERAA hE/ BREfFAT 400 100%  REERERREREN
([re%]) ZRC-ELATER EEES
Henan Jin'an Intelligent Life Technology PRC/ Limited liability company 400 100% Technology development and
Co., Ltd. ("Hennan Jin'an") 15 July 2021 consulting services in the
PRC
EEHREERARARAA HE/ BREAAT 3,000 100%  APERBEEXAR
([EBHME]) “2-—£RAthA HEXK
Huzhu County Limin Compressed Natural PRC/ Limited liability company 3,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
Gas Co., Ltd. (*Huzhu Limin”) 19 May 2011
ABESHMABRAR e/ BREEAR 30,000 00%  RPERREERAREE
(TR@el) ZZEN\ERATER REREERRETRRE
Datong County Jindi Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Datong Jindi") 13 June 2008 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
ABESHERERARERAT HE/ BREAAT 10,000 100%  APERBEEXAR
(TR BB ) Z2-ZE\AZ15A HEXK
Datong County Jindi Compressed Natural PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC

(Gas Co., Ltd. (“Datong Yasuo”)

26 August 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) FRARKRE (©2) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELNER/ B/ HERN
£ BHRAH EEERER B e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTT
(RMB'000)
ERESRRARAA PE/ BREAAT 30,000 00%  APEREEERAAHE
([E88H)) ZF3)\ELARA RAREERRETRER
Huzhu County Jindi Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Huzhu Jindi") 4 July 2008 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
HELHIRERAR EP/ BREAAA 88,500 100%  RPERRERNER
(g Z2CEETCANA
Gansu Jindi New Energy Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company 88,500 100% Intermediary holding in the
(“Gansu Jindi") 9 December 2020 PRC
BRESHRTARAR PE/ BRERAT 30,000 100%  WE ﬁ%ﬁwﬂﬁ%ﬁ‘é
i) —F-—FRAZTRA RREERRATRLR
Jingyuan County Jindi Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of p|pe|med natural
(“Jingyuan Jindi") 24 May 2011 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
BiARRRERAA EP/ EREFAT 320 100%  RPEREREERARHEE
(1781 “RCRETCALA RAREERRETRE R
Jincheng Tianlun Gas Development PRC/ Limited liability company 320 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Co., Ltd. (“Jincheng Tianlun") 7 December 2020 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
RRBEFRRIERAR q:@/ EREFAA 600 00%  RPEREEE.
([XwEZ]) “BETZACT/\H HENEERH
Tianlun Smart New Energy Technology PRC/ Limited liability company 600 100% Electricity generation,
Co., Ltd. (“Tianlun Zhihui") 28 December 2021 supply and sales services in
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ RERN
£ BHRAH EETRE 2 e BE  IEERACERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTR
(RMB'000)
FEMENERHRARLT hE/ BREAAT - 00%  APERERITREA
([Z0Es]) ZRCEt-AT4A EEE
Xuchang Hongfan Intelligent Technology PRC/ Limited liability company — 100% Technology development and
Co., Ltd.(“Hongfan Zhineng") 17 November 2021 consulting services in
the PRC
IRz ZRHARAR ([ RkE) hE/ BEREfFAT 600 100%  ReERERREERRGHE
ZECCENATEA
Zhengzhou Tianlun Home Technology PRC/ Limited liability company 600 100% Emerging energy technology
Co., Ltd.(“Tianlun Keji") 14 September 2022 research and development
in the PRC
RESARIRERAR ([ REXR]) e/ ERELAT - 100%  RPERRXARHE
ZR-EEYASTR RS EERRAIRZ
Minguan Tianlun Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company — 100% Sales of pipelined
(“Minguan Tinanlun") 30 July 2020 natural gas, construction
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
MIXRARRARAR ([RIXGR]) hE/ EREFAT - 100%  RPERERARHEE  Ii
ZRICETIARR AARMAEEIRLE
Shenzhen Tianlun Natural Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company — 100% Sales of natural gas,
(“Shenzhen Tianlun") 6 December 2022 construction consulting
and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
AR ARERERAR hE/ EREMFAT - 100%  ReERENRRGER
([X@wHzR) “Z--F-BhA ki
Henan Tianlun Carbon Neutralization PRC/ Limited liability company — 100% Promation and consulting
Research Institute Co., Ltd. 9 February 2022 services of new energy

(“Tianlun Research Institute”)

technology in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11 FRARIRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
HRELNER/ BT/ HERN
£ BHRAH EETREH B e B IEEBNGERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARBTT
(RMB'000)
REERRIRARAR ([REXR)) e/ BREEAT 4,585 100%  KEERRXARHE
ZECEEYCACTRE BETARMREERR
Luoning Tianlun Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company 4,585 100% Sales of natural gas,
(“Luoning Tianlun") 25 December 2020 construction consulting
and connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC

MEEaTERR AR (BREY) hE/ ERAHAT - 100% R EIRE S
([7rEa]) S S oy 12
Henan Daohe New Energy Technology PRC/ Limited Partnership — 100% Technology research and
Partnership (“Henan Daohe”) 24 February 2022 development

* SRERE B TR A1,000 G The issued capital of Upsky Holdings is USD1,000.
ETT
KRN B BITRA RS The issued capital of Tian Lun New Energy is HKD2.
w2t e
EBERNEBETRAEAA The issued capital of HK Xin Rong is USD100,000.
100,000 7T °
ERTLANDBITREAASE The issued capital of Wah Shing Century is HKD100,000.
100,0007T °
BERMOBBITRA BB The issued capital of Luoning Tianlun is HKD5,000,000.
5,000,000 7t °

o LT ARIEEEZERNTFAR - B Shares hold directly by the Company.

o BImRRMARERATER ***  Anshan City Tian Lun Gas Company Limited was deregistered on 29
T —F+-A=t+hHBxF December 2022, Xinganmeng Tianlun Natural Gas Company Limited
- EHZHKBARARERA was deregistered on 31 August 2022, Henan Anlun Intelligent
AIERZE_ZFNA=+— Technology Company was disposed of on 18 November 2022. During
Hidl TExmEestEsg the year ended 31 December 2022, Baiyin Longtian Natural Gas
RARER-_ZE__F+—H Company Limited was merged by Baiyin Natural Gas Limited.

+NBRE HE_T_—%F
+-—A=+—R1FE A§
MARARBR AT EABREXR
REFREIR AR A AR A B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—F_—F1 _A=1—HILFE (LEEUSARETIT(BHFSEHYA))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) FARRE (&

()

ERMVFEESIER

RZEZZF+ZA=1+—0H
EZFIGEEZBAENAARE
314,725,000 (ZF=—4% : A
R#310,195,0007T) * EFR A A
R#106,216,0007T(— &~ —4 :
A R #109,155,0007T ) & 7 ¥
MZEL - ) AR ¥ 38,661,0007T
—FT=—%F: AR¥ 37,057,000
TL)REBRBRREN  HARE
36,970,000 L(ZF=—%F: AR
# 37,738,000 70) SR B &M KR ©

H R8T A )60 A BIRD S B A
BTEA -

BREEAFZHIMEEZ R F 4
ARy B T ER

PATR P a8l /5 3 5= [ BB K M SR F2 1 1
BENEBRFRARANBENBE
o

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

(continued)

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2022 are
approximately RMB314,725,000 (2021: RMB310,195,000), of
which approximately RMB106,216,000 (2021: RMB109,155,000)
is attributed to Chaozhou Huamao, approximately RMB38,661,000
(2021: RMB37,057,000) is attributed to Tianlun Pipeline, and
approximately RMB36,970,000 (2021: RMB37,738,000) is
attributed to Suzhou Tianlun.

The non-controlling interests in respect of other subsidiaries are not
material.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for each
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) FARRE (&

(@) EARHVEZFIMEER(E)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(@) Material non-controlling interests (continued)

BEEEBXEE Summarised balance sheets
BNER AERRER BMNXfRm
Chaozhou Huamao Tianlun Pipeline Suzhou Tianlun
W+=A=1+-H K+=ZA=1+-H W+=A=t+-8
As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December
- -—E-—% CZB--E —-—E--& CB--E —ZE-—-&
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ARETE AR¥ETT AR%ETr ARETT ARETx ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
& Current
BE Assets 24,356 42914 208,363 100,435 203,756 65,489
afE Liabilities (9,254) (30,673) (126,876) (123,455) (152,255) (78,443)
BTEEE,/  Total net current
(BfE)®B%H assets/(liabilities) 15,102 12,241 81,487 (23,020) 51,501 (12,954)
35k Non-current
BE Assets 284,712 296,692 512,585 532,394 291,717 309,793
afE Liabilities (34,274) (36,045) (211,098) (142,439) (92,003) (40,503)
FEREF Total net non-current
BERSE assets 250,438 260,647 301,487 389,955 199,714 269,290
FEE Net assets 265,540 272,888 382,974 366,935

251,215 256,336
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11@) FARRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
(@) EBEARHFEEFIMERE) (@) Material non-controlling interests (continued)
HEWmREE Summarised statements of comprehensive income
BMER KRR RER - YIPN
Chaozhou Huamao Tianlun Pipeline Suzhou Tianlun
BE+T-A=1t-HLEE HBE+-A=+-HLEE HE+-A=+-HLEE
Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December
—E--& -—E-—% CZB--E -—T-—-% CZB--E -—ZT-—&
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

AR®TRE ARBTR ARRTR ARETT AR®TR ARETR
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

WA Revenue 165,848 230,943 506,242 433,643 547,739 511,040
BRFTSRIATIES  Profit before income tax (9,681) 8,814 21,079 1,484 40,899 44,982
FrieiEm Income tax expense 2,333 (2,240) (5,040) 958 (10,260) (11,220)
A (182K /1 F)8 (Loss)/Profit for the year (7,348) 6,574 16,039 2,442 30,639 33,762

Hin#rAUzs  Other comprehensive income = — _ _ _ _

e les Total comprehensive income (7,348) 6,574 16,039 2,442 30,639 33,762

@i AME DR Total comprehensive

BT income allocated to
g non-controlling
interests (2,939) 2,630 1,604 244 4,596 5,064

[MFEEHIEEE Dividends paid to
ZAHRRA non-controlling interests = = — — 5,364 _
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFL A= —HIUFRE (RREENBARETIT(BIHESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11@) FARKRE (& 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
(@) EBEARHFEEFIMERE) (@) Material non-controlling interests (continued)
BenBEXxmE Summarised statements of cash flows
BNER KR RER BEMXMm
Chaozhou Huamao Tianlun Pipeline Suzhou Tianlun
BZ+-A=1-HLEE BE+t-A=+t-HILEE HET-A=1T-HLEE
Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December
—g--& -—E--—4% C-B--®f —-ET--F B -—T-—F
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

ARETR ARRTR AREBTR ARBTT AR®TR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

BEEBN Cash flows from operating
BERE activities
mEEr)/ Cash generated from/

(fEFA)/3E4  (used in) operations 1,861 33,233 48,938 (14,845) 77,846 78,812
BAFTER Income tax paid (1,264) (3,466) (5,050) (1,983) (14,093) (13,720)
MEESES/ Net cash generated from/

(A& (used in) operating

FRe activities 597 29,767 43,888 (16,828) 63,753 65,092
KREEHFEA  Net cash used in

RFRe investing activities (3,219) (8,927) (47,852) (8,916) (67,277) (88,387)
BEEH Net cash (used in)/

(#/8)/EL  generated from

FFRE financing activities (11,501) (2,411) (430) 381 (24,272) 51,215
RekEE Net (decrease)/increase

ZEMF in cash and cash

(R4)/#0  equivalents (14,123) 18,429 (4,394) (25,363) (27,796) 27,920
FHRER Cash and cash equivalents

ReZEY at beginning of the year 32,223 13,794 5,265 30,628 39,350 11,430
FRESR Cash and cash equivalents

ReZEY at end of the year 18,100 32,223 871 5,265 11,554 39,350
A BB R R A RIBE SHAT R S8 - The information above is the amount before inter-company

eliminations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b) REZEARNIKRE 11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

FEHEEABEREROEEN The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as
N follows:
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
=== —E_—fF
2022 2021
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HEE RN R 2 E Investments in associates 757,967 706,581
HEELEZRE Investments in a joint venture 43,048 67,090
801,015 773,671
EEEREROEEELOT - The amounts recognised in profit and loss are as follows:

BE+=-RA=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—EC-CF T

2022 2021

ARET T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

NG Share of results of associates 70,772 63,221
EIEEE XA Share of results of a joint venture (24,042) (73,474)
46,730 (10,253)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFL A= —HIUFRE (RREENBARETIT(BIHESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(h) IRFEZEABRMWIRE  11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
(4& THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

RZEBEZZF+-A=+—H1
FE AEBEETHHANH
FERXMLRRAER A F20%
feiE - ZREEAEENARE
20,188,0007T * Y 5|3 & HE L
AE#20,192,0007T °

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group disposed
its 20% equity interests in Gansu Longtian Urban and Rural Gas
Company Limited with the carrying amount of RMB20,188,000 at
cash consideration of approximately RMB20,192,000.

ATARERR-—E-—F+—F8
=T REERAZBERR

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December
2022, which are held directly by the Group.

8 ¥80% SEMALER FrE R % BENEE FERE
Place of business/ % of Nature of Measurement

Name of entity country of incorporation ownership interest the relationship method

AR HRRERHBRAF B/ RES 33.33 (1) Bk
(TAZREHE])

Inner Mongolia Petroleum and Inner Mongolia, the PRC 33833 (Note 1) Equity method
Gas Investment Corporation
Limited (“Inner Mongolia
Petroleum and Gas”)

FMTHEIERARERAA] B,/ T 20.00 (Bzr2) A
(TERMTE D)

Suzhou Ping Zhuang Industrial Jiangsu, the PRC 20.00 (Note 2) Equity method
Gas Co., Ltd (“Suzhou Ping
Zhuang”)

AELEeREERNERAR B/ 20.00 (F¥3E3) B
(AR

Henan Jiuding Financial Leasing Henan, the PRC 20.00 (Note 3) Equity method
Company Limited (“Henan Jiuding")

BEEMTR R EREEAR thEL/m)ll 11.00 (Kzr4) B
(DEMERE L)

Chengdu Huaizhou Xincheng Gas Sichuan, the PRC 11.00 (Note 4) Equity method

Company Limited (“Huaizhou Gas”)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(& THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
£ 805 EMALER FEREER % BENMEE STERE
Place of business/ % of Nature of Measurement

Name of entity country of incorporation ownership interest the relationship method

FIELBEIMRERAR /AR 16.00 (BizE5) Ba%
(TesemmEl)

Pingdingshan Nylon City Gas Henan, the PRC 16.00 (Note 5) Equity method
Company Limited
(“Nylon City Gas”)

FIRELEEIRRERERAT HE/ T 16.00 GELY) B
([EEmmRER])

Pingdingshan Nylon City Gas Henan, the PRC 16.00 (Note 6) Equity method
Pipeline Company Limited
(“Nylon City Gas Pipeline”)

AERZRRARAENTERAR  HE/WE 40.00 (B=x7) En
(MERRD)

Shenqiu County Jieyuan Natural Henan, the PRC 40.00 (Note 7) Equity method
Gas Vehicle Refueling Co., Ltd.
(“Shengiu Jieyuan")

BIK (855 ) 3Tt RRIR AR AR hEl/ A 36.00 (Ktzr8) EwE
([EREEEE )

Guotian (Hebi) New Energy Henan, the PRC 36.00 (Note 8) Equity method
Technology Company Limited
(“Guotian Hebi")

BX(FREL)MERMBARRR B/ T8 36.00 (PizE8) B
(BRI )

Guotian (Pingdingshan) Henan, the PRC 36.00 (Note 8) Equity method
New Energy Technology
Company Limited

(“Guotian Pingdingshan”)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(h) BERZARNIRE

(&)

11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

£ 8%/ EMALER FrERERR % BENMEE STERE
Place of business/ % of Nature of Measurement

Name of entity country of incorporation ownership interest the relationship method

SFEBRIRRRR AR AR /AR 36.00 (PizE8) Ba%
([FFERIX])

Xu Chang Guotian New Energy Henan, the PRC 36.00 (Note 8) Equity method
Technology Company Limited
(“Xu Chang Guotian”)

BERKR (R MERERAR  FE/AE 18.00 (Fzx8) B
([EB#aER 1)

Guodian Investment Tianlun Henan, the PRC 18.00 (Note 8) Equity method

(Xinyang) New Energy
Company Limited
(“Xinyang New Energy”)

BEEL :

BEE2

GEEE
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ARG HRKILN T —M4F
TZRA+T—HB XEZ2HER
AERAAREEBER 1K
EROBMERAREE - RN
SREHR AR EE KRR
- BBV EUS AR LT E
BEPMMSYRAEERNFRA
Bl R

FMNTHTESEBERREN
R o BN TR B A R B EUS
MEF TS o

AENLER-_T—X~F=A
Zt+=HFMKY EE2H%
EREHRE  BEWEEFK
& REFERERAM SR
X% MmN RARAEENE
WEERH  AIRBETER
PG E a2 IR e 7 AR K R
BEHNEREEBEBRNARREMHR
& WAKSBATFABEIER
B E o

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Inner Mongolia Petroleum and Gas was incorporated on 11
December 2014 and mainly engages in the construction of long-
distance petroleum and gas pipelines, and investment in the
petroleum and gas industry. Inner Mongolia Petroleum and Gas
is a strategic partner for the Group, providing access to new
customers and markets of the upstream gas industry and creating
synergies with the subsidiaries of the Group.

Suzhou Ping Zhuang mainly engages in the sales of bottled gas.
Suzhou Ping Zhuang provides the Group access to new customers
and markets.

Henan Jiuding incorporated on 23 March 2016, mainly engages
in financial leasing, investmenting fixed income securities, inter-
bank borrowing investment and other financial business. Henan
Jiuding is a strategic partner for the Group, and can finance
potential industrial customers to substitute its energy supply from
coal and electricity to pipelined natural gas and create synergies
with the subsidiaries of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B oE- A A= —HIFEE (SEELAARKETFIT(BIESEHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(h) THEREARNIRE

(&)

M4 EMRRESRERARE
E RAREBEEZXRIRE
ZH - R ERRMEESE -
MR SR IR BB B R P AT
5 TAEBRTARAEER
[FIAFE o

LS - ERRMMAREEETFIRLERE
PHERERAREE KA
REBRIRIERE - B
W R B BUAS # E P AT
% T REBRNTAFRIER
RIZKFE

fisEe ERMMARERBIZEFIAL
BEBHRIEERAREBR
BRIRRE RARNE
X BEBMREBMRT &£
BN RAARERER LAE
B A F- R B ASE 175 (R e

M7 ERREBREHERER
AR o VL EIRIR 1% B) AN &= B EX
BHEPMMS °

MizE8 B A#EEE - I AFTAL - 373
BERMEGTFEREIERELR
R% B8 B AT AR 7% o 4tb PI17% BHER 1S
NG ook
AEBAT QA A SRR K
FE - I B R ENALIRR BT o B
ZE--F+-A=+—8"
REBMEBFEARFTEALLERF] o

EERR - LRIENBEARY
SENXELEEELERRE -
EER5 FIEMBERRNE
HEeBRREBNITE

AEHMR - FHMNFHE ABEA
o OEMRR - FEREWURSR - FERE
WRREH  LERR - BXEB
B EXFIAEU - SFEBXMER
HERB/RIELT AR - HERER
BME®RE - AEBEBZERFZ
EmtEEARARE -

11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Note 4: Huaizhou Gas mainly engages in the sales of natural gas,
construction and connection of gas pipelines, and construction
and operation of gas stations etc. Huaizhou Gas provides the
Group access to new customers and markets, and create synergies
with the subsidiaries of the Group.

Note 5: Nylon City Gas mainly engages in the sales of natural gas,
construction and connection of gas pipelines in Pingdingshan
Nylon City Area. Nylon City Gas provides the Group access to
new customers and markets, and create synergies with the
subsidiaries of the Group.

Note 6: Nylon City Gas Pipeline mainly engages in the construction of gas
pipelines and transportation of natural gas in Pingdingshan Nylon
City Area. Nylon City Gas Pipeline helps speed up its construction
of natural gas pipeline network, and create synergies with the
subsidiaries of the Group.

Note 7: Shengiu Jieyuan mainly engages in the sales of compressed
natural gas. Shengiu Jieyuan provides the Group access to new
customers and markets.

Note 8: Guotian Hebi, Guotian Pingdingshan, Xu Chang Guotian and
Xinyang New Energy mainly engages in solar power technology
services. They provides the Group access to new customers and
markets in solar power, create synergies with the subsidiaries of
the Group, and development of energy saving and environmental
protection technology. There is no capital injection from the
Group as at 31 December 2022.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Inner Mongolia Petroleum and Gas, Suzhou Ping Zhuang, Henan
Jiuding, Huaizhou Gas, Nylon City Gas, Nylon City Gas Pipeline,
Shengiu Jieyuan and Guotian Hebi, Guotian Pingdingshan, Xu
Chang Guotian and Xinyang New Energy are unlisted companies and
there are no quoted market prices available for the equities. There
are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in the
associates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(h) IREREANBRNIRE

11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(&

/1

BEQATNHEMBER

THIRTESFARYNAKEE
RO NBOMEERBE - 7
BENEM BB 2 QA5
HRPEINEE - MIFRAEE
FEAE I F AR DRR - W RIRE
BECRERESMENRE 8
EHRIABENFHBANLETK
REREITHEREIEN -

THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Summarised financial information for the associates

The tables below provide summarised financial information for
Henan Jiuding, which in the opinion of the director, is material to
the Group. The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the relevant associate not the Group’s
share of those amounts. It has been amended to reflect adjustments
made by the entity when using the equity method, including fair
value adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting
policies.

BEESEABE Summarised balance sheet
SAENE
Henan Jiuding
R+=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E=-= T —F
2022 2021
AR®ET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RED Current
He kRS EY Cash and cash equivalents 650,656 805,278
EtmEEE Other current assets 1,063,593 604,375
MENEEMREE Total current assets 1,714,249 1,409,653
Hibmea & Other current liabilities (including trade payables)

(BIERERERER) (28,787,755) (24,934,626)
mEN BB Total current liabilities (28,787,755)  (24,934,626)
ERE Non-current
HiIEmE&EE Other non-current assets 31,047,980 28,623,592
IEMBEELTE Total non-current assets 31,047,980 28,623,592
HEMIERBAE Other non-current liabilities (545,374) (2,017,207)
s A EE Total equity 3,429,100 3,081,412
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b) REZEARNIKRE 11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(& THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

BENTNRENKER Summarised financial information for the associates

(&) (continued)

HEWB R E Summarised statement of comprehensive income
SRR

Henan Jiuding
BE+-A=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E=-= —E-—F

2022 2021

ARET T ARBTIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

I'ON Revenue 1,064,892 878,466
B PSRRI F)E Profit before income tax 463,266 414,358
REF]HE Profit for the year 347,688 310,646
IRE W R Total comprehensive income 347,688 310,646
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b) REZEARNIRE 11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(#& THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
BeENANREENKE R Summarised financial information for the associates
(#&) (continued)
HEHBE R AR Reconciliation of summarised financial information
FT 2 51| 0175 22 B 75 18 KL B 8 8 7 Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to
R AREERFED o the carrying amount of its interests in the associates.
HEERBE Summarised financial information
S
Henan Jiuding
—E-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
ARBET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HAIFEE Opening net assets 3,081,412 2,770,766
REF)E Profit for the year 347,688 310,646
HRBEE Closing net assets 3,429,100 3,081,412
B2 N AR (20.00%) Interest in an associate (20.00%) 685,820 616,282
REEE Carrying value 685,820 616,282
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-T-—Ff-H=—1—HIFFE (2FELBARETT(HIESEHH))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(h) BERZARNIRE

(&
BENANBEMBER
(&)

1ERIHEA BB S

B E BB SRR - A
TR BB BRI E
KB 2 TR -

11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Summarised financial information for the associates
(continued)

Individually immaterial associates

In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above, the Group
also has interests in individually immaterial associates that are
accounted for using the equity method.

BE+t-A=1T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—=2-_- —E-—F
2022 2021
ARMT T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
fERIFEE AR = /NA]  Aggregate carrying amount of

FEREARE individually immaterial associates 72,147 90,299

REBFTE1DERAEER ©  Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of:
— FECETE — Profit from continuing operations 1,234 1,092
— BERE W — Total comprehensive income 1,234 1,092
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BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(h) IREREANBRNIRE

(&

/1

T AREER T -—F+—A

11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Set out below is the joint venture of the Group as at 31 December

=+ HEESAZAERE - 2022, which is held directly by the Group.

RZEZZF+ZA=+—HYHAE Nature of investment in the joint venture as at 31 December 2022:

BOEZREMEMT :

8 ¥50% BEMALER FERERER % BENEE FERE
Place of business/ % of Nature of Measurement

Name of entity country of incorporation ownership interest the relationship method

AABERRIERREEEP L HE/ T 40.00 GEL) Bk

(BRER) ([EREXRES])
Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund Henan, the PRC 40.00 (Note 9) Equity method

BEE9
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FRAZTEHERIL TEH
AEESERIREERLET
WRARERFETRE A
MEFBERAREZERERR
RS ROREEEE
2 BRUmEHSERART
BB RET o

AEBRERMESR/IFLTR
A ERELAETHRE - &
SE RN RRIREER - &
B RME35 - REBESE
Rz ERTEEFARAEE -

Note 9:

Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund was incorporated on 27 June 2018 mainly
engaged in investment in coal-to-gas conversion projects in the
townships in Henan Province and the upstream and downstream
natural gas industrial chain, to capture the opportunities brought by
the rapid development of the natural gas industry in the PRC and
explore the huge potential of the natural gas market in the townships
in Henan Province through making full use of the strengths of the
Group.

Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund is an unlisted company and there are no
quoted market prices available for the equities. The Group provided
guarantee to Henan Yutian, see details in Note 35. There are no other
contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in the joint
venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(h) IRFEZEABRMWIRE  11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
(4& THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

AERNEEABERR

THIRTESFARYNAKEE
ANEELEAFEBRERRESH
MEERME - IENEARER
HEAE 2 EEMBRERT 25N
B MIFR AR E R I S 2R
EE - W RR T BAEEAERE
REATERERE - BREAEED
HEAN A ST HRERETHE

Summarised financial information for the joint venture

The tables below provide summarised financial information for Henan
Yuzi Tianlun Fund, which in the opinion of the director, is material to
the Group. The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the relevant joint venture not the
Group’s share of those amounts. They have been amended to reflect
adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method,
including fair value adjustments and modifications for differences in
accounting policies.

&K o
BEEEEXHE Summarised balance sheet
EBREXMGES
Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
B+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
=g== T
2022 2021
AR®ET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B Current
HeMReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 468,854 284,519
EfnEEE Other current assets 842,898 401,476
MENEEMRRE Total current assets 1,311,752 685,995
EMnsasE Other current liabilities (including trade payables)

(BIEREMERF) (4,472,163) (2,116,367)
mE B EERE Total current liabilities (4,472,163) (2,116,367)
IERE Non-current
HAi3EmEEE Other non-current assets 6,915,145 4,749,468
IEMEN B E B Total non-current assets 6,915,145 4,749,468
HibIEmehak Other non-current liabilities (2,610,681) (2,179,649)
e 8RR Total equity 1,144,053 1,139,447
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BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b) REZEARNIRE 11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(#& THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
BETENRENKER Summarised financial information for the joint venture
(#&) (continued)
HEUDRHE Summarised statement of comprehensive income
MREBEXRRES
Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
BE+t-HA=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
AR®TT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 547,246 587,344
BRETISBLAT Profit/(Loss) before income tax
FE/ (&18) 6,527 (41,373)
RNEFE, (EE) Profit/(Loss) for the year 4,606 (41,373)
4REWES(E518) 4858  Total comprehensive income/(loss) 4,606 (41,373)

198 XGMBERERAT 2022FFEHE o




B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b) REZEARNIKRE 11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(& THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
BELENRENKER Summarised financial information for the joint venture
(%) (continued)
HEHBE R AR Reconciliation of summarised financial information
FIE2FMBENBERBEEGEDE Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to
R BREER FHED the carrying amount of its interests in a joint venture:
HBEERFE Summarised financial information

TERERRES

Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
BZ+-A=+t—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—EC-CF —E-—F

2022 2021

ARETT ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

HABREE Opening net assets 1,139,447 1,028,020
BTN Capital contribution — 152,800
REFHE, (EE) Profit/(Loss) for the year 4,606 (41,373)
HRFEE Closing net assets 1,144,053 1,139,447
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b) REZEARNIRE 11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(& THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
BETENRENKER Summarised financial information for the joint venture
(&) (continued)
FRE % BEHA0 - Reconciliation to carrying amounts:

TEBERRES

Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
BE+-A=+t-BHLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-CF —E-—F

2022 2021

AR¥ET T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

1A 1B#¥ERMEEE Opening carrying amount 1 January 67,090 140,564
REFE, (EE) Profit/(loss) for the period 1,543 (8,392)
RERW = Unrealized gains (25,585) (65,082)
12 A 31 B AR BERME {E& Closing carry amount 31 December 43,048 67,090
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(b)

(c)

B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—F_—F1 _A=1—HILFE (LEEUSARETIT(BHFSEHYA))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FrieBieE M

ARRB R RIZBANE B
XL P B R A A SR

HRNEH

BHE—ZT-—®+-A=+—81

- F+-A=+—ALF
B AREERRLERREER
FERAE - R BABME BTG
H (B*E 16.5%) o

FETEMEH
RARIBERFEFRK IO FA
A BHMTBECERBR R
E-__F+_A=Z=+—HEKZZF
——F+-A=+—BILFE-
ZERRSERBHBEAMEHAR
KRB TE H FERR AR U 25 2 VR TE BT
SHBETIREE - RPREHTA
AEANTPBECEMEERESR
25% (—ZF=—%F : 25%) ' AN =E
B EEFMBUOR 28 F QAR
Hh e

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Company and Upsky Holdings are not subject to profits tax in
their respective countries of incorporation.

Hong Kong profits tax

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
there are no Hong Kong profits tax applicable (tax rate 16.5%) to any
Group entities.

PRC corporate income tax (the “PRC CIT”)

All the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are subject
to the PRC CIT, which has been provided based on the statutory
income tax rate of the assessable income of each of such companies
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
as determined in accordance with the relevant PRC income tax rules
and regulations. The CIT rate of the relevant subsidiaries operating
in the PRC is 25% (2021: 25%), except for certain group entities
which are entitled to various tax rates or tax exemptions and reliefs.
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PCECCFL A= —HIUFRE (RREENBARETIT(BIHESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

12. FREHER (& 12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
(c) HELEMRSESH(E) (c) PRC corporate income tax (the “PRC CIT") (continued)
BEGNBROFAENRERR The amount of income tax expense charged to profit or loss
represents:

BE+T-A=1T—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
ARET T AREETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARSI Current tax on profits for the year 196,830 292,537
IRIEFTISHEE (M3 30)  Deferred income tax (Note 30) 4,022 42,153
200,852 334,690
BN ERSH &R EER The difference between the actual income tax charge in profit or loss
AR R G E R TS AT A B AT and the amounts which would result from applying the enacted tax
BFIEMEERHNT ¢ rate to profit before income tax can be reconciled as follows:

BE+T-A=1T—HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

—EC-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
AR%T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BRETS R RIFE Profit before income tax 670,124 1,362,804
WEBZAR@EMA 2  Tax calculated at statutory tax rate
SEEMRTE ZFIE  applicable to each Group entity 200,764 315,295
BRI S Income not subject to tax (17,693) (15,812)
AR E Expenses or losses not deductible
for tax purposes 8,195 21,226
ANHERIRIEMIEEE  Tax losses with no deferred tax assets
BT A recognised 595 310
F A LART 4 [ R FERR Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses
Ol EEES 9) —
o e AERE R Withholding tax on profit to be distributed
FIBLIE (i) in future (ii) 9,000 13,671
200,852 334,690
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

12. FREHER (& 12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
(c) HELEMRSESH(E) (c) PRC corporate income tax (the “PRC CIT") (continued)
(i) ARE B BRI B A F) A (i) Withholding income tax is provided on the dividends and
KRR B R B A ELF & intra-group interest charges to be distributed by the Mainland
ERHETEMEE - A China subsidiaries of the Group. The relevant overseas holding
REIMERR A RIE RN ES companies have successfully obtained endorsement from
B RBER TS B RIRAT - Al Mainland China tax bureaus to enjoy the treaty benefit of 5%
EXAREEFEAMF AT withholding income tax rate on dividends received from the
f% BRI IR BIEIRFTS B K Mainland China subsidiaries of the Group and 7% withholding
5% A B A FF S E income tax rate on interest charges from the Mainland China
RAIBIRAE I E 7% 81 subsidiaries. Accordingly, withholding income tax has been
RS - At - AEBEE R provided at respective tax rate of the dividends and interest
Bl FR B 9 BL R IR R charges to be distributed by the Mainland China subsidiaries
MAEE RSB ERE of the Group.
RIDFTIEHL -
BEMRAE W EMAR SN B BN The tax credit relating to components of other comprehensive income
MEERZWT : is as follows:
B2+t-A=1-ALEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-CF —E--fF
2022 2021
BRBiA RIEER Boi% BREiAD HEER Biig
Before tax Tax credit After tax Before tax Tax charge After tax

ARMTR  ARWTR  ARMTR  AREBTT  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

DARBEFEER  Fair value (losses)/gains on
HABEHARL  financial assets at
BAWNGHEE  fair value through other
BELNAEEZY  comprehensive income

(BB) /71 (12,800) 3,200 (9,600) 11,100 (2,775) 8,325
Ethtralia Other comprehensive income (12,800) 3,200 (9,600) 11,100 (2,775) 8,325
TELETER (F1£30)  Deferred income tax (Note 30) = 3,200 = = 2,775 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PECF A HIEFE (2FRBURBARET T (RIFESFHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

13. W= 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@ EZXF (a) Basic
AXRGREEBEEBNAR A Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is calculated by dividing the profit
BENFE  BRUAFHNEBITERA attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
fRE INEFHEEE - number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BE+-A=1+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

b et —FE-—F
2022 2021
MEFEBERAAR Profit attributable to owners of
FBEE (ARETIT) the Company (RMB’000) 444,598 1,000,672
BETERRAMNE  Weighted average number of ordinary
SEHE(FE) shares in issue (thousands) 982,830 999,645
HEARFRUE Basic earnings per share (RMB per share)
(BElRAR®IT) 0.45 1.00

(b) #BzE—ZT-——F#KR-_FT——F+= (b) The diluted earnings per share was the same as the basic earnings

A=+T—HLFERTEETRE per share as there was no potential dilutive share issued during the
f&tn - HitESREEEEARS years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022.

PR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

14 HE 14 LEASES
(i) EBERBERABERNSHE (i)  Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
BAEABRIIAHN I SHEERE The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:
B -
R+=A=+—A8
As at 31 December
—EC-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
ARBTR AR¥ETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EREEE Right-of-use assets
b A Land use rights 261,946 264,570
BF Buildings 6,169 7,636
268,115 272,206
HEEE Lease liabilities
E Current 1,569 2,914
IERED Non-current 6,886 7,060
8,455 9,974

BE_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HIL
FEA FHAEEEEMNARE

5,260,000 (=& =

#15,310,0007T) °

—F: AR

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended
31 December 2022 were RMB5,260,000 (2021: RMB15,310,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

14

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

206 FHRRERERDT 2022EFEHE o

HE (&) 14. LEASES (continued)
BERABRNEE (i)  Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Gt elaERIIRA Ty SRR The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the
HEHFR - following amounts to leases:
BE+-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
ARET T AREETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERAEEENITEERA Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
b {E Land use rights 7,666 7,717
’F Buildings 3,735 3,176
11,401 10,893
MBS (GF AR Interest expense (included in finance cost)
&) (MizE10) (Note 10) 560 677

“EC_HFARHEEEAENRER
t4a%E A AR 18,168,000 (=
—4F : AR¥4,673,0007T) °

R-ZB_—_F+_HA=t—H 'K
SEBELHAREE2,100,0007T( =

T —F: AE#¥2,158,000) &
{5 M RE IEE IR A T MR

R-ZFB-_—_fF+-A=1+—8"
k% 4% B FE/\E’Q@‘I,OOS,OOOEE’J

+ b {s A #EVE /3 A R % 5,800,000
TR R 17 18 FUE A (F 5 29(a))
(R=ZZ=—F+=A=+—8H"
EHEEREGEZEBEARK
229,0007T % 3,251,000 JT A L i
15 P4 2 RI1E & AR ¥ 4,800,000
7T R AR ¥ 5,900,000 7T HIIRTTIE
AR (FF7E29(a)) ) ©

(iii)

(iv)

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December
2022 was RMB8,168,000 (2021: RMB4,673,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group was in the process of
obtaining the legal title of land use rights with carrying amount of

approximately RMB2,100,000 (2021: RMB2,158,000).

As at 31 December 2022, land-use rights of Deyang Lvneng
amounting to RMB1,008,000 were secured for bank borrowings

of RMB5,800,000 (Note 29(a)) (2021: land-use rights of Deyang
Huaneng and Deyang Lvneng amounting to RMB229,000 and
RMB3,251,000 respectively were secured for bank borrowings of
RMB4,800,000 and RMB5,900,000 (Note 29(a))).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
PCECCFEF = —HIUFRE (2HEEURBARETIT(GIFSEHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

15. TBIE - BERREE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BARE
BF  REREES RREE REH EEIR @t
Office
Equipment equipment
and Gas and motor
Buildings machinery pipelines vehicles CIp Total

ARRTL  AREBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'O00 _ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000__ RMB'000

R=Z2=-%-f-AH At 1 January 2021

AR Cost 433,211 399,602 2,694,715 58,999 224904 3,861,431

Z:iTE Accumulated depreciation (101,144)  (192,007)  (497,930) (35,432) —  (826,513)
RHFE Net book amount 382,067 207,595 2,196,785 23,567 224904 3,034,918
HE-E5--F Year ended 31 December 2021

TZR=t+-HLEE

FURERE Opening net book amount 382,067 207595 2,196,785 23,567 224904 3,034,918

=SNG Acquisition of subsidiaries 38,772 5,998 222,194 1,418 26,210 294,592

i Additions 7,493 3,735 5271 4,892 362,272 383,663

FETREA Transfer from CIP 10,606 18,474 277,403 4 (306,487) —

e (H32) Disposals (Note 32) (338) (1,075) (1,305) (386) — (3,104)

RRANRE Transfer to Investment properties

(W5 16) (Note 16) (656) — = = — (656)

REBR (Fz8) Depreciation charge (Note 8) (22,515) (32413)  (130,922) (4,854) — (190,704)
EREEFE Closing net book amount 415,429 202,314 2,569,426 24,641 306,899 3,518,709
RZB=—-F+=A=+-H At31 December 2021

AR Cost 538,935 424769 3,197,952 61,028 306,899 4,529,583

ZETE Accumulated depreciation (123,506)  (222,455)  (628,526) (36,387) —  (1,010,874)
RERE Net book amount 415,429 202,314 2,569,426 24,641 306,899 3,518,709
RZZB-=%+=F=1—H Yearended 31 December 2022

ENEREE Opening net book amount 415,429 202,314 2,569,426 24,641 306,899 3,518,709

110 Additions 2,265 5,075 805 5,827 321,647 335,619

FEIREA Transfer from CIP 6,599 9,674 321,869 3,365 (341,507) —

REREHEEA Transfer from Investment

(MizE16) properties (Note 16) 747 = = = = 747

L (M3E32) Disposals (Note 32) (3,216) (2,519) 477 (248) (336) (6,796)

TEBR (HiEs) Depreciation charge (Note 8) (21,431) (30,855)  (144,485) (5,403) —  (202,174)
EREEFE Closing net book amount 400,393 183,689 2,747,138 28,182 286,703 3,646,105
RZBZZF+-A=+-H At31 December 2022

AR Cost 545,443 434,614 3,519,956 67,097 286,703 4,853,813

2:E Accumulated depreciation (145,050) (250,925) (772,818) (38,915) — (1,207,708)
RHFE Net book amount 400,393 183,689 2,747,138 28,182 286,703 3,646,105
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

15. T8E - BENKRE

/ll

(a)

(4)

208 FHMRRERERDAT 2022EFEHE o

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
TEE - WERBHENITE (a)  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment has been
BRATBmPEIRAT charged to profit or loss as follows:
BZE+-A=+—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E=-= —E-—F
2022 2021
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
SHER Cost of sales 190,302 174,162
1T E A Administrative expenses 11,655 16,350
PAK Tz 1D Distribution expenses 217 192
202,174 190,704

F EoZHE+ZA=+—

ERGRRERBEO AR
1,952,000%&@@?%&#2\%
ZW\E%5 800,000 JT#I4R

1718 B A (MY 55 29(a))
KLi%ﬂE%@ﬁ%%%
A R #2,784,0007T & 18
F R AR#98,719,000 7T
WRREERIERARE
405,000,000 7T H R 77 {5
R (M 5E29(c) (=&
T EBRREEBEAOAR
& 2,065,000 JTHIE F 1 1E
%AEM5 900,000 JTHY R
17 18 BE (BT 51 29(a))

KL@MIJEHJJ@M%%
A K #2,968,000 7T H &
F & A R #103,996,000
TR EERIERARE
398,000,000 JLHYSRITIE X
A8 (B43E29(c))) ©

As at 31 December 2022, buildings of Deyang Lvneng
amounting to approximately RMB1,952,000 were secured
for bank borrowings of approximately RMB5,800,000 (Note
29(a)); buildings and gas pipelines of Datong Jindi and Huzhu
Jindi amounting to RMB2,784,000 and RMB98,719,000
were secured for bank borrowings of approximately
RMB405,000,000 (Note 29(c)) (2021: buildings of Deyang
Lvneng amounting to approximately RMB2,065,000 were
secured for bank borrowings of approximately RMB5,900,000
(Note 29(a)); buildings and gas pipelines of Datong Jindi
and Huzhu Jindi amounting to RMB2,968,000 and
RMB103,996,000 were secured for bank borrowings of
approximately RMB398,000,000 (Note 29(c))).




15. TBE - MERRE
(&)

() MZIE_—_F+-—A=+-—
B BREEEBEHARE
139,394,000t (=& = —
F: A R 138,760,000
JO) A ERERE EE
B o

(d RZEZZF+ZHA=*+—
AR=ZZFE=-—F+=H
=t-B ERTEIES
FERABEIRRTENRAE
W BRIERXARRRBEARA
R o

(&) RIZBZZF+HA=+—
BIEFER A&EEHE
EREEDEENBEFRK
N & A R ¥16,085,000
T(ZEZ—F: AR%
15,146,0007T ) » f& 3 A
RIRRER A B R I TS
FEB05% (T = —F:
5.00%) REFTERIL °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group was in the process of
obtaining the legal title of buildings with carrying amount of
approximately RMB139,394,000 (2021: RMB138,760,000).

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the CIP
mainly comprised the gas pipelines, LNG and CNG stations
being constructed in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
capitalised borrowing costs amounting to RMB16,085,000
(2021: RMB15,146,000) on qualifying assets. Borrowing
costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of its
general borrowings at 5.05% (2021: 5.00%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PECF A HIEFE (2FRBURBARET T (RIFESFHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

16. REMEHE 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BE+t-A=1T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—=2-_- —E-—F
2022 2021
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
F4 At beginning of the year
A Cost 70,491 69,698
ZEFE Accumulated depreciation (25,483) (22,676)
BRmEFE Net book amount 45,008 47,022
FA For the year
HIWIRRE(EE Opening net book amount 45,008 47,022
BTHE - BEX Transfer from property, plant and equipment
REEA (ML 15) (Note 15) — 656
HATEE - MEN&  Transfer to property, plant and equipment (Note 15)
= (T 15) (747) —
HEEHA Depreciation charge (2,685) (2,670)
FIRREFE Closing net book amount 41,576 45,008
T At end of the year
BN Cost 71,364 70,491
2T E Accumulated depreciation (29,788) (25,483)
BREFE Net book amount 41,576 45,008
FRNIEE (D) Fair value at end of the year (b) 127,616 139,473
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16.

()

(b)

B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

EF_—F A= AUFRE (2FELBARETT(BRIFSEHS))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

REME®E (&)

T EREE R R

16.

(a)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following amounts have been recognised in profit or loss:

BE+-—RA=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-= —E-—F

2022 2021

ARBTR AREEFTT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

HEEWE Rental income 2,947 2,683
ELASUWAMIEM  Direct operating expenses from properties

EHENEZEEEA that generated rental income (2,685) (2,670)

262 13

R-F-_—F+-_A=t—Hk=
Z_—F+ZA=+—H &&HE
FARKIETE R B A R &R A
e

AEBENREMFHESITT

RZFB_—_F+-A=+—Hk=
E_—F+-A=+—H KEML
FHENRILBEERERNTATE
RBA(EIE)FTE -

$EIE’JE5Z%?%E’\§&$§T§§$1¢&
BRAREN A BARARIAEERE
ARH BN o

B CFER-E-—FRNEIL
2 3B ZHEWE e -

(b)

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group had
no unprovided contractual obligations for future repairment and
maintenance.

The Group’s investment properties are analysed as follows:

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the fair value
of investment property is measured using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3).

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
fair value hierarchy levels as at of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the years of
2022 and 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

16. REMEME (&)

(b)

212 FHGRRERERDT 2022EFEHE o

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

AEEBMNKEEEWESHOT (b) The Group’s investment properties are analysed as follows:
(#&) (continued)
1E1E 5 Valuation techniques
KRENEHENGENREELR The valuation of investment properties is determined using the direct
EEE o AR BRMENEE comparison approach. Sales prices of comparable properties in close
EREERY(MlmEREBELE proximity are adjusted for property’s size and the ageing degree.
ERER)MEEIELTE -
HEEATAERGARSE The significant unobservable inputs adopted include:
ERMISER — ERYENER Recent market price — Based on the actual market selling price of
MHERE the properties;
YEEE — ERYENEREE Property’s size — Based on the size of the properties;
BEAFER — EXNWEEREF The ageing degree — Based on the years of the properties used.
R °
it — WAKE
Description AREE B FTABRGAE
— Office building Fair value Valuation technique Unobservable inputs

ARETT

RMB’000

W=Z-—#+=A=+-8 127616 BRILEOE STKARKS,321-18,0007C
At 31 December 2022 127,616 Direct comparison approach RMB5,321-RMB18,000 per square meter
R-E-_—F+-A=+—H 139,473 EERLECE FFKRARE2750-17,851 7T
At 31 December 2021 139,473 Direct comparison approach RMB2,750-RMB17,851 per square meter




16.

(c)

(d)

B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—F -+ A=+ —HIFE (LHENBARETIT(FIEZEHD))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

REMEBE (&

HEERHARKE?2,685,0007T(=
T —4F: AR#2670,0007T)
SR P o

HEZH
AEERFARBERBEEHEE
BEFREMEE - P REN
RIERERNEE - RERE M
BB b EE AT R AR 2 T B IR IR T R
MM HRATRANKERE
W T

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(c) Depreciation expense of approximately RMB2,685,000 (2021:
RMB2,670,000) has been charged in cost of sales.

(d) Leasing arrangements

Certain investment properties are leased to tenants under long-
term operating leases with rental payable at regular intervals during
the year based on the payment terms. Minimum lease payments
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases of investment
properties not recognised in the consolidated financial statements
are receivable as follows:

B+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
ARET T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within 1 year 2,016 1,896
—F LA BT BB=F Later than 1 year but no later than 3 years 2,172 1,605
=FE More than 3 years 1,993 365
6,181 3,866
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

17. B E&EE 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
EF
HE MRLEER e /i BEBE @t
Gas Contractual
operating Computer customer
Goodwill rights software Network  relationships Total
ARBTL  ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R-Z--%-A-H At 1 January 2021
AR Cost 2,247,538 1,456,169 15,324 481,317 401910 4,602,258
REEH Accumulated amortisation —  (324,798) (6,805) (86,402) (96,807)  (514,812)
EmFE Net book amount 2,247,538 1,131,371 8,519 394,915 305,103 4,087,446
HE-E--% Year ended 31 December 2021
TZAZt-HLEE
ENEMFE Opening net book amount 2,247,538 1,131,371 8,519 394,915 305,103 4,087,446
N Acquisition of subsidiaries 439,041 h31,184 — 109,533 — 1,129,758
#10 Additions — 2,410 1,092 — — 3,502
BEEH Amortisation charge — (81,254) (5,574) (20,042) (16,836) (123,706)
FREMFE Closing net book amount 2,736,579 1,583,711 4,037 484 406 288,267 5,097,000
RZB=—F+=A=+-H At31 December 2021
KR Cost 2,736,579 1,989,763 16,416 590,850 401910 5,735,518
S Accumulated amortisation —  (406,052) (12379)  (106,444)  (113643)  (638,518)
FHFE Net book amount 2,736,579 1,583,711 4,037 484,406 288,267 5,097,000
BE-E-C Year ended 31 December 2022
E+ZA=1+-AILEE
ENERHE Opening net book amount 2,736,579 1,583,711 4,037 484,406 288,267 5,097,000
#10 Additions — — 6,209 — — 6,209
HE Disposal = = 4) = = 4)
BHER Amortisation charge = (81,664) (4,254) (20,042) (16,836)  (122,796)
EREMFHE Closing net book amount 2,736,579 1,502,047 5,988 464,364 271,431 4,980,409
W=Z==%F+=B=1-H At 31 December 2022
A Cost 2,736,579 1,989,763 22,611 590,850 401,910 5,741,713
2 Accumulated amortisation — (487,716) (16,623) (126,486) (130,479) (761,304)
EmFE Net book amount 2,736,579 1,502,047 5,988 464,364 271,431 4,980,409
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17.

()

(b)

BLEE (&

HE-_Z-_—_F+=-H=+—H
HFE HAR¥116,536,000
T 2T = — F: AR ¥
116,410,0007T) WEHE [ HE
AR5 - B9 AR 6,260,000
T(ZE-—%F : AR¥7,296,000
JC) WEESHAT [1TIEBR ] P XiE -

EERE

EREREFARNEBRILES
HEBRR -REEHRETIEN
ERARTE  RARPHENTRE
TR BRH o

B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

17.

(a)

(b)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, amortisation of

approximately RMB116,536,000 (2021: RMB116,410,000)
was included in cost of sales, and RMB6,260,000 (2021:

RMB7,296,000) was included in administration expenses.

Impairment for goodwill

Management reviews the business performance based on the type
of business in its subsidiaries. The CGUs are principally engaged
in sales of natural gas in cylinders, sales of natural gas in bulk and
engineering construction services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

17. B EE (&) 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
(b) EEREE) (b) Impairment for goodwill (continued)
?jﬁgﬁ%fﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁnﬁ’\]@%ﬁﬁ The following is a summary of goodwill allocation for each CGU:
&
R+=—A=+-—-8
As at 31 December
—E-= T4
2022 2021
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRI Jilin location
B Jilin Zhongji 89,045 89,045
EME R Jilin Qian’an 3,089 3,089
HeRE s Gansu location
HEQR Gansu Baiyin 86,715 86,715
IEIR D Jingyuan Jindi 95,053 95,053
V@ Henan location
RS X m Puyang Tianlun 6,167 6,167
e Henan Luyuan 7,663 7,663
=T Henan Songxian 8,115 8,115
FE T Kaifeng Xi'Na 10,079 10,079
) BERK Xichuan Longcheng 33,533 33,533
ol Xiping Kaida 87,682 87,682
L e Shengqiu Huixin 118,433 118,433
KigRRER Tianlun Pipeline 265,503 265,503
WERE Hunan location
ROZRE Dongkou Senbo 7,572 7,572
B2\ A e Fenghuang Zhongyou 20,353 20,353
ErER Yunnan location
EFAB Yunnan Datong 16,778 16,778
LI 5[ 1 Shandong location
g%qﬂ% Caoxian Zhongtian 11,401 11,401
BHEAX Shanxian Zhongtian 14,222 14,222
/‘J/%J%/T Heze Guanghe 61,656 61,656
RHES Dongming Wanji 14,967 14,967
R [ Guangdong location
B3 Chaozhou Huamao 166,070 166,070
MIEEDYis] Shantou Chenghai 65,937 65,937
#82)EE Lechang Anshunda 28,063 28,063
BRI Fujian location
—HRER Sanming Huiji 22,518 22,518
JLERIR 1 Jiangsu location
Y PN Suzhou Tianlun 188,697 188,697
PR 1 Shaanxi location
B R INR Liquan Hongyuan 90,106 90,106
AR Qianxian Hongyuan 57,978 57,978
KAE R Mizhi Changxing 52,215 52,215
RERE Wubu Changxing 29,497 29,497
/)H“Eﬁé Zizhou Shunxiang 41,973 41,973
a1 [ 13 Sichuan location
IEIJHEHQ Sichuan Mingsheng 249,305 249,305
SEMR Jintang Gas 246,422 246,422
KERENR Yongyang Energy 93,061 93,061
A= Hebei location
AREEHA Shijiazhuang Jinming 145,784 145,784
=51 Qinghai location
HELH Gansu Jindi 300,927 300,927
2,736,579 2,736,579
* ReEHBTIRERMERSE 2 The CGUs in the same geography grouped together for presentation
HITERLE - {21E2T only.
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(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=

EFE_—FF A= HUFE (2HEUBARETIT(HIZHHS))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BREE(F)

R RE(E)
R BT A S S H T IR

FREBEEET - ;TEHAFIA
MR RnETER - KIEEEE

ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%oﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
EhEREBRRTIERIERE - E£5
& REfIERRMBLIE R o

RZB-_—_M_T_—FEEAE
BEFFEPERBRERRET

ﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬁw 3%-36%
ZEZ—FE : 3%-35%)

ESRES 9%-40%
ZEZ—FE  10%-46%)
REPERE 2%
ZEZ—FE :3%)

FAAGIR & 13%-14%
TR —FE  13%-22%)

EREEREBARANMEEEH R
FIRAPATSRROAERGTS
EREELETHERRLEN
Ko FIkANRMEREEZRE
EEEEZRTREZERSENET
HERA R RSB R AR M M BR A
it o PR KRR T E AT 5 A H
ERBHEEEIRSE DL BTN
R

RABEERR AEEERERS
TR S E L BT e & R
RRORSEAREFNBERT
REeEHETNAIKLESETTE
ERAREEE

17.

(b)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment for goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations
are those regarding the growth rates, gross margin, long term growth
rate and discount rates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2022 and
2021:

Growth rate beyond 5-year period 3%-36%
(2021: 3%-35%)

Gross margin 9%-40%
(2021: 10%-46%)

Long term growth rate 2%

(2021: 3%)
13%-14%
(2021: 13%-22%)

Pre-tax discount rate

Management estimates growth rate and gross margin of individual
CGUs based on past performance and management’s expectations
of market development over the five-year forecast period. The long
term growth rates are based on management’s best estimates with
consideration of both internal and external factors relating to the
CGUs. Discount rates that reflect current market assessment of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs will not be lower than the carrying amount even if taking
into account a reasonably possible change in a key assumption on
the calculations of recoverable amounts of the CGUs.

® Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

217



B OB M SRR Y RE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

18. RERIESNETRT 18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

B
REBRBETEHIA The Group holds the following financial instruments:
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-—F —E-—F
2022 2021
k=3 ARET T AREFTT
TREE Financial assets Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
LABERRRK ARG EHY Financial assets at amortised cost
TRIEE
JE AR 51 % B Ath Trade and other receivables (exclude

Wk - N IETE prepayments, value-added-tax to be

38 - 12EFA offset, prepaid income tax and other

BN - FEITFEH non-financial assets)

MEAMIEE R EE 20 1,043,645 814,970
ReERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 1,340,135 1,014,978
XRHIIRE Restricted cash 24 134,745 177,279

AREEFTEEHE  Financial assets at fair value through
et AHMERE other comprehensive income 19 70,699 79,347
WamHEmEE
WAREBESEBRE  Financial assets at fair value
BEET ABR through profit or loss
T RIEE 23 135,399 39,018
2,724,623 2,125,592
A= Financial liabilities
LSRR ANFHER A& Liabilities at amortised cost
FERTBR R R ELAth i Trade and other payables (exclude

5% T BRIEER accrued payroll and welfare

e EfAn payables and other taxes payables)

E b TiIA 28 926,503 1,146,521
EE Borrowings 29 7,203,064 6,306,022
HEAE Lease liabilities 14(i) 8,455 9,974
AAREBEFEBHEE  Financial liabilities at fair value

BEt A& through profit or loss

NeRaE 23 8,562 39,287

8,146,584 7,501,804
ANEE SR T EMEERN S &R R The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the financial
PFHEMEI - ASEEHES F instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum exposure to credit
T EABEM &R E e S R & risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of each
A= R RO & Ll Ee 5 class of financial assets mentioned above.
BEMKRAEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19. UAREEFEAH 19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

BEETAHMESU THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
mHNERMEE INCOME
NAREEGTEB LB AEM Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
FERENEREERE include the following:
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
=== —E_—fF
2022 2021
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
BmT A —3EEm Equity instrument — unlisted securities
— MRRATE R () — Gas industry equity interest (i) 59,800 72,600
R+=—HA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
AR¥ET T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
MENEEE Current assets
B TA Debt instrument
— FEUEEE (i) — Notes receivable (ii) 10,899 6,747
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19.

(i)
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UanEBEFEAR
BETTAHMERES W
HENEMEE (&

UAanEBESTEEEE B
ARMGRERBENERETA

RZZE-_F+-A=+—HBEK=
T-_—HE+-_A=+—0 K&EE
I E R LB A 19% o

P A 6= [ 3 A R R B T b
MERFE  WWEREDBR/UR
AREEFELEZEHHARMEE
Wt M & BVEE - IR E R A)
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19.

(i)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

Equity instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group’s total
percentage shareholding in the investee was 19%.

This investment is classified as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, rather than as an investment in an
associate, because the Group does not have the power to exercise
significant influence over the investee. Although one representative
has been assigned to the investee as its director of the board,
the Group’s determination that it does not exercise a “significant
influence” over the investee has been based on the following factors:

° The Group does not have a significant influence in respect
of the voting power in the policy-making decisions of the
investee due to the minority shareholding position;

° There is no interchange of management personnel or sharing
of technical information between the Group and the investee;

o There are no potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or currently convertible;
° The access to the financial and operating information of the

investee was very restrictive for the Group;

° In addition, the Group made a few proposals to the board of
the investee in prior years, such as the dividends distribution
plan and senior management assignment to the investee etc.,
and all of these proposals were vetoed.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet are
categorised by level according to the significance of the inputs used
in making the measurements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—F_—F1 _A=1—HILFE (LEEUSARETIT(BHFSEHYA))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

(i)

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

Equity instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income (continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer. There were no transfers in
or out of Level 3 fair value measurements for financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income during the year.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the fair values of
unlisted equity investment are valued by independent professionally
qualified valuation firm Asset Appraisal Limited and calculated by
using the market approach to determine the fair value of the assets
by reference to the transaction prices, or “valuation multiples”
implicit in the transaction prices, of identical or similar assets on
the market, which results in these measurements being classified as
Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

In applying the market approach, a few valuation multiples are to be
determined by dividing a financial parameter by the transaction price
paid for similar business enterprises, such as historical or prospective
turnover or profit at a given level. Valuation multiples are applied to
the corresponding financial parameter of the subject asset in order
to value it. Adjustments are required to the transaction prices or
valuation multiples to reflect the differentiating characteristics of the
business enterprises and the comparable business enterprises for
which the transaction prices or valuation multiples are known. The
multiples adopted in the valuation are among P/B ratio and price/
EBITDA, and the value of unlisted equity investment was determined
by the average of the results calculated using the different multiples.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19.

(i)

(ii)

222 XAGBRRERERAT 2022FFEHE o

UanEBEFEAR
BETTAHMERES W
BNETRMEE (&)

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

DAREEFEEESEHF (i)  Equity instrument at fair value through other
AEMGERENERT A comprehensive income (continued)
(&)
HRAEBAT B WA (E3E) Information about fair value measurements using significant
HRAEETEEE unobservable inputs (Level 3)
FABZHEA TABRZHAYLA
it MEE B TABEHA (= METs) EVEEE
Unobservable
inputs Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable (probability- unobservable
Description Fair value technique inputs Weighted average) inputs to fair value
(\R&TF7T)
(RMB'000)
FLmgRRE
Unlisted equity investment
—RIBCZETA=T-H 59,800 [y [:E 1.06 LEER - MAEEES
— As at 31 December 2022 Market approach P/B ratio The higher the ratios,
the higher the fair value
REESHAEGENNZY, 7,01
Price/EBITDA
—RIBC-FTA=1-H 72,600 M5k [)::E 1.27 LEER - MAEEES
— As at 31 December 2021 Market approach P/B ratio The higher the ratios,
the higher the fair value
REESHTELEMNEY, 887
Price/EBITDA
DAREBEFEEE®SE (i) Debt investments at fair value through other

AHMERE WS ERRE
TH

UARBEFEREZESH T AEM
mAakamEBRETABRESRK
B RAKERLTARRA#
2R B SR H B R IRTTR
BH BRI -

AEBERKREENREEERIE
AV

comprehensive income

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
comprise notes receivable which certain subsidies of Group’s
endorsed or discounted the notes receivable to settle payables to
suppliers or redemption from bank.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s notes receivable approximate
their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19. UAREEFEAH 19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

SETTARMES R THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
HNEMEE (&) INCOME (continued)
(i) FTABZMEMEZZESUWER (i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other
ot | comprehensive income
AEEAREBEFLT (BE), F During the year, the following (losses)/gains were recognised in profit
BETABEMEAMLRE W ¢ or loss and other comprehensive income:
—EC-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
ARBT T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
SFARMAR AW R AR (Losses)/gains recognised in other comprehensive
(B8 ME income (Note 27)
(2 RMsE27)
— BN E — equity investments (12,800) 11,100

SFAEA (B518) F73  Losses recognised in profit or loss in other

— FEEMEE (losses)/gains — net (Note 7)
(Z2RKIE7)
— BREKIZE B — debt investments (566) (1,993)

(iv) AAnEEFTEAEZZHETAHEAM  (iv)  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

FAEWENEMEEAARES are denominated in RMB.
{E o
(v) LaemEELHERE- (v)  None of these financial assets is impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

20. FEWERR R HfbFEUR 20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

S
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
== —E-—F
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JEURBEFk — #8%E(a)  Trade receivables — gross (a) 515,629 390,109
FE NS AR 75 5RIE (a) Receivables due from related parties (a) (Note 35)

(Pff13E35) 463,631 324,428
T RE RS Less: provision for impairment (45,330) (31,883)
FEW =% Notes receivable 15,614 45,676
TERIF(b) Prepayments (b) 571,331 542,211
HAth EUGR Other receivables 107,624 111,946
W RE RS Less: provision for impairment (302) (310)
EETBERK Value-added-tax to be offset and prepaid income tax

TR ET1S R 29,601 50,650

1,657,798 1,432,827
B REITERR Less: long-term prepayments (13,221) (24,996)
mENER Current portion 1,644,577 1,407,831
(a) MRERHEE—METEFPHE (@)  The credit period generally granted to customers in relation
EHAMEAR - HN IR to sales of pipelined gas is up to two months. As for the
KERBER  AEE®EE customers in relation to engineering construction service,
Z R ENFEUGR + T AR 3R the Group generally requests advance payments, and in
MEAT  BEEERVER circumstances of credit sales, management closely monitors
EFMEEME - WHERR the credit quality of the customers, and credit period was
EEAH  —REETTE granted case by case with maximum of two years. The
BRE - L TABEARE following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables and
450,034,000t (=T = — receivables due from related parties in trade nature amounting
F: A R #310,821,000 to RMB450,034,000 (2021: RMB310,821,000), presented
JL) FEWR @B 7 B 5 3k IE based on billing date at the end of the reporting period:

HEPRIZREBRZ25W
FEU R SR AR AT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

PR AR B EAtb AR UK

R (E

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
EEC A —AUFE (SEEAARETFT(BIESEHDE))

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(%) (@)  (continued)

R+=—A=+—8H

As at 31 December
—E-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
—FLA Less than one year 821,521 569,333
—FEWF 1 year to 2 years 113,773 101,352
MELA L Over 2 years 30,369 30,245
965,663 700,930

ANREBERBRAR -
RMEMITRERRSHE
I

R W B R e L At PR KR B R
HERERAABEES—
ﬁ o

IR W R 35K L L At P LUK B R
BERBESF2AMES.L -

KRR ReERRRRE
A L SRR YR R EE
B AKRBIRHHEIAER
EREERR

IR W B 3R e L At P KUK B R
EEEAAREE -

RZBZZF+HA=1—
H A5EEEELOAA
K ¥94,994,0007T & JE
WERBERREEER
BERYM(ZEZ—F: AR
#88,599,000 T ) ( M &
29(c))

(b)

(f)

Prepayment primarily related to purchase of gas, raw material
and engineering construction service.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

See Note 3.1 for the provision for impairment of trade
receivables and other receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the period end is the
carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2022, the trade receivables with
carrying value of approximately RMB94,994,000 (2021:
RMB88,599,000) were pledged for the Group’s borrowings
(Note 29(c)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFL A= —HIUFRE (RREENBARETIT(BIHESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

21. HiERBEE

21. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

R+=A=+—8

As at 31 December
—EC-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FEFUEE TR R () Prepayments for acquisition of business (i) 41,788 41,788
IEMBNVE ETEN T Prepayments for non-current assets 25,882 16,601
67,670 58,389

0 KRB —F+-F=+—
A B HREARE
41,788,0007t( = & = —
F: AR 41,788,0007T)
BIEFEEMRRITELMAL
BNEIRERR -

(i) As at 31 December 2022, prepayments amounting to
RMB41,788,000 (2021: RMB41,788,000) were related
to the prepayments made for purchasing the equity of other
private companies in gas industry.

A
22. 78 22. INVENTORIES

R+=—BA=+—8

As at 31 December
—E—-= —E-—F
2022 2021
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RRE BRME Materials for gas pipelines 93,143 149,180
JEFEm Consumables 17,296 5,462

A RIBKIRA Contract fulfilling cost (note 35(b))

(K¥zE35(b)) 18,821 —
129,260 154,642

RZE-_—_F+-_A=1+—HEKZ=
T-_—H#+-A=+—0  X¥F
ERT R E A o

FERAERBAEBE R
ABEXRETNERORARK
5,278,145,000T( —ZF = — 4 -
AR# 4,668,463,0007T) °

226 XRGMRERERAT 2022FFEHE o

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, no inventories
write-down was provided.

The cost of inventories recognised as the Group's expense
and included in cost of sales amounted to approximately
RMB5,278,145,000 (2021: RMB4,668,463,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

23. UAREEFEREH 23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

SETABRZNEE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
T
R+=RA=t+-H
As at 31 December
—E-CF —E-F
2022 2021
EE 8 BE afz
Assets Liability Assets Liability
ARBT R ARETR AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
¥R E Non-current
BB HAFIRES Cross currency swap and interest
AR ) rate swap contracts (i) 80,687 = = =
E Current
BRI (i) Total return swap (i) 47,212 = — —
BEEEEATIRES Cross currency swap and interest
AR () rate swap contracts (i) 7,500 — 9,018 (2,617)
ANE T A (iii) Forward exchange instrument (jii) — (8,562) — (36,670)
ROEMER Bank financial products — — 30,000 —
54,712 (8,562) 39,018 (39,287)
@t Total 135,399 (8,562) 39,018 (39,287)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

23. UAREBEFEREH
SEITABRENER

TH

(i)

(ii)

228 XHMRRERERAT 2022EFEHE o

—t
(&

AEBEAZNERE R T2
AT B TTIRTTRE RS
B RERRAFEIER
% AREEETSREE
RIS T ZMONEPTET AR
#

R —_F+_A=+—
B REETETAEAOH
FEBEFAT ¢

23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The Group is exposed to exchange rate risk mainly arising
from bank borrowing denominated in USD and HKD. To
manage and mitigate the foreign exchange exposure, the
Group entered into various foreign currency derivative
contracts with certain financial institutions.

The major terms of the outstanding derivative contracts as at
31 December 2022 are as follows:

ERSH ZIE EHEHNRE

Notional amount Maturity Forward contract rate
2.8118%T 2023-2025 1ETHARE : 6.4522-6.5416
USD281 million USD1 to RMB6.4522-6.5416
3.001E8%7T 2023 1B THARY :0.8331
HKD300 million HKD1 to RMB0.8331

- _F#RAF+ZAH K
RAIETEZFSFBR QA
(TRSR S ¥ F) 5] L BRI
EHE(TRS)RZ 5 - A% e
W& tn 2B 5T 178 B A R 2R AR
EBAERR  FEBL28E
RAIRZEZZFHA+H
BOAE - TRSZZHES
BAZZSHEALIEST -
BRIREAN =T ==

WA+ —BHAIAIREFEE

+
# °

(i)

On 13 May 2022, the Company entered into the Total
return swap (TRS) Transaction with Hantec Securities Co.
Limited (the TRS Counterparty), in a bid to hedge the risk
of increasing cost of acquiring the Shares caused by the
Company’s future Share price appreciation, as discussed in
the announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2022 for
details. The maximum Equity Notional Amount of the TRS
Transaction is HKD10O million. The total return swap will be
settled net in cash by 22 April 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-T-—Ff-H=—1—HIFFE (2FELBARETT(HIESEHH))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

23. UAREBEFEREH
@E%AE%‘EE’J%E&

(iii)

(iv)

I=NE=

AEBER ZEFEINL
TAEM/%EM\EIE

AE-HIETEAREBRE
mgn - B—H2SER
13,750,000% 7t - E R =
T —FREHUEHE B
ZWy BB eER
27,500,000% 7T BN =
T FEEWAEE - F Y
E 9 % %8 413,500,000 3%
TR ZE =55 .
AR " ZETHR FHERTE
7.261-7.447 7[5 -

HPN-E ok
REEA - NEEHLATF

18 AR AR (B51R)
Flg — %4 :

23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(iii)  The Group entered into RMB/USD forward exchange
instruments in 2020. The forward exchange instruments
including four tranche, tranche one amounting to
USD13,750,000 matured and settled in 2021, tranche two/
three amounting to USD27,500,000 matured and settled
in 2022, tranche four amounting to USD13,500,000 with
maturity in 2023. The transaction exchange rates RMB/USD
vary from 7.261-7.447.

(iv)  Amounts recognised in profit or loss
During the year, the following gains and losses were

recognised in other (losses)/gains — net:

BE+t-A=1T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—=2-_— —E-—F
2022 2021
ARET ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SNET EMAREE Fair value gains/(losses) on forward
HENFIE (BK) exchange instrument 17,274 (18,357)
Bt HAFN A1 & 4 HR Fair value gains on cross currency swap
NIEEE and interest rate swap contracts
NS 80,520 1,544
RO EAE[E  Fair value losses on total return swap
SEEE =P S (15,319) —
82,475 (16,813)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PECF A HIEFE (2FRBURBARET T (RIFESFHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

24. BERBEEEY 24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(@) RERRESEEY (@) Cash and cash equivalents
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-= —ET-—F
2022 2021
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FHERS Cash in hand 2 55
RITER Cash at banks 1,340,133 1,014,923
1,340,135 1,014,978
FHBe RRITERTIATIEE Cash in hand and at banks are denominated in the following
FHE - currencies:
R+=—HA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—EC-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
ARET T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREE RMB 1,287,296 985,164
e usD 30,831 13,391
ot HKD 22,008 16,423
RENRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,340,135 1,014,978
1S AN R EHER G R IR R INE The conversion of the RMB denominated balances into foreign
Rz EE R BS AT currencies and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC are
BB AT AR 1T Y SME B i B B AR Al & subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
VA e promulgated by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFEF = —HIUFRE (2HEEURBARETIT(GIFSEHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

24. BERBEEEY 24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(4& (continued)
(b) ZRHEEE (b) Restricted cash
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—-= —ET-—F
2022 2021
ARETR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 36,385 123,132
B HKD 15,829 35,657
ETT usD 82,531 18,490
2R HIIR Restricted cash 134,745 177,279

RZEBEZZF+ZA=+—
H- 3% 711,850,000t 1 %
¥ 17,720,000C( 49 B A R ¥
98,359,000L) (ZE=Z—F : &
712,900,000 7T & & # 5,274,000
T #1A AR 22,802,0007T) B
FRARIRITIE AR E RE BRI
% AR#25300,000T( =%
——%: AR¥42,644,0007T)7F
R RITIEBINE T ARFS + A
R #5,700,000c( =& = —F:
AR 44,495,000 7T) A HFAER
TEARLENEBRONRES A
R #5,000,000c( =& = —F:
AR #5,750,000 7T ) 17 A SR 1T
EBBHREKRES  FHTHR
RITHIX R E £ K AR 386,000
T EEANHERBERARM
BFHRIBITHRES -

As at 31 December 2022, USD11,850,000 and HKD17,720,000
(approximately RMB98,359,000) (2021: USD2,900,000 and
HKD5,274,000, approximately RMB22,802,000) are restricted
deposits held at banks as repayment reserve for bank borrowings;
RMB25,300,000 (2021: RMB42,644,000) are restricted
deposits held at bank as reserve for forward exchange instrument;
RMB5,700,000 (2021: RMB44,495,000) are restricted deposits
held at bank as reserve for issuing notes payable; RMB5,000,000
(2021: RMB5,750,000) are restricted deposits held at bank for
performing guarantee letter; Remaining restricted cash at banks of
RMB386,000 are primarily set aside for purchase of natural gas.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

25. RAFERA %R 25. SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND
TREASURY SHARES
(@) BAFRAEF (@) Share capital and share premium
RGHE EER BRAEF @t
Number of shares  Ordinary shares  Share premium Total
(&) NS NS ARETFT
(thousands) RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BRTIEHE Issued and fully paid:
R-E-—-%—-HA-H At1January 2021 1,003,615 8,466 817,455 825,921

“T-—FEREME  Dividends relating to 2021

(Pi531) dividend (Note 31) — — (289,322) (289,322)
R-B=-% At 31 December 2021
+=ZA=+-H 1,003,615 8,466 528,133 536,599
SR (i) Cancellation of shares (i) (43,588) (358) (297,325) (297,683)
B (i) Issuance of shares upon
placement (ii) 50,000 403 333,369 333,772
“Z-—FERENE  Dividends relating to 2022
(Pf331) dividend (Note 31) — — (223,081) (223,081)
R-B=Z=% At 31 December 2022
+=ZA=+-H 1,010,027 8,511 341,096 349,607
RAAREBRBRANEZTHBELER The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 2,000,000,000
2,000,000,000f% ( =& = — F : shares (2021: 2,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of HKDO.01
2,000,000,000(% ) - R EE A per share (2021: HKDO.01 per share).
B0l T (ZE=—F : 8Kk@\
BB 0.017T) »
(i) RZEZZF=-ZHAER" (i) On 7 February 2022, 43,588,000 ordinary shares were
43,588,000 % & 38 I % 5 cancelled.
8 o
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25. RAMBRARA (%)

()

(b)

BRA MR 28R (42)

(i)

RZEBEZZF_A=+MH
B KARQFAEREESR
7 8.408 T B & M 1B L
% = 75 B % 50,000,000 f%
TR - TS RIBBREO R
413,853,000 70 (49 & A
R #333,772,0007T) ° f%
e FH AARM 403,000
TC BRI BT AR BT
BTSSR EARENABAR
#333,369,000T ° E 1
RERBRDBITRAETER
ERGEEESMEME RS
A - BETHREEESE
BIEENA o ZENABE
TFTE AR HER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

25. SHARE CAPITAL , SHARE PREMIUM AND
TREASURY SHARES (continued)

(@) Share capital and share premium (continued)

(i)

On 24 February 2022, the Company allotted and issued
50,000,000 ordinary shares to independent third parties, at
the price of HKD8.40 for each placing share, and raised gross
proceeds of approximately HKD413,853,000 (equivalent
to RMB333,772,000). The respective share capital amount
was approximately RMB403,000 and share premium arising
from the issuance was approximately RMB333,369,000, net
of the share issuance costs. The share issuance costs paid
and payable mainly include share underwriting commissions
and other related costs, which are incremental costs directly
attributable to the issuance of the new shares. These costs
were treated as a deduction against the share premium arising
from the issuance.

EFR (b) Treasury shares
BREOEE st
Number of shares Amounts
(FBR) ARET T
(thousands) RMB’000
R-E-EF At 31 December 2020 — —
+=RA=+—8
[ 17 188 Repurchase of shares 31,490 200,697
R-E-—%F At 31 December 2021
+=A=+—H 31,490 200,697
R-E-—F At 31 December 2021 31,490 200,697
t=A=t—H
[ 17 o8 Repurchase of shares 52,178 255,911
AR Cancellation of shares (43,588) (297,683)
R-E-—F At 31 December 2022
+=A=+—H 40,080 158,925
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Fr-A=1—HIFE (£HELBARETIT(HI=EHS))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

25.

(b)

26.

234 FHRRERERDT 2022EFEHE o

A MmN (&)

EER (&)

RZTZ_FE  ARRRBARM
EIfEE & T @ T

25.

(b)

SHARE CAPITAL , SHARE PREMIUM AND
TREASURY SHARES (continued)

Treasury shares (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
repurchased its own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as

follows:
RHEE BRESE BRBEE ZTEE
Number of  Highest Price Lowest Price

B/ Month/Year shares per share per share Aggregate
(FA%) BT BT BT T
(thousands) HKD HKD HKD’'000
—_E-__F—H January 2022 24,916 9.15 8.15 213,911
—T-_FN\A August 2022 2,730 3.58 3.44 9,634
—EZ=FhA September 2022 18,321 3.78 3.38 66,315
—E-=F+A October 2022 3,134 3.54 2.77 9,749
—E-—F+—A November 2022 1,312 3.47 2.78 4,111
. — Jy December 2022 1,765 3.89 3.33 6,534
52,178 — — 310,254

URGBAEBRNZ 26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

RZE-_—FNAZ+"B &R
ﬂ%$@M&T%H§%%ﬂG—

T_—5t8l)) ZAEEERER
SENEEHIE - E2EEONE
BB M SBTT - WARRE

RS E FEABRAERE
B RS RSB B EAS AR
RATGEREBN B RER

R HEEESSMERIOF
NEX - IREBE-T——&tEIAI 31T
B &RZ NBARBTRERITR
AN 5% ©

ﬁA TZZF+=ZA=+—H 'K

NG BT EI RN B
EABEAS 12,817,500 AR
G ’Iﬂf{ﬂﬁﬁbﬂxfﬁaﬁﬁf
B 17 SR AT Bl FEEE 2 M
%o

On 26 August 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company
approved the share award scheme (“2021 scheme”), the purposes
of 2021 scheme are to improve the Group’s incentive system, align
the interests of participants with the Group’s interest, and encourage
them to create long-term value for the Group and the Shareholders
and attract and motivate professional talents to enhance and promote
the Group’s sustainable and healthy development.

The 2021 scheme is valid and effective for 10 years from the
approval of the Board of Directors. The maximum number of shares
that may be issued under 2021 scheme will not exceed 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

As at 31 December 2022, 12,817,500 shares were acquired by
an independent trustee appointed by the Company for the share
award scheme with no awarded shares been granted to any selected
participants pursuant to the share award scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

27. #ENEFWE 27. RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(a) fRfE (@) Reserves

NAREETE
BHSBIA
HipaRE WM
EXfiE EERE SREE @t
Financial
assets at fair
value through

other
Capital Statutory  comprehensive
reserves reserves income Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZE-—-%—-HA—H At1January 2021 (90,608) 632,288 14,497 556,177
Bff — @E(PH7F19)  Revaluation-gross (Note 19) = = 11,100 11,100
B — & (fi:£30)  Revaluation-tax (Note 30) — — (2,775) (2,775)
BB Appropriation (i) — 172,317 — 172,317
R-B=-%& At 31 December 2021
+ZA=+-H (90,608) 804,605 22,822 736,819
RZEB-Z#-A—H  At1January 2022 (90,608) 804,605 22,822 736,819
Bt — @5 (f719)  Revaluation-gross (Note 19) = = (12,800) (12,800)
BfE — HE(H330)  Revaluation-tax (Note 30) — — 3,200 3,200
WREEHTB A B 2 585MEZ  Acquisition of additional interests
of a subsidiary (12) — — (12)
BEO) Appropriation (i) = 150,459 = 150,459
R=B=Z=% At 31 December 2022
+=ZA=+-H (90,620) 955,064 13,222 877,666
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BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

27.

()
(i)

236 XHMRRERERAT 2022FFEHE o

EENEFRE (&)

(=)

EE R

KR BB AR ER A KER
IR T BOE M A F A B ([
BFom ) ESERARNR
o REFRREEREBEFE
EER > NIREANASRTES
FHERIEEE M FRATEALH 10% B
BEERERBRAER c ETE T AR
HEE BB ATEEHRBEDEME
K50% - BRRAIRBEREREE
— R -

AEBHBAES AN BMEBES
EERNE) - TR EBIERRIR
R RF B B AR A LL )[R A AR R 31T
B MERITRBTRORTRBRA
BeEE A LNEME R 25% °

HE-_Z-_—_HF+=-HA=+—H
WEFE BETHETFRRLALF
MEEBHBRABEERINARK
150,459,000t (ZZE=—%F : A
R¥172,317,0007T) °

27. RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(a)
(i)

(continued)

Reserves (continued)

Statutory reserves

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
Articles of Association of the companies incorporated in the PRC
now comprising the Group (the “PRC Subsidiaries”), it is required
to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory net profits of the PRC
Subsidiaries, after offsetting any prior years’ losses as determined
under the PRC accounting standards, to the statutory surplus
reserves fund before distributing the net profit. When the balance
of the statutory surplus reserves fund reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC Subsidiaries, any further appropriation is at the
discretion of shareholders.

The statutory surplus reserves fund can be used to offset prior years’
losses, if any, and may be converted into share capital by issuing new
shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholding,
provided that the remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserves
fund after such issue is not less than 25% of registered capital.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, approximately
RMB150,459,000 (2021: RMB172,317,000) were appropriated to
the statutory surplus reserves funds from net profits of certain PRC
subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

27. RENEFWRE (& 27. RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(continued)
(b) BEFW#H (b) Retained earnings
AREF T
RMB’'000
R-E-_—f—H—H At 1 January 2021 3,317,103
FERARRIFBEENFE Profit attributable to owners of the Company 1,000,672
B Appropriation (172,317)
MR=-Z—-——H+=-"A=+—H At 31 December 2021 4,145,458
R-E-_—_F—H—H At 1 January 2022 4,145,458
FEBNARRIFEENFE Profit attributable to owners of the Company 444,598
BAE Appropriation (150,459)
MRZB-__F+=H=+—H At 31 December 2022 4,439,597
(c) HtiZmsas  MERHIE (c) Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Hittiz &
Hitb ks Wik s sE
Total other
comprehensive
Other reserves income
ARBT T ARBT T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
BZE-Z=-—#+=H8 VYear ended 31 December 2022
=Et+—BLFE
WARMEBESERAE  Change in value of financial assets at
BEET AHMES fair value through other comprehensive
HaEMmEEN income, net of tax
BEZE) - HRTIA (9,600) (9,600)
Hihim & W858 Total other comprehensive income (9,600) (9,600)
BZ=-Z2=-—%+=H VYear ended 31 December 2021
=+—BLFE
WARBESEBRE  Change in value of financial assets at
BT AHMERES fair value through other comprehensive
EaemEEN income, net of tax
BEEZE) - kR HIE 8,325 8,325
Hiim QWS4 58 Total other comprehensive income 8,325 8,325
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BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

28. B ERRREMEN 28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

S
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
== —E-—F
2022 2021
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEERR (a2 b) Trade payables (a and b) 358,256 585,245
EANES Notes payable 427,700 244,494
FE 1~ RS 75 5K IE (a) Amounts due to related parties (a) (Note 35)

(Pff5E£35) 16,244 4,447
FERT & KA T Accrued payroll and welfare 6,069 8,930
FERTHE Interest payables 13,243 11,704
HAbFETRIR Other taxes payables 229,419 263,330
eSS B B Contingent consideration payables 14,516 180,700
EAbFE K (a) Other payables (a) 96,544 119,931

1,161,991 1,418,781
(@ RZEBEZZF+—A=+— (@)  As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, all such
AT =Z—F+=A trade payables and other payables of the Group were non-
=+—8  AEELMERS interest bearing and their fair values approximated to their
ERXRAEMENRAESE carrying amounts due to the short maturities.

B BREIRE - EARE
EHEEE(EERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

R (E

(b)

(c)

W-E-——&F+—-_HF=+— (b)
AR-_ZTE-_—F+_H1

=+—H8  EBANEFEREER

FE ARSI

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the ageing
analysis of the trade payables, based on billing date was as
follows:

R+=—HA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—EBE-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
AR¥ET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—F LA Less than 1 year 317,393 544,956
—FEWF 1 year to 2 years 18,437 24,758
MEE=F 2 years to 3 years 6,906 6,633
=FUE Over 3 years 15,520 8,898
358,256 585,245
NEE R EN R B M E (c)  The carrying amount of the Group’s trade and other payables
MR ERAEEE A TYE were denominated in the following currencies:
*EEHE -
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—EBCF —T_—fF
2022 2021
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 1,155,658 1,412,979
ETT usD 4,842 4,815
bt HKD 1,491 987
1,161,991 1,418,781
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PCECCFL A= —HIUFRE (RREENBARETIT(BIHESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29. B 29. BORROWINGS

R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
ARMT T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
IERED Non-current
RITER Bank borrowings
— B (a) — pledged (a) — 10,500
— BHER(b) — guaranteed (b) 251,750 497,500
— BEEFIHELR () — pledged and guaranteed (c) 974,850 1,235,080
— EAER — unsecured 3,056,794 2,500,319
HABEFR(d) Other borrowings (d) 4,384 4,248
IEMENE R Total non-current borrowings 4,287,778 4,247 647
B Current
IRITIEK Bank borrowings
— B (a) — pledged (a) 5,800 200
— BH#ER (b) — guaranteed (b) 325,000 632,400
— BIEFIER () — pledged and guaranteed (c) 745,380 702,530
— EAER — unsecured 1,838,851 723,021
HAbEFK(d) Other borrowings (d) 255 224
MENE T AREE Total current borrowings 2,915,286 2,058,375
B aast Total borrowings 7,203,064 6,306,022
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29. B (&)

(a)

(b)

RZEZZF+ZA=*+—
A - AR# 5,800,000 TH
B R IEREIRITIE R AE
B54%ae AR 1,952,000 7T
FIEF M A R 1,008,000
JC R M R MR R R
1R o 5 B 5E 14(Gv) RO BT 5%
15(b) °

R-BE-—F+=-A=+—
H- AR#10,700,0007T
BB R FERENERTTIE 5K R
EHEaEMEBEEREAR
# 2,065,000 JTTHIZFF A
R #3,480,000 T Hy + i
AR IRIER o ST R M
14(iv) FFFEE 15(b) °

KRB =—F+=—A=+—
H: AR #576,750,000
LR B R IER BRI TIE X
RS E - BMERLZ T
(RBEREREKE) K
BRAET(CRBRELEERE
KB ) RARRDBIER R E
BERFNNEH AT EE X
WIEEEREBBRAR
AR mARIRIREAR
REFAEXRETESR
DRREER o

RoEBE——F+=—f=+—
H - AR#¥1,127,100,000
LR B R IER BRI TIE X
MRRSLE BFRRBL
T+ RERTERNDEIE
g en=es¥el:ol:0)ezl s
A RRREERERR
AR JAmARARRIE
BEBRARFAEXGRE
HWEBR A RREER - A
¥ 2,800,000 TR R EN R
T R R ERE 4% B AT AR BR &
HER ARSI ASLE
BREELQTER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29. BORROWINGS (continued)

(@)

(b)

As at 31 December 2022, the current and non-current bank
borrowings of RMB5,800,000 were secured by buildings
and land-use rights of Deyang Lvneng amounting to
RMB1,952,000 and RMB1,008,000. See Note 14(iv) and
Note 15(b) for details.

As at 31 December 2021, the current and non-current bank
borrowings of RMB10,700,000 were secured by buildings
and land-use rights of Deyang Lvneng and Deyang Huaneng
amounting to RMB2,065,000 and RMB3,480,000. See
Note 14(iv) and Note 15(b) for details.

As at 31 December 2022, the current and non-current bank
borrowings of RMB576,750,000 were guaranteed by Mr.
Zhang Yingcen, Ms. Sun Yanxi (a family member of Mr. Zhang
Yingcen), Mr. Zhang Daoyuan (a family member of Mr. Zhang
Yingcen) and the related parties wholly owned by controlling
shareholders of the Company, which were Henan Tian Lun
Investment Holdings Group Limited, Henan Tian Lun Gas
Engineering Investment Limited and Henan Tian Lun Real
Estate Group Limited.

As at 31 December 2021, the current and non-current bank
borrowings of RMB1,127,100,000 were guaranteed by Mr.
Zhang Yingcen, Ms. Sun Yanxi, Mr. Zhang Daoyuan and the
related parties wholly owned by controlling shareholders of the
Company, which were Henan Tian Lun Investment Holdings
Group Limited, Henan Tian Lun Gas Engineering Investment
Limited and Henan Tian Lun Real Estate Group Limited,
Current bank borrowing of RMB2,800,000 was guaranteed by
former shareholders of Deyang Lvneng and Mianzhu Tianjin
Chemical Construction Limited.
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BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29. B (&)

(c)

242 FHGRRERERADF 2022FEEHRE o

RZBEZZF+-A=+—
H - AR%1,720,230,000
TR E RIEM BN IRTTIE K
mMAXmAREN LEX
B AEARRE REER
B oRKERE ARES
B e Kt - BAKH -
REAH - BIAH - 8
SR - BUERHD ~ BRI
A KBEE - BEBhE
# - FEFHE - EEREERE -
& EBRE - 1)1 87 2 8y R
REBEBEMNEEHARE
94,994,000 7T H & U2 BE 3¢
(FF3E20(g) * & EMA -
KERE RERE - AKX
HoR - mIRE - HEd
- KBS - KBEMG -
BEeH - BEIFR - BBF
RiEGEREMHRFER - X
e M E B A R
2,784,000 THEFREAR
#:98,719,000 7T KA | &
BYERER (FIZE15(0)) °

It FRITERBEERBRES L
A BB L RARREE
IR 2 & F5 A BB 7707
MERBREEREBEER
NE - AERmEERR
REFA R B R TR
BERDARMHIER -

29. BORROWINGS (continued)

(c)

As at 31 December 2022, the current and non-current bank
borrowings of RMB1,720,230,000 were secured by the gas
charging rights and trade receivables with carrying value
amounting to RMB94,994,000 (Note 20(g)) of Tianlun
Pipeline, Shangjie Tianlun, Henan Tian Lun Gas, Wubu
Changxing, Mizhi Changxing, Shijiazhuang Jinming, Jiutai
Dadi, Panshi Dadi, Da’an Dadi, Baicheng Dadi, Zhenlai
County Dadi, Dunhua Dadi, Tongyu County Dadi, Datong Jindi,
Huzhu Jindi, Xiping Kaida, Deyang Huaneng, Jintang Gas,
Sichuan Mingsheng, equity interests in Jintang Gas, Mizhi
Changxing, Wubu Changxing, Shijiazhuang Jinming, Sichuan
Mingsheng, Gansu Jindi, Datong Jindi, Datong Yasuo, Huzhu
Jindi, Huzhu Limin, Xiping Kaida, Yongyang Energy, Deyang
Lvneng, Deyang Huaneng, buildings and gas pipeline of
Datong Jindi and Huzhu Jindi amounting to RMB2,784,000
and RMB98,719,000 (Note 15(b)).

These bank borrowings were guaranteed by Mr. Zhang
Yingcen, Ms. Sun Yanxi and the related parties wholly
owned by controlling shareholders of the Company, which
were Henan Tian Lun Investment Holdings Group Limited,
Henan Tian Lun Real Estate Limited, Henan Tian Lun Gas
Engineering Investment Limited.
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(c)

(d)

(%)

R-EBE-—F+=-A=+—
H - AR#1,937,610,000
ToE) R IE R ENRTTIE R R
EHXm  TERMAR -
RERE  KERE - AKX
e LEES - LAK
# - ER KM - KRR -
B A - EEZ A - 2
bR~ B AH - KR
&t BEie - fAFEI
- KaMREHE 2R
R EIBRE - BINK MR
“HEENRRNEERT
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DEMRR  CKBERE - RE
RE - ARE£HA - M)A
B.-HER . LRES-
Hemet - K@sH - K@
B4E - B2 - BEIFIR
RAFEENRRERER - K
BoMAME RS AR
2,968,000 THEF R AR
# 103,996,000 7T H A =
EBIEREIR(FIZELS((D)) °

It FRITE KRB RBRS K
£ FIERLE RANREE
BB R 2 ER AR A
MAEXRREEREEEAR
REFA K B EA R
NAEHIER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29. BORROWINGS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the current and non-current bank
borrowings of RMB1,937,610,000 were secured by the gas
charging rights and trade receivables with carrying value
amounting to RMB88,599,000 (Note 20(g)) of Shangjie
Tianlun, Henan Tian Lun Gas, Wubu Changxing, Mizhi
Changxing, Shijiazhuang Jinming, Shenqiu Huixin, Jiutai
Dadi, Panshi Dadi, Da’an Dadi, Baicheng Dadi, Zhenlai
County Dadi, Dunhua Dadi, Tongyu County Dadi, Datong Jindi,
Huzhu Jindi, Xiping Kaida, Tianlun Pipeline, Jintang Gas,
Sichuan Mingsheng, Suzhou Tianlun, Sanming Huiji, equity
interests in Jintang Gas, Mizhi Changxing, Wubu Changxing,
Shijiazhuang Jinming, Sichuan Mingsheng, Sanming Huiji
and Shengiu Huixin, Gansu Jindi, Datong Jindi, Datong
Yasuo, Huzhu Jindi, Huzhu Limin, Xiping Kaida, buildings
and gas pipeline of Datong Jindi and Huzhu Jindi amounting
to RMB2,968,000 and RMB103,996,000 (Note 15(b)).

These bank borrowings were guaranteed by Mr. Zhang Yingcen
and Ms. Sun Yanxi and the related parties wholly owned by
controlling shareholders of the Company, which were Henan
Tian Lun Investment Holdings Group Limited, Henan Tian Lun
Real Estate Limited.

As at 31 December 2022, borrowings of RMB4,639,000
(2021: RMB4,472,000) from local government were assumed
by the Group to acquire the exclusive operating rights for city
pipeline network in Xuchang City of Henan Province in 2003.
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PECF A HIEFE (2FRBURBARET T (RIFESFHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29. B (=& 29. BORROWINGS (continued)
() HEWMER  KNEEENK (e)  The maturities of the Group’s borrowings at respective end of
WEEIRAT reporting period are set out as follows:
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
=== —E_—fF
2022 2021
ARET T AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
— —FR — Within 1 year 2,915,286 2,058,375
— —FEMF — Between 1 and 2 years 1,504,304 1,924,459
— MEERF — Between 2 and 5 years 2,752,729 2,235,939
— AFLE — Over b years 30,745 87,249
7,203,064 6,306,022
(f) REEEFOETDEBAT () The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
VB RSB denominated in the following currencies:
B+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
ARET ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR # RMB 3,764,355 3,476,609
ETT usbD 2,855,197 2,036,749
prodeas HKD 583,512 792,664
7,203,064 6,306,022
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HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29. B (4= 29. BORROWINGS (continued)

(8 AKEEFRNEAEREAAR (g)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximated
AEEEE o their fair values.

(hy AEBARE - EZTREE (h)  The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings
BERRESHRERARNERF denominated in RMB, USD and HKD at the end of each
R reporting date are set out as follows:

R+=A=+—H

As at 31 December
it et —F—F
2022 2021
ARHE RMB 3.30%-5.50%  3.45%~6.40%
5T usD 5.97%-6.73%  2.20%~2.35%
B HKD 6.32%~7.44%  1.96%~3.22%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFL A= —HIUFRE (RREENBARETIT(BIHESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30. IEIEFAIEH

30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(a) EBREMSHEERBENS (@)  The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as
i N follows:
R+=BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E=-= —E - —F
2022 2021
ARET T AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RIEFSHEE Deferred tax assets
— 12@A%&E D — Deferred tax assets to be recovered
HEAETEIE after more than 12 months
BE 13,330 11,462
— 12{8 A A% E — Deferred tax assets to be recovered
BT IE within 12 months
BE 4,714 15,578
18,044 27,040
RIEFFSHAE Deferred tax liabilities
— 12 @ A&EE — Deferred tax liability to be recovered
HIEE TS after more than 12 months
afE (712,599) (726,414)
— 12 @ A AsEE — Deferred tax liability to be recovered
HYIRAE R I8 within 12 months
afE (32,896) (27,255)
(745,495) (753,669)
EEFRBHR Deferred tax liabilities — net
BECER) (727,451) (726,629)




SO IR MR (1)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30. EBLEMEH (& 30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
(@) (&) (@)  (continued)
BELEAMSHERE NAZsE The gross movements on the deferred income tax account are
IR - as follows:

BE+=-RA=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-—F —E-—F
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
n—HA—H At 1 January (726,629) (565,759)
WEET AR Acquisition of subsidiaries — (115,942)
BLE ARG G Tax credited/(charged) relating to other
BREAREINR comprehensive income (Note 12)
(B2BR) (F3E12) 3,200 (2,775)
RIBE AR Charged to profit or loss (Note 12)
(FFEE12) (4,022) (42,153)
Rt+=—A=+—H At 31 December (727,451) (726,629)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PECF A HIEFE (2FRBURBARET T (RIFESFHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30. EBLEMEH (& 30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
(b) FAREREMESHEENAE (b)  The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
VEBIIT during the year are as follows:
EEFREREE Deferred tax assets
HALER
#ERE
L ERINCE
BaENeR
EEBERE  EER  HEER &  EEER At b 3t
Revaluation
of financial
assets at
Provision for fair value
impairment Accrued through
of assets expenses  Taxlosses  Depreciation  profit or loss Others  Offsetting Total

ARBTT ARETT ARMTR ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'OOO ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'OOO  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'00

WE-E-F-B M1 Janay 2021 6,999 1,034 31,361 905 7611 3107 (03555) 27462
SN Acquisition of subsidiaries = = 1,458 24 = = = 1672
NERMIR/ (%) Creditedi(charged)

to profit or loss 4305 1,524 (7,570) (118) 1,557 (311) (1,481) (2,004)
\-B--F As at 31 December 2021
+ZA=1-H 11,304 2558 25,249 1,001 9,168 27%  (503) 27,040
\"F-F-F-B A1 January 2022 11,304 2,558 25,249 1,001 9,168 279%  (2503) 27,040

BRAIR/ (3%)  Creditedi(charged) o
profit or loss 17,185 (403) (58) (132) (7,027) (310) (18,251) (8,996)

S As at 31 December 2022
t-B=1-8 28,489 2,155 25,191 869 2,141 2,486 (43,287) 18,044
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFEF = —HIUFRE (2HEEURBARETIT(GIFSEHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30. BB (& 30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

(b) FRELHEHEEMAR (b)
VEEINTS ¢ ()

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year are as follows: (continued)

ELEFEHAasE Deferred tax liabilities

URAEE  ERESR

Fip=izb:S TAR

SHHARE  ARKA/

EAtN GAkEN  WEBASEE
MEERE SREEER  WENHE i3 #H &t

Revaluation ~ Withholding

of financial  tax relating to

Fair value assets at  dividends to be

adjustments fairvalue  distributed/

relatedto  through other interests eared

busingss  comprehensive  from the PRC
combinations income  subsidiaries  Depreciation Offsetting Total
ARETL  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZE--%-F-H At 1 January 2021 464,865 4833 22317 124,701 (23,555) 593,221
WEFAF Acquisition of subsidiaries 117614 = = = = 117,614
FEEMEANATIR  Credited to other comprehensive income = 2,775 = = = 2,775
RERR(R) /2% (Credited)icharged to profit or loss (13,916) = 13671 41,785 (1,481) 40,059

RZ5=-F As at 31 December 2021
TZA=1+-A 568,563 7,608 36,048 166,486 (25,036) 753,669
N-F-—%-H-H At 1 January 2022 568,563 7,608 36,048 166,486 (25,036) 753,669
FEMSANERTR  Credited to other comprehensive income = (3,200) = = = (3,200)
REEM(R) /2B (Credited)icharged to profit or loss (14,965) - (2,968) 31,210 (18,251) (4,974)
i —— As at 31 December 2022

TZA=1-A 553,598 4,408 33,080 197,696 (43,287) 745,495
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30. IELEFRISH (&)

(b)

(c)

250 XHRRERERDAT 2022EFEHE o

FRREMEHREEMAR
VEEINTS ¢ ()

KRB =—F+=—A=+—
A XEBRRE —LFRQ
RlZARKFTHERFME
B TE B Sl B R
EMEHREBEHNARE
267,329,000t (=& = —
F: A R % 237,330,000
T)ELER 2545
B KXKERNBEIRE - B
—E-F+=-A=+—
B RFOEEFEFTH
A AN R #5,346,573,000
T(ZEZ—F: ARE
4,746,603,0007T ) » AN &
B3y bR P S A==
BT REIRAR T o B EFIS
BEHEBIERAR -

ANEE R EROIETHAT
EHEENDBARE
11,101,0007c( — & — —
F: AR #¥17,812,000
JC) 0 T R A R] A L
35 R o e R U AR B IS
B A AR #769,507,000
(T =—F: AR¥%
761,675,000 7T) °

30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

(b)

(c)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year are as follows: (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, deferred income tax liabilities of
approximately RMB267,329,000 (2021: RMB237,330,000)
had not been recognised for the withholding tax that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries.
Such amounts are permanently reinvested. Unremitted
earnings totalled approximately RMB5,346,573,000 as at 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB4,746,603,000). The Group
does not intend to remit these unremitted earnings from the
relevant subsidiaries to the Hong Kong holding entity in the
foreseeable future.

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
approximately RMB11,101,000 (2021: RMB17,812,000)
in respect of losses amounting to approximately
RMB769,507,000 (2021: RMB761,675,000) that can be
carried forward against future taxable income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

31. B2 31. DIVIDENDS

RIE-—_FEAMRERE/A
FE#223,081,00070( =T = —4 :
AE#289,322,0007T) °

The dividend paid in 2022 was RMB223,081,000 (2021:
RMB289,322,000).

—E-= —ET-—F
2022 2021
AR%T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
TR —Z - —4% Final dividend for the year ended
JEAREARE 31 December 2021 of RMB14.57 cents
HRAR® 14575 per share (2020: RMB15.30 cents per share)
—EFF paid to ordinary shares
FIRARE 15.30%) 148,031 154,768
EBIK —Z = =4 Interim dividend for the year ended
S AR S 31 December 2022 of RMB7.35 cents
BRARE7.355 per share (2021: RMB13.43 cents per share)
- paid to ordinary shares
BRARK13.435) 75,050 134,554
223,081 289,322

R-ZZE_=F=ZA=+H 252
BEEE T _F+A=1—
HEFEMNREREERARE
11.00% * 898 ARH89,179,000
TT(TEREATIEREBERRRS L
EREBEERDEMNRAREARKE
18,829,0007) (ZE=—4 :
REBBVARE 14575 HAR
#148,031,0007T) ° ZEZERKE
RIEE P RER T R AR R

B o

o

On 30 March 2023, the Board of Directors resolved to propose a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 of RMB11.00 cents
per share, amounting to approximately RMB89,179,000(excluded
RMB18,829,000 which controlling shareholder of the Company
Mr. Zhang Yingcen agreed with not to attend the final dividend
distribution for the time being) (2021: RMB14.57 cents per share,
approximately RMB148,031,000). This proposed dividend is
not reflected as a dividend payable in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-T - H=1—HIIFE (2HEELBARETIT(GIESHEHH))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

32. REEENRS

(@) BBRASHAFNBEAGTAER
EELXNRS

32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash

generated from operations

BE+t-A=1T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-= B
2022 2021
ARET T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BRETS R RIFE Profit before income tax 670,124 1,362,804
FEIEE - Adjustments for:
— TBE - BER — Depreciation of property, plant and
BEARIGE M equipment and investment properties
EHETE (Notes 15,16)
(B3 15, 16) 204,859 193,374
— B EEHH — Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17)
(M¥sr17) 122,796 123,706
— FAREENE — Depreciation of right of use assets (Note 14)
(fFzE 14) 11,401 10,893
— BARsUkEs (95 10) — Finance income (Note 10) (11,541) (7,729)
— BIFRAS (FI7E 10) — Finance costs (Note 10) 315,850 228,447
— FEHBKR — Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) (Note 7)
(Yz) (52 7) 245,598 (71,115)
— UAREBEFER — (Gains)/losses on financial assets and
HEshit \BmH financial liabilities at fair value
TREEMSREE through profit or loss (Note 7)
(M) /1BR
(FfE7) (82,475) 16,813
— SRR ENEERN — Net impairment losses on financial assets
BB FRE and contract assets (Note 3.1(c))
(K$7E3.1(c)) 64,293 18,030
— RIWEBEAAEE — Loss from fair value change of notes
BENEL (HFE7) receivable (Note 7) 566 1,993
— B E AR REE — Share of results of associates and
EERE a joint venture (Note 11(b))
(BFzE11(b)) (46,730) 10,253
— RETHE - BE — Gains on disposal of property, plant and
R EEAEHFIF (b) equipment (b) (2,555) (425)
— EHEAAEBE — Changes in fair value of contingent
FE) (MizE7) consideration (Note 7) (49,449) (54,303)
— BB TARNES — Gains on disposal of a subsidiary (10) —
— EERmAZE — Gains on disposal of investments accounted
EWE for using the equity method 4) —
1,442,723 1,832,741
HEEE Changes in working capital:
—FE — Inventories 25,382 (37,410)
— ZRHIHEE — Restricted cash 54,456 (65,339)
— EUBRF R E MWL — Trade and other receivables (236,716) 144,658
— FEMBRR R HABERFN  — Trade and other payables (65,792) (47,799)
— BHEE — Contract assets (303,896) (1,258,657)
—&aHaRE — Contract liabilities (16,152) 103,209
(542,718) (1,161,338)
CEEENIRS Cash generated from operations 900,005 671,403
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32.

(b)

(c)

B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-T-—Ff-H=—1—HIFFE (2FELBARETT(HIESEHH))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

REELENRE (&

BRETHE BMERKEH

/8 £hH

=™

ReEHAETRERDT RELD
E - BB NREASFRRE

32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal
of property, plant and equipment comprise:

BE+-A=1+—HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-CF —E-—F

2022 2021

ARET T ARBTIT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

IREDFE (FEE15) Net book amount (Note 15) 6,796 3,104

BETEE - MEN  Gains on disposal of property,

BERFE () plant and equipment (Note 7) 2,555 425
BETEE  ME&  Proceeds from disposal of property,

REATSEUA plant and equipment 9,351 3,529

B HEEAES

A5 R PO T 5 7R K
D ITFEE -

(c) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in
net debt for each of the periods presented.

R+=—B=+—8

As at 31 December
—E-CF T
2022 2021
AR¥ET T AREEFIT
B R Net debt RMB’000 RMB’000
ReRREEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,340,135 1,014,978
mENEIE Liquid investment — 30,000
XBRES Restricted cash 134,745 177,279
2 Borrowings (7,203,064)  (6,306,022)
HEAE Lease liabilities (8,455) (9,974)
(vl Net debt (5,736,639) (5,093,739)
e RREERE Cash and liquid investment 1,474,880 1,222,257
REK — EEM=ER Gross debt — fixed interest rates (1,520,465) (1,180,622)
RER — FEIF=R Gross debt — variable interest rates (5,682,599) (5,125,400)
HEAE Lease liabilities (8,455) (9,974)
BRFEE Net debt (5,736,639) (5,093,739)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PCECCFL A= —HIUFRE (RREENBARETIT(BIHESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

32. BREEENRE (& 32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)
(c) MEXRFHEAGHE) (c) Net debt reconciliation (continued)
EfhEE RETBNAR
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities

RERREH hE
REZEY RE(l)  ERHRE EES HEaE h
Cash and cash Liquid Restricted Leases
equivalents  investments (i) cash Borrowings liability Total
AREFR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARBTR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RZB--F-A-REEFE Net debt as at 1 January 2021 1,640,081 — 16974 (5,064,639) (8,202)  (3,415,786)
Reng Cash flows (620,931) 30,000 160,306 (1,209,113) 4673 (1,635,066)
SBafHEN Increase from business
combination - = - (137,150) - (137,150)
ERE New leases — - - - (5,768) (5,768)
EXRENA RS Foreign exchange
adjustments and
other non-cash movements @4172) — — 104,880 (677) 100,031
WZBZ-E+ZA=+-AEKFE  Netdebt as at 31 December 2021 1,014,978 30,000 177279 (6,306,022) (9,974) (5,093,739
R-B-Z%-B-BEKTE Net debt as at 1 January 2022 1,014,978 30,000 1772719 (6,306,022) (9,974)  (5,093,739)
Reing Cash flows 322,661 (30,000) (42,534) (664,054) 4,539 (409,388)
Bi5HE New leases - - - - (2,460) (2,460)
EXBENALERREY Foreign exchange
adjustments and
other non-cash movements 2,496 - - (232,988) (560) (231,052)
RZB-ZETZA=T-RERFHE  Netdebtas at 31 December 2022 1,340,135 - 134,745 (7,203,064) (8,455  (5,736,639)
(i) MBURESEESER (i) Liquid investment are the investment of bank financial
[AAREBEFEBHES product that classified as “financial assets at fair value
FFIAEHEENSMEE] through profit or loss”, which can be redeemed by the Group
WIRTTERMERMRE - K when necessary.

SEFECLERTIABEE -
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33.

34.

(a)

(b)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HESEIE 33. CONTINGENCIES
RZEBEZZF+ZA=+—HEKZ= As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group had no
TE-—F+-_fF=+—0 A&EH material contingent liabilities.
mEANBALE -
g 34. COMMITMENTS
B AR A (@) Capital commitments
REBEEREFTHERBEZER Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of each reporting
AT period, but not yet incurred is as follows:
R+=A=+—~H
As at 31 December
—=E_C —T-—F
2022 2021
ARBET T ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
YRR E RfmES  Capital investment to Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
BRI E 3,600,000 3,600,000
HEE AR EAMRE  Capital investment to associates 6,119 —
TEIE - MM Property, plant and equipment 15,628 19,730
3,621,747 3,619,730
REEE AR (b) Licensing fee commitments
R+=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—=2-_- T4
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BB —F Not later than one year 1,100 1,100
HBB—FETHEBAFE Later than one year and no later than five years 4,400 4,400
BB hE Later than five years 5,500 6,600
11,000 12,100
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BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35.

256 XHGRRERERAT 2022EFEHE o

BT RS

BT RIE— T RRENESE T
REEMBMELRR LEMEX
T8 o e HRARES - AR
B FTRERE

AEE RN R B R B SR ML
MRBEBEARARZES - AR
HEBERARAR(NEBER
HEEMKL) 2EHE X RE
HSRRZ T - IR L - 5RIE
EEAE (AT [R5 -

WTRREBEE-ZE -_—_F+=A
= +—BR-_ZE-_—%+_A4
=+—BIFE AEEHEEHS
EHEEBETHEZEH AR
SZBE URRZTZ_ZF+=
A=+—BERZZE=—F+=A
=+ —BMEEREE S &R o

35.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they
are subject to common control.

The Group is controlled by Tian Lun Group Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of Gold Shine Development Limited (incorporated
in the BVI), and is ultimately controlled by Mr. Zhang Yingcen, Ms.
Sun Yanxi and Mr. Zhang Daoyuan (“Controlling Shareholders”).

The following is a summary of the significant transactions carried
out between the Group and its related parties in the ordinary course
of business during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021, and balances arising from related party transactions
as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35. B AR B (& 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
() BEBHMEEBRER (@) Name and relationship with related parties
B BB @&
Name of related party Relationship
Bl SN NN 49

International Finance Corporation (“IFC”) Shareholder of the Company

ERN A N

Suzhou Ping Zhuang

L ERIR
Shengiu Jieyuan

RS

Inner Mongolia Petroleum and Gas

Bl RESEF
Guotian Hebi

Bl R F IR
Guotian Pingdingshan

FFEBIX
Xu Chang Guotian

ESFTREIR
Xinyang New Energy

AEBREXRMES

Associate of the Group

N

Associate of the Group

SN

Associate of the Group

N

Associate of the Group

ik /NC]

Associate of the Group

kNl

Associate of the Group

BEAR

Associate of the Group

BeEdx

Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund Joint venture of the Group

EIEZRE SN
Henan Yutian

ERERMESES 2 AF]
Controlled by Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund

AEAmRRIEREBRAG (DAERRERE])
Henan Tian Lun Gas Engineering Investment Limited
(“Henan Tian Lun Investment”)

ERER2EFF AT
Wholly owned by the Controlling Shareholders

AEXmEHESR AR (DTEXmEHE])
Henan Tian Lun Real Estate Group Limited
(“Henan Tian Lun Real Estate”)

ERERE2ERB AT
Wholly owned by the Controlling Shareholders

ERER2ERE AT
Wholly owned by the Controlling Shareholders

A RRIREEREEFRAR (DR RmREZER])
Henan Tian Lun Investment Holdings Group Limited
(“Henan Tian Lun Investment Holdings”)

e Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 257




B OB M SRR Y RE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35. B ARG (& 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) EXBEHRS (b) Significant related party transactions
REE B HET NI ERRZ The Group had the following significant transactions with related
Z o parties.

BE+T-A=1T—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—EC-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MRHEE Sales of gas
RN Suzhou Ping Zhuang 27,020 24,679
MEIEZRE SN Henan Yutian 180,985 87,384
208,005 112,063
BZE+=-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
=g== T
2022 2021
AR®F T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EMHEE Purchase of raw materials
MEIIEZRE SN Henan Yutian 1,516 2,658
BE+=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-—F —E-—F
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
XRFE Interest charged by
Bl NG| IFC — 1,417
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-T-—Ff-H=—1—HIFFE (2FELBARETT(HIESEHH))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35. BEBARS (&)

(b)

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
BERBBRS (&) (b) Significant related party transactions (continued)
HE+-A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-= —ET-—F
2022 2021
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HEERESE Repayment the principle of borrowing
Bl e N IFC — 129,595
BE+=-A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—-= —E-—F
2022 2021
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RUTIRERE Construction Service
A TRR Henan Yutian 570,684 1,353,576

R-FZ_FE  AREERZERQ
AIERESE - BIXVIAL - FFER
REAEGHEIRRFT RN BUEER
&R RERHIEZRZERS - A
SEEHRFBHLESRABHRAL
BAR®18,821,0007T °

R BERE D5 22 R R
A iH R Y 1'%%’(

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered
into photovoltaic power plants construction agreements with four
associates, Guotian Hebi, Guotian Pingdingshan, Xu Chang Guotian
and Xinyang New Energy separately, pursuant to which the Group
provided construction service for the four associates. The cumulative
contract fulfilling cost of the Group provided to the associates
amounted to approximately RMB18,821,000 during the period.

These transactions are carried out on terms agreed with the counter
party in the ordinary course of business.
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BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35. EBARS (& 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(c) CEERFEER M&RR (c) Balances with related parties
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—=B_C —ET-—F
2022 2021
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUWBRF R H1fEW SR  Trade and other receivables
— X — Henan Yutian 450,034 310,451
— AEAGIEE — Henan Tian Lun Investment 13,597 13,607
— &R — Suzhou Ping Zhuang — 370
463,631 324,428
WR+=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-—F —E-—F
2022 2021
AR¥ET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHEE Contract assets
— ‘X — Henan Yutian 2,695,196 2,398,771
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35. BMARE (& 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(c) EERAEEAMAEER(2) (c) Balances with related parties (continued)
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
=== —E_—fF
2022 2021
ARBET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ENRRE EMENT  Trade and other payables
— AEBXR — Henan Yutian 12,231 4,247
— RN EE — Suzhou Ping Zhuang 211 200
— AEEHER — Inner Mongolia Petroleum and Gas 2,600 —
— LERIR — Shengiu Jieyuan 1,202 S
16,244 4,447
R+=HA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—EC-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
ARBET T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
aHEaE Contract Liabilities
— BRON T EE — Suzhou Ping Zhuang 103 —
103 —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PECF A HIEFE (2FRBURBARET T (RIFESFHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35. BEEARS (&) 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(d) BREEASHMN (d) Key management compensation
BZ+=-BA=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEARFH o Mo2E Basic salaries and allowances 23,096 21,064
IRIRAB TR Retirement benefit contributions 1,390 1,295
24,486 22,359
(e) BBHALRMEHER (e) Guarantee received from related parties

RZEZZF+ZA=+—8"
RORESEAE - BEERL L RE
REARAEZERFRBENTEAM
REER - TEAmEERA
HAMEHERNAEERARE
2,296,980,0000( = F = — F :
AR #3,064,710,0007T) B4R 1T
AR R (E29) -

As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Zhang Yingcen, Ms. Sun Yanxi,
Mr. Zhang Daoyuan and the related parties wholly owned by
controlling shareholders of the Company, which were Henan Tian
Lun Investment Holdings, Henan Tian Lun Investment and Henan
Tian Lun Real Estate provided guarantee to the bank borrowings
of the Group amounting to RMB2,296,980,000 (31 December
31:RMB3,064,710,000)(Note 29).
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35.

(f)

B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=

EFE_—FF A= HUFE (2HEUBARETIT(HIZHHS))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BEARS (&)

MBEREN

ANEE R TR KRR TIE RIR I
% R-_BE-—F+_A=+—

OB BRREBETE (FER) A
/\E ¥ 458,400,000 0 ( —&F =

&£ : AR #483,400,0007T) ° A
EEFAEF A E RS 50% K 1E
RETS -

Fk\—z—?i/\ﬂ +P;E|E|
ﬁ]’?éf?ih%iﬁ'\]—%ﬂxﬁﬁff
MERREHTESEERBZ

MERB-ZF-_FTF—-ANBE
“EMFEEAT—HHNBRER
F &R REXEEBRRARE
3,000,000,000 7T ° Z’S%@ETIE%
SRRERGE  RARBRERR

HESHNERREHRER - ARER
BERERBEAZNREREER
BISBAEHIEBRER RER
BiprEE -

EERR AREBHOMFER
BHNAREBETEALEFEH
Bl o ptHN > EFRARBEMAZ
FEAMEHAKERENKE T

o

=

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(f)

(continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

The Group provided guarantees to bank borrowings of Henan Yutian.
As at 31 December 2022, the guaranteed borrowings of Henan
Yutian amounted to RMB458,400,000 (2021: RMB483,400,000).
The Group undertaken 50% guarantee obligation of the aforesaid
total borrowings.

On 24 June 2020, one shareholder of Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
provided an entrusted guarantee agreement with a maximum amount
to Henan Yutian to secure a financing facility from 9 January 2020
to 12 July 2024 with a maximum outstanding principal amount
of RMB3,000,000,000. The Group has entered into a counter-
guarantee agreement with a maximum amount which provides a
counter guarantee to the shareholder of Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund.
The total amount of the counter-guarantee liability assumed by the
Group under the counter-guarantee agreement shall not exceed the
value of the shares in Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the financial
guarantee contracts of the Group provided were insignificant and no
provision is necessary. In addition, the directors do not consider it is
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under any of
these guarantees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

36.

264 FHRRERERAT 2022EFEHE o

BREHRSEE

R-E_=F—HA—-HE-ZT_=
F-A=+—BHHE  ARFER
EBEREATFHERRMNA4.15
B ITHETR 5 N E & £ 880,500
Ry - BEFBHRERAEZA
7% 880,500 AL E AL M AR FEHH

RZBE-Z=F=F AEEETFH
BREI L - MR REHER
AEEBSHEREFRAENEENE
WM R —E 1 1E -

BEZEEFEN_ZE-_=F=A="
HERE  EFEeZRREHE
ZEF+ A=+ —HLEHF
EHRAREF/RARE11.005
(TEEARERBRRRRSEE
AEERSENRAREARKE
18,829,0007T ) ° #Z & & M i 14
BB RITHR R EAFAE £ T AL
K FIEBERRWE3L -

36.

EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

During the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 January 2023, the
Company has conducted an on-market buybacks of an aggregate of
880,500 shares under the Repurchase Mandate at an average price
of approximately HKD4.15 per share. Up to the date of approval of
these financial statements, such 880,500 ordinary shares have not
been cancelled.

On March 2023, the Group entered into agreement with Henan
Yutian, Henan Yutian provided certain credit enhancement of the
collectability of the trade receivables and contract assets due to the
Group.

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023,
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 of RMB11.00
cents per share was proposed (excluded RMB18,829,000 which
controlling shareholder of the Company Mr. Zhang Yingcen agreed
with not to attend the final dividend distribution for the time being).
The proposal is subject to approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, details refer to Note 31.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

AREINEEEER 37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

EkREZESER MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
ARIEEAEX Balance sheet of the Company
R+=-A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E__ —E -
2022 2021
BaE AR®T T AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
EREBEE Non-current assets
Ho A ek Other receivables 375 12,207
WAREBEFER Financial assets at fair value
HEB)it ABx through profit or loss
RSB E 80,687 =
FRENEE Investments in subsidiaries 11(a) 129,220 129,220
210,282 141,427
RBEE Current assets
E b el R Other receivables 2,551,688 2,152,062
WAREBEREZER Financial assets at fair value
H# st AE B through profit or loss
WEREE 54,712 9,018
PR I3 5 Restricted cash 98,360 32,163
HeRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 58,573 53,432
2,763,333 2,246,675
HEE Total assets 2,973,615 2,388,102
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

37. ARARINEEREBR 37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

RiFESEBER (2 MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
NREEEEBER(E) Balance sheet of the Company (continued)
R+=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E—- —E—F
2022 2021
BaE AR¥ET T AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
EzREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
%N Share capital 8,511 8,466
E1FR Treasure shares (B4 ¥ Note (a)) (158,925) (200,697)
A& A F) Share premium (Bff5F Note (a)) 341,096 528,133
w1 Reserves (Bff5F Note (a)) 19,179 19,179
Z&tEia Accumulated losses (Bf5F Note (a)) (713,991) (837,680)
R Total equity (504,130) (482,599)
aE LIABILITIES
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
EEN Borrowings 2,525,069 2,037,319
REBERE Current liabilities
LWAREEZAR Financial liabilities at fair
HEEt AEHEES  value through profit or loss
MeRAamsE — 2,617
B Borrowings 909,001 787,621
E MR R Other payables 43,675 43,144
952,676 833,382
waE Total liabilities 3,477,745 2,870,701
HmEEREE Total equity and liabilities 2,973,615 2,388,102

ARARMEEABRCHERERN

—E-=F=AF=+H4H
REETEHRE -

bz - K

The balance sheet of Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 30 March 2023 and was signed on its behalf.

RRSEE HIRIRELE
Mr. Zhang Yingcen Mr. Xian Zhenyuan
EFE =2
Director Director

266 XAMRRZEBRERADT 2022FFF

HE e




B Ot B R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

37. A REINEEEREX  37.

R#ESBER (&

Wik (a) AD AR AT -

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

Note (a) Treasury shares, share premium, reserves and accumulated losses

HBREFBEEEER movements of the Company
BEER R A5 F E-5y &
Treasury Share Accumulated
shares premium losses Reserves
AREFT AREFTT AREFT ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZZE-—F—H—H At1 January 2021 — 817,455 (776,408) 19,179
REFHE Loss for the year — — (61,272) —
SEARR R EARAR A Interim and final
dividends paid — (289,322) — —
A&7 (Bl B Repurchase of shares (200,697) — = S
R=-ZB=—F At 31 December 2021
+=—HA=+—H (200,697) 528,133 (837,680) 19,179
R=ZZ=-—%—H—H At1 January 2022 (200,697) 528,133 (837,680) 19,179
AREFE Profit for the year — = 123,689 =
SATEARR R EARARF]  Interim and final
dividends paid — (223,081) = =
f& 15 el Repurchase of shares (255,911) — — —
Ao & AR {n Issuance of shares upon
placement — 333,369 = =
FEIERR D Cancellation of shares 297,683 (297,325) — —
R=Z==F At 31 December 2022
+=—A=+—H (158,925) 341,096 (713,991) 19,179
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

38. EEMFmMMEL (F 38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

B R BMRBIN (56 622 DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
F)E383M (AT BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG
(HEEENRER) KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
BOINE6226E) & 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
EHRAIRENIKE) INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF

DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES)

(@) EERTBEZTM (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
FREFSNITHRBENEFMOT - The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set out
below:
HE-_ZT-_—_F+=-A=+—HIL For the year ended 31 December 2022:
FE -
HERL
AAGETR
ALENER
BINER iRl REHpES
2ER N KR BEARAE
ok it Rk BER EXitR T El e @t
Other
emoluments paid
or receivable in

respect of director's
other services in
connection with

Employer's Other  the management

contribution to benefits and of the affairs

Allowances a retirement share-based  of the Company

Discretionary and benefits benefit compensation  or its subsidiary
E1 Name Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme expenses undertaking Total
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR ARBFT ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FRALE Nir. Zhang Yingeen - 780 - % 32 - - 836
R4 Mr. Liu Min - 604 - - - - - 604
PELT Ms. Li Tao - 484 - 10 9 - - 503
i3 Mr. Liu jin 132 - - - - - - 132
SRERE Mr. Li Liuging 60 = = = = = = 60
#ELL Ms. Zhao Jun 60 - - — — — — 60
3y 6 Ms. Qin Ling - 605 - - - - = 605
Rt Ms. Ou Yaqun 60 - - - - - - 60
Bt Ms. Chen Hong 60 — — = = = = 60

filies Chief executive:

HRRRE Mr. Xian Zhenyuan - 600 - % 2 = = 656
3n 3,073 - 58 73 - - 3,576
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_E - —Ff A= —HIFE (£HELBARETT(GIFFEHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

38. EEMFmMMEL (F 38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

BCABERBI) (5622 DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
E)E 3831 (AT BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG
(HEEEREER) KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
HHIY(E622G6E) & 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
FHRARENIKRE) INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
(& DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)
(a) ESBRTBARTM(Z) (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)
BHE-ZT-_—F+-_A=+—A1F For the year ended 31 December 2021:
FE
sERA
MEETR
IS e
it HEEH  BHENES
2R L] R REmXAS
e % migke EiEd BEEST TR WE@O% &t
emoluments paid
o receivable in

respect of director's
other services in
connection with

Employer's Other  the management
contribution to benefits and of the affairs
Allowances a retirement share-based  of the Company
Discretionary and benefits benefit compensation o its subsidiary
R Name Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme expenses undertaking Total
NRETT ARETT ARETT NRETT ARETT ARETT ABETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FRALE Mr. Zhang Yingoen = 780 = 3 3l = = 834
BR%E Mr. Liu Min = 601 = = = = = 601
FELL Ms. Li Tao = 481 = 10 9 = = 500
£y Mr. Liu jin 132 = - = - - = 132
FRERE Mr. Li Liuging 60 = = — — — — 60
#ERL Ms. Zheo Jun 60 = = = = = = 60
3 Ms. Qin Ling* = 50 = = = = = 50
G e Ms. Ou Yaqun* % = = — — — — %
Rixt* Ms. Chen Hong* % = = - - - - %
BRRLE Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael* 85 = = = = = = 85
it Chief executive:
R E Mr. Xian Zhenyuan = 600 = 3 31 = = 654
387 2,512 = 56 71 = = 3,026
* BRREE : RZTE=Z—Fh & Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael: resigned with effect on 1 September
A—B#ft - 2021.
FREZLT R —F+— Ms Qin Ling: appointed with effect on 29 November 2021.
AZ+hBZ2fF-
izt : R=ZFE=_—FtA Ms Chen Hong: appointed with effect on 30 July 2021.
=+ARME-
BMEfxt: RZTE=—F+ Ms Ou Yaqun: appointed with effect on 30 July 2021.
A=+HXE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BZ_FE_—Ff H=F—HIFE (LHELBARETIT(BIESFHH))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

38. EEMRNENER (B

(b)

(c)

(d)

270 XGBRFBERERAT 2022FFEHE o

B2 BB (5E 622
T)% 3831k - (AF
(KBEESNmER)

BB (% 622G E) &
LR AR EREE)
(4)

EERRNER

RAFEER  MEEEHRETAR
AMEFRAREEHIR‘EE MRS
IMER AR REF AR EBH M
2 RIS T X IR AR AR Ml s R MR
KEM( =T —F : &)

EENERER

RAEEA BIERESRILES
R M EZS EERESZTE
AR FREARF] ¢ TR AP
HBE(ZEZ—F: 8-

IR AL S AR M 00 165 0 R
AR AVHE

RAFER  HELENEE RS
i 2 A5 195 77 TR R =K 145 1 R 7R 2
RE(ZT=—F &)

38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

(b)

(c)

(d)

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG

KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year, no retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by the directors in respect of their services as directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries or other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the company or its subsidiary
undertaking (2021: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year, no payments or benefits in respect of termination
of directors’ services were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
directors; nor are any payable (2021: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year, no consideration was provided to or receivable by
third parties for making available directors’ services (2021: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—F -+ A=+ —HIFE (LHENBARETIT(FIEZEHD))

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

38. EEMRNENER (B

(e)

(f)

B2 BB (5E 622
T)% 3831k - (AF
(KBEESNmER)

BB (% 622G E) &
LR AR EREE)
(4)

BENES  EE ISR
FERBERREEEA
EX - EERRHEMRFZZ
WATEA  BENEE HE2
L E R E T A
ZEEEERAEBRS(=F
T fE)o

EEAERS RHEISEMN
ERES

RAFERA » AARIAEER R
WRARBZEBEMARBZES
ERSHBRERTREEAN S L
EERD  THRER(ZFT=—
FifE)-

38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

(e)

(f)

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG

KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year, there are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
in favour of the directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities (2021: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

During the year, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2021: Nil).
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

o =B fF T —TTF —_T-hF ZZEN\F
RESULTS 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ARETT ARETRE AR®TT ARBTT AREBTET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
WA Revenue 7,542,859 7,650,345 6,439,777 6,548,618 5,113,254
EH Gross profit 1,392,909 1,779,119 1,786,125 1,703,892 1,428,216
BrETS AR AT FE Profit before income tax 670,124 1,362,804 1,418,375 1,127,380 864,804
Fri5fiE A Income tax expense (200,852) (334,690) (354,702) (313,915) (264,444)
FEFE Profit for the year 469,272 1,028,114 1,063,673 813,465 600,360
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
BE  BERER —E-f T TTF —T-hF ZTNHF
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
AR¥T ARBTT AREFTT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BB E Total assets 15,958,734 15,104,836 12,918,138 11,938,781 11,434,093
BEE Total liabilities 10,136,064 9,576,462 7,937,851 7,751,461 7,890,324
Rk Total equity 5,822,670 5,528,374 4,980,287 4,187,320 3,543,769
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